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(ON RECORD – 10:02:57 AM) 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, folks, we are here for day three 2 

of case number 99-251, I’m sorry, 19-070-SPHX regarding the 3 

Valvoline Outlet at basically at Loch Raven and Joppa. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s correct. 5 

  CHAIR:  And we’ve heard the Protest, I mean, we’ve 6 

heard the, oh, you can all be seated, sorry.  We’ve, thank you 7 

for that. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 9 

  CHAIR:  We’ve, we’ve heard, we’ve heard from the 10 

Petitioner and the Petitioner presented your entire case. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s correct. 12 

  CHAIR:  And we were in the Protestant’s case.  So,  13 

are we ready to resume with that or? 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  We are. 15 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Good morning, everybody. 17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Good morning. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Michael McCann for the Protestants. 19 

  CHAIR:  Yes. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Good morning.  Dino La Fiandra for 21 

the Petitioners.  We do have a preliminary matter. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Can I identify myself?  May I? 23 

  CHAIR:  Oh, yeah, and –- 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  May I?   25 
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  CHAIR:  Mr. Zimmerman is here also for People’s 1 

Counsel. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Peter Max Zimmerman, People’s Counsel 3 

for Baltimore County, Towson, Maryland. 4 

  CHAIR:  Yes.  Okay, so we have a preliminary matter? 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Very briefly. 6 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Since the time of the last hearing, 8 

the property, Valvoline has purchased the property.  We have 9 

the Deed for the property that we’d like to submit, as well as 10 

an Amended Petition identifying the entity which owns the 11 

property, which is M and S Limited Partnership, which is a 12 

Massachusetts limited partnership.  We’re in the process of 13 

getting the name of the resident agent.  Mr. Zimmerman wanted 14 

us to put that on the record.  But otherwise, I just have the, 15 

the Deed, the Amended Petition and an amended site plan, a 16 

redline site plan.  The only change on this redline site plan 17 

is the, the name of the property owner. 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Everything else is the same and that 20 

is identified under the revisions.  It says June 25th, redlined 21 

to update owner information and identifies the new owner, the 22 

owner, the new owner as M and S Limited Partnership with the 23 

address.  And Mr. Kazazian, his name is under that as well.  24 

He’s the agent for the partnership. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Okay. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, if I may, I don’t think this 2 

requires any testimony.  I just wanted to submit the red, the 3 

amended Petition, as well as the Deed for the property and 4 

copies for the Board and counsel of the red, the redline site 5 

plan. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Is there any objection? 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, comment.  I’ve decided to be 8 

like super cooperative and not object to this amendment. 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, at, at the beginning of the 11 

hearing, we would like to get this done.  I would like it 12 

clarified that this is a Massachusetts corp, limited 13 

partnership.  I would like to know if this limited partnership 14 

is just for this location or, or whether this is a, kind of an 15 

ongoing limited partnership that operates elsewhere.   16 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I’d like to clarify, I believe we 18 

did look at, we did find out, I think last week, that the sale 19 

had, you know, the sale had occurred.  We did some research and 20 

I think the resident agent is one of these corporate pro forma 21 

resident agents.  So, -- 22 

  CHAIR:  Well, there’s nothing illegal about that. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, but, but I, but I, I just would 24 

like to know if this is a limited partnership.  I’m sure Mr. 25 
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Kaz –- 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Kazazian.  2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- Kazazian knows if this limited 3 

partnership is just for this site or whether this is a, an 4 

ongoing limited partnership that has many sites. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I can proffer the answer or we have 6 

Mr. Kazazian here. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, a proffer is fine.  I trust Mr. 8 

La Fiandra. 9 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, and okay, yeah, sure.  10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is an entity that owns multiple 11 

sites. 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes.  In Maryland and elsewhere. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 16 

  CHAIR:  Is that –- 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, I just wanted to get that 18 

clarified. 19 

  CHAIR:  Is that itch scratched now? 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes, and it is for Massachusetts, so 21 

that’s clear. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And it has an in state resident 23 

agent and we will supply the name to the Board. 24 

  CHAIR:  Okay, that’s fine.  So, Mr. McCann, -- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  No objection, no objection. 1 

  CHAIR:  -- no, okay. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, then, with the Board’s 3 

permission, I’d like to submit these items. 4 

  CHAIR:  Absolutely.   5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I believe our next exhibit is number 6 

fifteen. 7 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I have sixteen. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Sixteen. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sixteen, okay, thank you. 10 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I have that because Petitioner’s sign 11 

in sheet is number fifteen. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, wonderful. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The Amended Petition, is that an 14 

exhibit? 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I’m marking it as an exhibit 16 

right now, it’s number sixteen.  Thank you.  And would the 17 

Board members like a copy?  It –- 18 

  CHAIR:  It probably makes sense, yes. 19 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure.  There you are. 21 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure.  One for you. 23 

  CHAIR:  Thank you. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And Peter, I already gave you one. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And then, pardon me. The Deed will 3 

be number seventeen.   4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Peter, I gave you one as well. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You got, I got it. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  This one is number 8 

seventeen. 9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  All right. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  And one for you. 11 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.   13 

  CHAIR:  Thank you.   14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And lastly, the redline site plan 15 

which will be number eighteen.  That’s for the exhibit. 16 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s one for you.   18 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And for you. 20 

  CHAIR:  Thank you. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The site plan. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  One for you.  And Peter, I don’t 23 

think I gave you this.  24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, I, I would have agreed to just 25 
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redline (inaudible).  Okay. 1 

  CHAIR:  Are these pre-marked or, no? 2 

  MS. JOLIVET:  No. 3 

  CHAIR:  No.   4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That concludes my preliminary 5 

matter.  Thank you. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think my turn, I believe. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, just, just to remind everybody 9 

where we left off is I, I called our first witness, which I 10 

think, who was Peter Moulder. 11 

  CHAIR:  Right. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  And then Peter Zimmerman had some cross 13 

examination questions. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Beyond that, the only, I think we’re 16 

going to call one more witness, who is Paul Hartman. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  And that should be our case. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah. 20 

  CHAIR:  All right.  Okay.  So, Mr. Moulder, -- 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In fairness, I wouldn’t call Mr. 22 

Moulder an adverse witness with respect to my office. 23 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, supplemental examination. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Well, if that makes a difference we’ll deal 1 

with it.   2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just trying to call things by their 3 

right name maybe. 4 

  CHAIR:  Right.  So, I guess he, he should take the 5 

stand again and maybe we should re-swear you since it’s been –- 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  I can hardly remember what I swore to 7 

before, so, it’s been a while. 8 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  It’s written down here.  If everybody 9 

can shut, turn off their cell phones.  Do you swear and affirm 10 

under the penalties of perjury, the testimony you’re about to 11 

give is true and correct to the best of your knowledge and 12 

belief? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do. 14 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please state your name, your business, 15 

your address for the record and spell your last name, please. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Peter Moulder, retired.  My address 17 

1552 Dellsway Road, Towson, Maryland 21286.  And last name is 18 

spelled Moulder, M-O-U-L-D-E-R.   19 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  You can sit down. 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay. 21 

  CHAIR:  Just try and speak into the microphone so 22 

that we can all hear you, okay? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay. 24 

  CHAIR:  Mr. Zimmerman? 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Mr. Moulder, just to clarify, 1 

you and I early on when this Petition was filed chatted, you 2 

contacted my office and we chatted a bit. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  But you, do you know what 5 

I’m going to ask you this morning? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  I have no idea. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If I ask a question that was already 8 

asked before, I apologize.  I’ll try not to be repetitive.  You 9 

grew up in the Baltimore area? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  I did. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you’ve been in, in, in this area 12 

for how many years?  Meaning this Loch Raven -- 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’ll be thirty-one years in September. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and, and where did you go to 15 

high school? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  I went to North Western High School in 17 

Baltimore City. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what year did you graduate? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Nineteen seventy-three. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and did you go to college? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  I went to Washington College in 22 

Chestertown, Maryland.  Graduated in 1977. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and then for many years, you, 24 

you had your career in, was it (inaudible), advertising, what 25 
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was your career again? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  I was in sales and marketing for 2 

twenty-five years with Proctor & Gamble and then ten years with 3 

the J.M. Smucker Company, Smucker’s. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Got to sell jam and jelly and coffee. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right.  I have a couple 7 

of, some exhibits, which I already provided to the other 8 

counsel that at this point I’d like to introduce.   9 

  CHAIR:  Is there going to be any objection to any of 10 

those? 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I don’t know really what they 12 

are.  It doesn’t look like they’re objectionable. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What, what number are we up to, Madam 14 

–- 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You’re on number twenty-one. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, this is the, the standard 17 

Baltimore City/County ADC highway map with the, the excerpt, 18 

the page that relates to this area.  I’m looking for the page 19 

numbers.  I think the page number is covered by the staple, 20 

sorry.  But, and the map is in color.   21 

  CHAIR:  Thank you.   22 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Do you have an extra copy? 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I do, I do, of course.   24 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you.  Appreciate it. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Just so you guys know, I’m, I might 1 

stand up every once in a while, I’m having some back issues, 2 

so. 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, we don’t necessarily have to call 4 

on you? 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  No, I’ll keep quiet otherwise.  I may 6 

scream in pain, but. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and to speed things up, I have a 8 

series of Google maps, satellite maps, of the area from 9 

different perspectives, different parts of the area.  So, this 10 

would be People’s Counsel twenty-two and I’ve already pre-11 

marked them A to J.   12 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, the, all you, all we have to have 14 

is a number. 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you.   16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I’ll, in a little while I’ll get 17 

to questions on these, but I thought it’d be quicker to –- 18 

  CHAIR:  I think it is. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- get, (inaudible).  Okay, all 20 

right.  I would like to show Mr. Moulder the, People’s 21 

Counsel’s twenty-one.  I think, think the Board has an extra, 22 

if I can –- 23 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Sure. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- we permit him to look at it. 25 
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  MS. JOLIVET:  Um hm. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Can, can Mr., Mr. Moulder, as we see 2 

towards the top of the map, which is actually page sixty-two, 3 

are you familiar with the ADC map system, by the way? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, we can see Joppa and 6 

Mylander Lane, toward the left hand top of the page? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and we know that the, the Loch 9 

Raven/Baynesville district, as we’ve previously seen, starts a 10 

little bit west of Mylander, are you with me on that? 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Then, at least east/west it, it goes 13 

to the beltway, does it not? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, pretty much. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and that’s where actually at a 16 

point on the other side of the beltway we’ve seen from a 17 

Petitioner’s exhibit that the Loch Raven/Satyr Hill district 18 

part of the overall district starts, correct? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, we have a, there’s a 21 

scale on the top of the map and I would suggest to you, just to 22 

speed things up, and tell me if this sounds about right to you, 23 

that it’s a, it’s a little bit more than a mile from Mylander 24 

to the beltway?  So, in other words, east/west the district 25 
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extends for a little over a mile? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and then as we go north/south at 3 

Loch Raven, do you recall the, the district starts somewhat 4 

above Joppa Road, we’ll look again at the actual district map, 5 

and goes down to Joan Avenue, do you recall that? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, it actually would go down to 7 

Taylor Avenue. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, the Loch Raven/Baynesville 9 

section, just so, just so, to refresh your recollection, 10 

Petitioner’s exhibit, Petitioner was nice enough to put in, I 11 

think it’s number eleven, the district.  And the Board has, the 12 

Board has it.  So, the Loch Raven/Baynesville section goes down 13 

to –- 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Oh, we’re speaking –- 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- yeah, the Loch Raven/Baynesville 16 

revitalization district –- 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- commercial, right, okay.  Okay, 18 

okay. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- then there’s that separate Loch 20 

Raven/Hillendale district down, down by Loch Raven and Taylor. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Then it’s, and counsel divided up the 23 

Loch Raven/Baynesville from Loch Raven/Satyr Hill at, where the 24 

beltway crosses. 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and I would suggest to you it’s 2 

a little less than half of a mile from the north end of Loch 3 

Raven in the district down to Joan Avenue.  Does that look 4 

about right?  We can scale it with a ruler.   5 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s less than half a miles, yes. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  And whether or not this is 7 

helpful, well, if we look at, while we’re at it, the shape of 8 

the district, that is, the Loch Raven/Baynesville district, it, 9 

it almost looks like a, see if you think this is at all helpful 10 

in understanding, it’s kind of shaped like a bird with a beak 11 

near Oakleigh Road and kind of extends back to a tail at 12 

Mylander, with the feet –- 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sure. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- and leg going down to Joan Avenue.   15 

So, by the way, does the shape of the district make sense to 16 

you?  Where they draw, where the Council draws the boundaries, 17 

from a citizens, I mean, does this reflect the –- 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Excuse me, I’m going to object to 19 

that question. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.   21 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, I think that’s –- 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 23 

  CHAIR:  -- not, not really relevant. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, -- 25 
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  CHAIR:  For our purposes. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Okay.  Anyway, wouldn’t 2 

you say that the, the land uses in the district are 3 

predominantly commercial, is that clear? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Now, you have still People’s Counsel 6 

twenty-one in front of you, the ADC map? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Take a look at Joppa Road 9 

east/west in the district from Mylander to the beltway.  Can 10 

you, do you see any other thru road that intersects with Joppa 11 

and, and goes north, north/south through both sides of Joppa 12 

Road? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I don’t, I don’t believe there is 14 

one that goes all the way to the beltway, no, or underneath the 15 

beltway –- 16 

   MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Or, or even goes north and south to 17 

any, well, let’s, let’s take a look at, Mylander Lane only goes 18 

north, correct? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Extending back into a kind of 21 

commercial area, is that, would, would you say where that goes? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Then Drumwood goes south but only for 24 

a few blocks to Putty Hill.  That’s, is that residential back 25 
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there on Drumwood? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, Drumwood extends from Joppa Road 2 

on the north to Putty Hill on the south. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Now, there’s a traffic light at 4 

Pleasant, just to quicken this thing, there’s a traffic light 5 

at Pleasant Plains and Joppa, correct? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But Pleasant Plains only goes south 8 

to Taylor for about a half a mile, is that right? 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And that’s residential along, if you 11 

go south on Pleasant Plains and eventually Pleasant Plains 12 

Elementary School, correct? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  It is when it gets to Taylor Avenue.  14 

There’s the, I think it’s Ravenwood Shopping Center. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  On that north, I guess it would be the 17 

north west corner of Loch Raven and Taylor. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah. 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Where the Giant Food Store is located. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  That would be, I don’t know, 21 

between half a mile and a mile down to Taylor? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  And then the elementary school 24 

is shown on the map, misnamed Pleasant Pine.  It’s actually 25 
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Pleasant Plains, isn’t it? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and then you have these, these 3 

north drives or lanes, Orchard Tree, just goes north into a 4 

shopping area? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s, it’s a commercial area, yeah. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  And the same with Green 7 

Pastures Drive? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and then if you go east, that is 10 

between Loch Raven and Oakleigh and the beltway, there’s only 11 

one road that goes through at all, that would be Lackawanna, 12 

correct? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But it only goes one block south to 15 

Yakona off Joppa, then it goes north into a, an old Baynesville 16 

residential area, right? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, so what I want to ask you is your 19 

thought process.  Given that Loch Raven Boulevard and Joppa, 20 

that, that’s really the only thru intersection in the, in the 21 

entire mile, you know, what’s your thought process as to how 22 

unique that intersection is in this area? 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m going to object to 24 

that question.  There’s no foundation for him to express an 25 
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opinion as to uniqueness, he’s not a, he’s not an expert and 1 

there’s been no basis of comparison offered. 2 

  CHAIR:  Well, he’s lived there thirty-one years, -- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  It still doesn’t –- 4 

  CHAIR:  He’s familiar with the area. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- it doesn’t give him a basis to 6 

say that it’s unique in any fashion.  I mean, all we know is 7 

that certain, certain roads go north and certain roads go 8 

south. 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, how about this?  Mr. Moulder, 10 

can you describe for us your, your assessment of the 11 

intersection of Loch Raven and Joppa? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sure. 13 

  CHAIR:  I think that’s the question that’s being 14 

asked, is it not? 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I’ll, it’s not exactly the same 16 

but I’ll be happy to have that, the Board’s question asked. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  I mean, whether it’s unique or not is 18 

perhaps conclusory. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, well, the, the witness is a 20 

college graduate and does understand the English language, so I 21 

don’t think that was –- 22 

  CHAIR:  Well, he does. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- an esoteric question, to be 24 

honest.  But I’ll defer to the Board’s –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Right.  Well, describe for us that 1 

intersection and, and what, if any, significant it has with 2 

regard to the community.   3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay.  It, it, it is and, and it’s not 4 

just me that’s recognized it as such, but it is the, kind of 5 

the gateway to the Loch Raven communities and to greater 6 

Towson.  If you go back to, I think things that have already 7 

been entered into evidence, like the 1999 zoning variance 8 

decision.  I think Zoning Commissioner Kotroco recognized it as 9 

such.  I think there has been previous testimony as to the fact 10 

that he considered it in his decision to grant the zoning 11 

variances at the time as a gateway to the Loch Raven 12 

communities and to greater Towson and that’s the way it’s 13 

viewed in our neighborhood, I believe.   14 

  I’m the, I’m part of the Associates of Loch Raven 15 

Village Community Association and I think that’s, I think it’s 16 

fair to say that that’s the way people view it.  It’s an area 17 

of great concern for our association and the people in the 18 

neighborhood what goes on there, in, in that area.  We have 19 

multiple concerns with that intersection, not just with the 20 

Valvoline but with the, the other things there like the 21 

situation with the, the hotels and everything that are there, 22 

that have been kind of an issue. 23 

  CHAIR:  An issue in the sense that they, some 24 

unseemly behavior occurs at these hotels? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  So, so if you’ve, there, there have 1 

been some articles in, in, for example, in the Baltimore Sun 2 

referencing the fact that some of those motels may be centers 3 

for human trafficking and that kind of thing and so we’re 4 

working actively with the Baltimore County Police and with 5 

Councilman Marks and other people to try to do whatever we can 6 

to keep that intersection and that district vital and get it 7 

revitalized for the benefit of the community. 8 

  We’re one of the, one of those county, older 9 

communities that’s really kind of fighting to preserve itself 10 

and that’s, that’s a big part of it. 11 

  CHAIR:  So, when you use the word gateway, and I know 12 

that that’s also in some County documents about this 13 

intersection, what, what actually do you mean by that?  What, 14 

what do you mean by the, by the word gateway, the phrase 15 

gateway to the community? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, if you’re, if you’re coming to 17 

the Loch Raven Village area from anywhere, if you access it 18 

from the beltway, that’s where you come up to Loch Raven 19 

Village typically.  As you would get off at Loch Raven 20 

Boulevard, drive north and the first traffic signal you hit 21 

there is Loch Raven and Joppa Road and that’s kind of the 22 

corner of our communities.  If you take a right on Joppa, 23 

you’re now in the postal zone which is Towson.  So, it’s a 24 

gateway to the, the east end of Towson.  My, my address is 25 
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Towson, Maryland in Loch Raven Village and it’s, it’s, it’s the 1 

first thing you see when you come, either coming westbound on 2 

Joppa Road or off of the beltway, if you’re coming to look at 3 

homes in the area, you know, from out of town, chances are 4 

that’s the way you get there.  So, in that sense, we look at it 5 

as the gateway to the community. 6 

  CHAIR:  Um hm.  But, when you use the word, when you 7 

use the word gateway, you’re not necessarily referring to, I 8 

guess, to the aesthetics of the situation, or the aesthetics of 9 

the intersection, is that, is that correct or? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, -- 11 

  CHAIR:  I mean, this is a highly densely commercial 12 

intersection. 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, and with respect to that, we’d 14 

like to see it be an aesthetically pleasing highly commercial 15 

district as well. 16 

  CHAIR:  Um hm. 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  And I think that’s the point of the 18 

commercial revitalization district.  That’s kind of, you know, 19 

that’s one of the reasons why we’re here is because we want to 20 

try to preserve what’s there that’s aesthetically pleasing and 21 

then improve upon those things that are there and it will be 22 

changed or, or could possibly be changed.   23 

  For example, you know, the Bel Loc Diner was there 24 

for years and years and years and recently was demolished and 25 



24 
 

the Starbuck’s there was erected on the corner.  I, I drove 1 

through the intersection this morning and I just looked at the, 2 

the, the Starbuck’s building and, you know, as much as I loved 3 

the Bel Loc Diner and there was some history there, you know, 4 

the Starbuck’s is a pretty nice building and it’s been hugely 5 

successful.  The only thing I will say, it’s almost impossible 6 

to get in and out of the parking lot sometimes, you know, it’s 7 

so busy.  But we think that added to, to the intersection and 8 

to the image of the, the area.  9 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  So, did that answer your question?  I’m 11 

sorry, -- 12 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, it, it did, it did, yeah. 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay. 14 

  CHAIR:  Thank you. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Putting aside for a 16 

moment the, the word gateway, what would you say as to whether 17 

this intersection is the most prominent intersection in the 18 

district? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Oh, yes, it would be, yeah.   20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And geographically, if you look at 21 

People’s Counsel twenty-one, what would you say as to whether 22 

it’s about midway between the west and east ends of the 23 

district? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, that’s correct. 25 



25 
 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And anyone and, and of course, it’s 1 

quite close, say what, within a thousand feet of the beltway, 2 

have I got that approximate or maybe a little, it’s, it’s 3 

pretty close to the beltway as you go north on Loch Raven? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Correct, so, anyone on the beltway, 6 

whether, whether they’re people who live in your area or come 7 

into work in your area who use that intersection, who use that 8 

exit, entrance or exit off the beltway, chances are they’re, 9 

they’re going through that Loch Raven/Joppa intersection, 10 

correct?  If you want to go to the beltway, and –- 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, there’s, there’s only –- 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- and go somewhere, chances –- 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  From, from the Loch Raven Boulevard 14 

beltway exit there’s only one other option and that is to get 15 

on Cromwell Bridge Road.  Other than that, you’re coming north 16 

on Loch Raven because there is no option to go north, north of 17 

the beltway, you would be coming, I’m sorry, south on Loch 18 

Raven Boulevard to that intersection. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, that intersection would serve 20 

people who live in the area as well as commuters, people who 21 

work in the area or, or are, are going to, at least in this 22 

section of whether we call it Towson or, as you go east to 23 

Parkville.  Okay and in terms of gateway to residential or 24 

access, at least, once you get to Loch Raven and Joppa, it, and 25 
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forgive me if I’m leading a bit, but you, you got to, if you’re 1 

in that Pleasant Plains Road residential area, it’s a short 2 

turn west on Joppa to go to Pleasant Plains and then you’re 3 

into a significant residential area, correct? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, and actually if you continue 5 

southbound on Loch Raven Boulevard one block from Joppa and 6 

take a right, you’re into the Ridgely neighborhood. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Now you got (inaudible) Road, Mussula 8 

Road, Myamby Road, (inaudible) to the east and so on.  So, -- 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you’ve already actually listed 11 

some of the residential neighborhoods on a previous exhibit 12 

which would you say there’s some additional residential areas 13 

that maybe are not exactly the same as the areas noted on this 14 

map.   15 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’m not, I’m not sure what you’re 16 

referring. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Well, the Knettishall, 18 

Ridgely, you mentioned already.  Isn’t Ridge, I thought Ridgely 19 

was to the east of Loch Raven.  Have I got –- 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s Ridgely Manor. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Ridgely Manor, all right. 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, that’s not on this map. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.  Do you 24 

happen to know what the speed limits are on Joppa Road in the 25 
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area? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, thirty-five miles an hour. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and based on your experience, 3 

what’s your observation as to whether that speed limit is often 4 

exceeded? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  I would say that it’s fairly often 6 

exceeded. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And in terms of making left turns off 10 

Joppa, crossing, crossing over the street, what, what would you 11 

say as to whether that is easy, difficult, challenging in that 12 

area? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  To make a left turn onto Joppa to go –- 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, if you’re on Joppa –- 15 

  MR. MOULDER:  Uh huh. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- let’s say you’re going eastbound 17 

on Joppa and you want to go into the Dunkin’ Donuts that, I 18 

think Mr. Sharon kind of liked, how, how challenging is it to 19 

make a left turn when you’re going east on Joppa? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  It, it’s very challenging, particularly 21 

in the mornings when the predominant flow of traffic is, is 22 

westbound commuter traffic coming into Towson. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And, and a few months ago when Mr. 24 

McCann questioned you, did you comment at all on the accident 25 
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experience?  I don’t remember.  You know what, what, I mean, 1 

how, have you seen or known or become familiar with the 2 

frequency of accidents on Joppa Road? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  I can’t speak to the frequency but I 4 

can speak to the fact that I’ve seen multiple accidents in that 5 

corridor and especially at the intersection, it’s, it’s quite a 6 

heavy traffic -- 7 

  CHAIR:  The intersection of? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Loch Raven and Joppa. 9 

  CHAIR:  Loch Raven. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But even a, you know, west on Joppa, 12 

east on Joppa, what about –- 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sure, at, at, at Loch, Joppa Road and 14 

Mylander, Joppa Road and LaSalle, you go Joppa Road and 15 

Pleasant Plains even, so. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, let me ask you this.  17 

Let’s assume for the sake of argument that the Board decides to 18 

grant this Valvoline, let’s suppose the driver is coming up 19 

north on Loch Raven, get, and there’s a left turn lane, isn’t 20 

there, Loch, northbound Loch Raven and Joppa? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, so you get a left turn, there’s 23 

a left turn arrow signal? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, they want to get into 1 

Valvoline, they got to make that left turn and meanwhile 2 

there’s a bunch of cars stopped at the light going eastbound on 3 

Joppa, how in the world are they going to get into Valvoline, 4 

that’s my question. 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  They would have to make a U-turn.   6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And where are they going to make that 7 

U-turn? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  If they’re northbound on Loch Raven? 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, are they going to make a U-turn 10 

once they get on Joppa? 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, they would have to make a U-turn 12 

off of Loch Raven, it’s a controlled intersection, controlled, 13 

there’s a, an arrow signal –- 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You seriously think people make U-15 

turns over there? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’ve seen them do it. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Are they, is that legal? 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  It is legal. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It is legal? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, but it’s, it’s difficult to do 21 

depending on the size of your vehicle because of where the 22 

island sits where the traffic comes eastbound on Joppa, there’s 23 

a right turn lane at the intersection to go southbound on Loch 24 

Raven Boulevard.  That island for pedestrians kind of sits 25 
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there and it sits out in the intersection a little bit.  I’ve 1 

seen people make the turn in passenger cars, I tried it myself.  2 

I’m driving a Suburban and it’s not possible for me to make it 3 

without backing up or it’s a –- 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, whether or not it’s legal and 5 

what would you say is to the level of hazard in trying to make 6 

a U-turn when you’re going northbound on Joppa, then you want 7 

to go to southbound, excuse me, northbound Loch Raven and all 8 

of a sudden you’re trying to get into the southbound lane 9 

immediately? 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m going to object to 11 

that question.  He hasn’t expressed any expertise in traffic 12 

safety.  I don’t think he’s competent to testify to the level 13 

of hazard to a legal U-turn at the light. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I, I’m not asking him about 15 

legality now.  I’m asking him, you know, the case of Eager v. 16 

Stone, the Court of Appeals said that citizens are allowed to 17 

testify regarding traffic.  In fact, it happens all the time. 18 

  CHAIR:  All right. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes, and –- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And this is common sense. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And his testimony has not been 22 

objectionable until this question, which is why I’m objecting 23 

to it now.   24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, -- 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  He was asked a question that’s 1 

suitable for an expert witness, who knows something about the 2 

level of hazard.  It, we don’t even know what level of hazard 3 

means. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, I’m not talking about A, B, C, D, 5 

E, F, I’m talking about a commonsense citizen experience and 6 

understanding based on observation. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, and I understand the, I 8 

understand the question and I understand that he’s not asking 9 

about A through F ratings, that’s already been discussed by Mr. 10 

Schmid, but the question has to do with a level of hazard, we 11 

don’t know even what that means and he’s expressed no basis to 12 

find the, that, that he’s competent to testify to, to what even 13 

hazard means regardless of what the level of hazard is in the 14 

context of that question at this intersection. 15 

  CHAIR:  So, so, Mr. Moulder, you’ve lived in this 16 

area thirty-one years? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 18 

  CHAIR:  You’ve traveled through this intersection, 19 

what, thousands of times? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Thousands of times. 21 

  CHAIR:  Yes. 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay.  Based on your own experience, 23 

can you describe for us what, if any, difficulties or what, if 24 

any, characteristics of this intersection that you can based on 25 
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your own experience?   1 

  MR. MOULDER:  So, at that intersection, if you’re 2 

attempting to make a U-turn from the northbound lane of Loch 3 

Raven Boulevard on the green arrow, the big issue for me is 4 

that there are people making a right turn off of eastbound 5 

Joppa, so you’re, you’re, you’re coming around if you will like 6 

this, they’re coming over here and there, there’s, this is not 7 

controlled, this is just kind of a, almost a, a, an exit, well, 8 

I can –- 9 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, why don’t you show us on that, yeah. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- show you up here.  This is the left 11 

turn lane right here on north bound Joppa.  You have to come up 12 

and around here and turn to come down here.  Meanwhile, there’s 13 

traffic from eastbound Joppa that’s going to come, make a right 14 

turn onto southbound Loch Raven Boulevard.  So, that’s, that’s 15 

the only way that you get into –- 16 

  CHAIR:  Right. 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- the proposed Valvoline location from 18 

northbound. 19 

  CHAIR:  If you’re northbound on, if you’re northbound 20 

on –- 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Loch Raven. 22 

  CHAIR:  -- Loch Raven and you want to turn and you 23 

want to utilize what would be the Valvoline property, you have 24 

to go to the intersection with Joppa and make a U-turn and then 25 
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come back and then you would turn right into Valvoline, is that 1 

correct? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah.  5 

  CHAIR:  And what you’re saying is that merging 6 

traffic on, going southbound on Loch Raven or intending to go 7 

southbound on Loch Raven but merging from eastbound traffic on 8 

Joppa, can create a situation with a number of moving parts 9 

that –- 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 11 

  CHAIR:  -- at least in your experience, is 12 

potentially hazardous? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  In, in my experience, if you’re making 14 

this turn, you know, you’re not necessarily looking for 15 

somebody coming from this direction, you’re more concerned with 16 

getting around and avoiding the island that, as you can see, 17 

kind of sits out towards the intersection.   18 

  CHAIR:  And, and how, if at all, would that differ 19 

from someone heading northbound on Loch Raven who wanted to go 20 

to Howard Bank?   21 

  MR. MOULDER:  It, it wouldn’t except that Howard Bank 22 

had an entrance over here also.  I, I, -- 23 

  CHAIR:  But that doesn’t –- 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- but that would be for people 25 
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eastbound on –- 1 

  CHAIR:  On Joppa. 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- on Joppa.  So, -- 3 

  CHAIR:  And it doesn’t, it doesn’t really address any 4 

question of the, the merging traffic coming from eastbound 5 

Joppa and southbound Loch Raven? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Right. 7 

  CHAIR:  Right. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s be the same, it’d be the same. 9 

  CHAIR:  It’d be the same, okay.  Okay. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What’s your observation as to whether 11 

with the Valvoline, with the in and out, quick in and out, that 12 

may be an aggravating situation compared even to a bank or, for 13 

that matter, an office building where people stay all day?  You 14 

know, is the fact that you’ve got an in/out type of use, what 15 

effect, if any, does that have on the, you know, potential 16 

increased number of trips? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, I, I, I guess the concern is that 18 

the, the facility, as it’s designed as, you know, four bays 19 

that do an oil change every fifteen minutes, it’s sixteen 20 

potential, you know, full, at full utilization an hour, if my 21 

math is right, and it’s, it’s, has the potential to be a very, 22 

very heavy use at that intersection which is already a very, 23 

very busy intersection as we’ve heard I think in previous 24 

testimony.  25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, plus following up on the 1 

Chairman’s question, what would you say as to many people are 2 

doing their banking online these days, so traffic is much less 3 

at banks than it used to be? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I kind of feel like that’s why 5 

there’s not a bank there anymore.  I mean, -- 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  A lot of branches are closing, right? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah.  I’m, -- 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And if you had an office building 9 

where people stay all day, I mean, that would much reduce the 10 

problem. 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I would agree. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Like a midrise office building.  All 13 

right.  All right, let’s move to People’s Counsel twenty-two.  14 

Okay.  Mr. McCann reminds me just, I think the Board knows 15 

this, but the only entrance in the proposal is on Loch Raven 16 

and then there’s the exit only on Joppa Road.  So, that, that 17 

has something to do with the only option for anyone going north 18 

on Loch Raven then if they’re brave enough to make a U-turn. 19 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I’m sorry.  May I have a question, that 20 

you ask a question. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 22 

  MS. JOLIVET:  And so that he can answer it 23 

(inaudible). 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  All right. 25 
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  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, -- 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Or take the oath. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- okay, so just so, so in the 4 

context to the previous questions, what would you say is to 5 

your understanding that the, the only entrance, based on the 6 

proposal is on Loch Raven at a, at a location the, towards the 7 

south end of the property and the only exit would be eastbound 8 

on Joppa Road at the north end of the property? 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes, okay.  All right.  I think 11 

that’s a question. 12 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You think so?   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think, hopefully, hopefully I 14 

understand what the word question means.  There is no word that 15 

is beyond debate in a zoning case.  All right.  All right, do 16 

you have, I think I gave you an extra copy of People’s Counsel 17 

twenty-two.  And so, so we, we’ve taken a look at the 18 

commercial revitalization district.  Now, what I want to ask 19 

you, perhaps again, but I just want, with the help of this map, 20 

22-A, do you see I’ve got them noted A, B, C and so on, up to 21 

J? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, the, this A gives kind of a 24 

panorama of the area and I want to ask you to, you know, if 25 
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your general description of the neighborhood where, where you 1 

would draw the boundary of the, the overall area and, and what 2 

the character of the area is, both commercial and residential? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, I would say in terms of Loch 4 

Raven Village itself, those homes are primarily west of Loch 5 

Raven Boulevard, south of Joppa Road, east of LaSalle, which 6 

doesn’t, I think, appear on here. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, we go up to Mylander on the west 8 

side of the –- 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, -- 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- and, and maybe Drumwood, which is 11 

not marked exactly. 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  And then south to Taylor Avenue and 13 

Loch Raven Boulevard and then there’s a section of Loch Raven 14 

Boule, Loch Raven Village, which is on the east side of Loch 15 

Raven, basically runs along Edgewood Road, which I don’t think 16 

is marked on here. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Well, all right, -- 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  Up to Putty Hill Avenue and Immaculate 19 

Heart of Mary Church. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and you see Pleasant Plains 21 

Elementary on the bottom left of the exhibit? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And while we’re at it, what are the 24 

nature of the, the homes west of Loch Raven, south of Joppa? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  They’re rowhomes, primarily built in 1 

the 1950’s.  They’re in, in the Loch Raven Village community 2 

there are fourteen hundred and seventy-two homes. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what, do the rows vary in 4 

number, you know, four, six, eight?  What, what, can you give 5 

us some sense of, I mean, how many in each row?   6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Oh, there’s –- 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What’s the range? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- usually, for the most part, I 9 

believe there’s six homes in each group. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what, what would you say about 11 

the fair amount of yard space, pretty nice homes, I mean, 12 

what’s, what’s the quality of these homes? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I, I would say they’re very 14 

substantial in quality, I’m a property owner so I’m interested 15 

in my property values and –- 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And where, did you note where exactly 17 

where you live in this area?  I know you mentioned the address 18 

but, -- 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sure, if you –- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- on this map, where, what road are 21 

you on? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’m on Dellsway Road. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, that’s shown on the left. 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And how far –- 1 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Are you still on A?   2 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, we’re on A. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Still on A.   4 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Still on A, (inaudible). 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, that’s west of Pleasant Plains? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, west of Pleasant Plains, north of 7 

Putty Hill and south of Joppa. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay, so if we’re trying to 9 

come up with an approximate, you know, south boundary of the 10 

overall neighborhood, I’m not telling you, but I, I, I would 11 

ask you, what would you say to whether or not Putty Hill and 12 

the Pleasant Plains Elementary would be in it or would you go, 13 

would you go all the way to Taylor, I mean? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, yeah, the –- 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You’d go all the way to Taylor? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  I would go all the way to Taylor and 17 

include Loch Raven Middle School there on LaSalle Road. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  And the, the houses down in between –- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- LaSalle Road and on the west, and 22 

Loch Raven Boulevard on the east, although there, like I said, 23 

there is a section of Loch Raven Village which is on the east 24 

side of Loch Raven, Glen Keith Boulevard, Edgewood Road. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  And of course, Taylor is 1 

shown on People’s Counsel twenty-one, is, if you wanted to go 2 

back to that. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay.   4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do you still have twenty-one with you 5 

because that’s actually the Board’s –- 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- that belongs to the Board. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Oh. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, let’s, let’s get that back to the 10 

Board. 11 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And just in terms of geography, if, 13 

if we assume the neighborhood extends down to Taylor, could we 14 

say that Putty Hill kind of bisects that area?  In other words, 15 

Putty Hill more or less parallels it, parallel to Taylor and 16 

not parallel to Joppa but, but all, but Putty Hill pretty much 17 

east/west as well? 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct, yeah. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  It, it divides our neighborhood into 21 

two councilmanic districts.  Putty Hill is the dividing line 22 

between the fifth councilmanic district and the sixth. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, and obviously the areas north 24 

of Putty Hill would be closest to the commercial revitalization 25 
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district? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Then as you go east, would Oakleigh 3 

be, I don’t want to put words in your mouth, I mean, where, 4 

where do we put the boundary east?  The east area here? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  It would be, and it’s not noted on 6 

here, but Loch Raven Boulevard would be the boundary on the 7 

east down to the intersection of Loch Raven and Putty Hill and 8 

then if you go east on Putty Hill and then south on Edgewood 9 

Road, there’s a section of Loch Raven Village down there as 10 

well. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, well, what about Joppa, I’m 12 

talking, what about Joppa Road east toward the beltway? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s a neighborhood called The Oaks.  14 

You can see all the, you know, red oak, pin oak. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But is that part of the neighborhood 16 

of the Loch Raven/Joppa intersection?   17 

  MR. MOULDER:  It would, it’d be Ridgely Oak would the 18 

–- 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I mean, there are different names –- 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, this question has been 21 

asked and answered a number of times. 22 

  CHAIR:  Well, I don’t know.  I’m a little confused, 23 

but. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  I mean, Mr. Moulder, -- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Maybe –- 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I, I think I understand that he’s 2 

trying to elicit a specific answer from the witness but that’s 3 

called a leading question. 4 

  CHAIR:  Yes, no, he’s leading, no question about it.  5 

But, -- 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  I think we’re not on the 7 

same wavelength so I was trying to clarify. 8 

  CHAIR:  You know, just keep, keep going. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Mr., Mr. Moulder, I’m not 10 

talking about the boundary for Loch Raven Village, okay? 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m talking about the overall 13 

neighborhood –- 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  That would be –- 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- north, west, east, south of, of 16 

the Loch Raven/Joppa intersection.  Is the area east of Loch 17 

Raven south of Joppa fairly close or actually bordering this 18 

intersection, obviously, the farther you go away it’s a little 19 

more distance. 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, yes. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, let’s look at the area 22 

east of Loch Raven and south of Joppa.  How would you 23 

characterize the townhouses in that area compared to the, the 24 

west side of Loch Raven? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  They are similar red brick townhomes 1 

for the most part.  I believe they are a bit narrower.  Homes 2 

in Loch Raven Village are twenty or twenty-four feet wide.  I 3 

believe those are, I think, sixteen to twenty over there, if 4 

memory serves. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  More dense?  More dense? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  A little bit more dense, correct. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  A little bit more dense or a fair 8 

amount more dense? 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, that’s a leading 10 

question. 11 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, well, -- 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 13 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Or the map shows.  Okay and do we see 15 

on the right hand side of the exhibit, although ironically 16 

with, despite the many names, do you see where Oakleigh Road 17 

extends just to the west of the beltway on Joppa Road and then 18 

extending south, would that be Oakleigh? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just to the west of Quinton Avenue? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and that ex, that goes all the 23 

way down to Perring Parkway, doesn’t it? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  It does. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And that’s where there was a traffic 1 

light at Oakleigh, is there not? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Um hm, yes. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And Joppa and Oakleigh, yeah.  That’s 4 

basically one lane in each direction, Oakleigh, is, is it? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, Loch Raven is the only 7 

road that, that’s more than one way in each direction, is that 8 

correct?  North/south, that’s the only road that has more than 9 

one lane in each direction? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In this area.  All right.  So, let’s 12 

go to 22-B, and we won’t spend too much time on this, but this 13 

gives a little more close up of your Loch Raven, you call it 14 

Loch Raven Village or some, Knettishall, that, you know, this 15 

area west of Loch Raven, a little more close up? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yep. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and it starts to, to actually 18 

name a few of the uses on Joppa Road, which the Board can, can 19 

see. So, so that’s your knowledge, those uses that are 20 

mentioned, those are not all the uses on Joppa Road, right, but 21 

just some of them, correct? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But the ones that they do mention, do 24 

you know that they are there, that that’s, that’s accurate? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  McDonald’s and Dunkin’ Donuts, Mo’s 2 

Seafood, Pizza Hut, a fair number of fast food places on Joppa 3 

Road, correct? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Okay.  Then 22-C, gives a 6 

sense of Loch Raven going south from Joppa, correct? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  I notice you, you have a 9 

fairly big church, Immaculate Heart of Mary? 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, if, if I may?  Counsel 11 

made a point of saying that this witness was not a hostile 12 

witness.  He has done nothing but ask leading questions the 13 

entire time.  I would, if he has, if he has questions that he’d 14 

like to ask for the witness to testify that’s not 15 

objectionable.  However, counsel is testifying and, and all 16 

that’s happening is that Mr. Moulder is ratifying his answers. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  I’ll re –- 18 

  CHAIR:  So, -- 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- they’re not all leading, but I’m 20 

going to rephrase the questions to make them not leading, Mr. 21 

Chairman, excuse me.  I didn’t mean to interrupt. 22 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Let’s take a look at 22-24 

C, this might take a little longer. 25 
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  CHAIR:  That, that was actually my concern. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  It was mine as well.  However, it, 2 

it’s just been, every question has been a leading question. 3 

  CHAIR:  In, indeed it has and, and so, we’ve, we, 4 

we’ve –- 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I mean, if counsel would like to 6 

testify, I’m happy to have him do that. 7 

  CHAIR:  Well, no, we, we don’t want that. 8 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  And the maps speak for themselves too. 9 

  CHAIR:  The, the maps do speak for themselves.  And 10 

the, so two things about the leading questions, sort of pro and 11 

con.  They’re leading, it’s probably not proper.  It is, 12 

however, quicker, given that the maps speak for themselves.  13 

The other point, and I would just make this as a general 14 

comment, is it, it doesn’t enhance the probative value of the 15 

testimony to simply ask leading questions.  It doesn’t really 16 

make it –- 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I understand, thank you. 18 

  CHAIR:  -- more convincing, it makes it probably less 19 

convincing –- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 21 

  CHAIR:  -- in a theoretical sense, anyway and –- 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 23 

  CHAIR:  -- but I wasn’t really thinking of that in 24 

terms of –- 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I agree. 1 

  CHAIR:  -- acquiescing in the, in the, in the leading 2 

questions, it just, it, it did, the maps speak for themselves. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I did, I did wait quite a while, 4 

yes. 5 

  CHAIR:  And it speeds things up and, not that I, not 6 

that there’s a rush, not that there’s a hurry to get through it 7 

but it does pick up the pace a bit. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I understand, I get it. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m going to rephrase my questioning. 10 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In light of the, these observations.  12 

All right.  Would you des, what would you say with regard to 13 

the type and character of commercial uses along Loch Raven 14 

south of Joppa Road?   15 

  MR. MOULDER:  There is at the corner of Yakona and 16 

Loch Raven there’s a service station, gas station/convenience 17 

store. On Joan Avenue there, which is also just to the east, I 18 

believe there’s a bakery and another convenience store.  There 19 

are various businesses, Johnson Funeral Home is down on the 20 

east side of Loch Raven, the car wash is on there and there’s a 21 

shopping center down closer to Immaculate Heart of Mary.  22 

There’s a pizza place, I think there’s a bank, fitness center, 23 

that kind of thing in that shopping center. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Do you happen to know the name 25 
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of that shopping center on Joan Avenue? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right, let’s, as the Board 3 

says, the map, but and, is this satellite map accurate, as far 4 

as you can tell, based on your experience? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Let’s go to 22-D.  Now, 7 

what section of the neighborhood does this show? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  This would be the area, Baynesville 9 

area on the north east corner of Loch Raven and Joppa and the, 10 

The Oaks, Ridgely Oak area on that south east corner. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What’s the character of the area as 12 

you go north on Lackawanna Avenue off Joppa Road around to Emge 13 

Road?  What’s, what’s that area like? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Those are predominantly small single 15 

family homes.  16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.   17 

  MR. MOULDER:  There is a nursing home up there as 18 

well, I believe that’s that, on there as Cromwell Center. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  I think it’s a Genesis Elder Care 21 

facility now. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and to the extent that the map 23 

identifies certain uses, what would you say as to whether or 24 

not those are uses that, in general, are familiar to you that 25 
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at least they’re there? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  To the best of my knowledge, those are 2 

the current uses. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  The map actually has a 4 

copyright of 2019 on it, imagery 2019. 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Although the Hooter’s closed this week. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, would that, what’s your 7 

observation as to whether that’s, is that what –- 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’ll be your next case, I hate to 9 

tell you this, but that’s, that’s coming. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Is that a bust?  So, that would be a, 11 

an area that’s open for a new use or hopefully would have a new 12 

use at some point, right? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Apparently.  They put a sign on the 14 

door Tuesday, I guess it was. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, so –- 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Not, not, not that I saw it personally 17 

but I read it about it in the paper.   18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, what’s your thought process as to 19 

whether that’s a, a potential positive or negative or, or just 20 

neutral? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I think we’d have to wait and see, 22 

yeah.   23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  And anyway, 22-D, does 24 

show Oakleigh Road, which we’ve mentioned a few times toward 25 



50 
 

the right side of the exhibit, excuse me for that leading 1 

question, but.  Let’s go to 22-E.  What’s your observation as 2 

to the character of this section of the commercial 3 

revitalization district? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, the north, north side is almost 5 

entirely commercial.  There’s a Merritt Office Park and the 6 

Merritt Fitness Club is up there in that facility.  The new 7 

Loch Raven Commons Development is over there by the Wawa, which 8 

is on the very left side of the page.  And they are building 9 

what, what appears to be an open space there is, is going to 10 

be, I think, two hundred and twenty apartments that are 11 

currently under construction, they’re going up now. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What’s, in reference to that, what 13 

familiarity, if any, do you have as to whether that development 14 

involves a planned unit development? 15 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe that it did.  Our association 16 

was closely involved with the, the work on that. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what’s the nature of the uses in 18 

that planned unit development? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s a mixed, mixed use.  There’s an 20 

Aspen Dental there at the corner, across from the BB&T Bank and 21 

also an ATI Physical Therapy Center.  There will be office 22 

space in the back as well as some, some retail and then there 23 

will be the apartments in the back. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what’s your comment, if any, 25 



51 
 

on the Wawa gas station in light of your support of that 1 

(inaudible) and yet not supporting the current proposal? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  The, the, the previous facility there 3 

was the old Bendix plant and it was in a state of disrepair and 4 

had been vacant for, I think, ten or fifteen years.  The 5 

developer of the project worked closely with, with our 6 

association and other associations, Towson Manor to the west, 7 

on the design and proposals for the facility.  They matched, 8 

tried to match to the extent that they could the features of 9 

the homes in the Village and also worked with us on lighting 10 

and design and other issues. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay and what comment, if any, 12 

would you make as to what makes sense as the north boundary of 13 

this entire neighborhood? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  I would say the north boundary of our, 15 

our neighborhood is, is really Joppa Road.  But the commercial 16 

district, you know, extends on the north side of that, so I 17 

would say, you know, somewhere on the north side is what we 18 

would consider part of our area. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, what was, based on these maps, 20 

what would you say as to whether or not the entire neighborhood 21 

is inside the beltway, south of the beltway? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  That, yes, that would be correct. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  When you talk about Joppa Road 24 

being the north, you’re talking about your own, -- 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  The residential, the residential area 1 

primarily. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right and I’m not going to go 3 

through one by one, which I’m sure is, the Board will be 4 

pleased to know, but let’s, on 22-F, that gives you a little 5 

more close up of the south of Joppa Road, part of the west of 6 

Loch Raven and the Pleasant Plains area.  Do you see, are you 7 

on 22-F? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, I have it. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, and beginning with Hollenshade’s 10 

Auto Services on the left hand side, without going through them 11 

one by one, does, does this map show a number of the auto 12 

related uses accurately?  Monro, excuse, I don’t want to lead, 13 

but does it show, what would you say as to what this shows as 14 

to several of the auto related uses? 15 

  MR. MOULDER:  It shows several of them but not all of 16 

them. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  We, I think we’ve introduced into 19 

evidence that there are nine or ten within a half mile of 20 

either side of the intersection of Loch Raven and Joppa. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Nine or ten that, that have oil 22 

service? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and just to, to take one 25 
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illustration, what, what comment is, would you make as to the 1 

history and character of Hollenshade’s, for example? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Hollenshade’s has been in the area 3 

since, I think they’ve been there seventy years, they’ve been 4 

in that location, I believe, for fifty.  Full disclosure, Lee, 5 

Lee Hollenshade, who started the business was my mother-in-6 

law’s cousin, so Smalltimore.   7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  But they have been in that location for 9 

fifty years –- 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- and they’ve been a fixture in the 12 

neighborhood. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and then, what’s your 14 

observation as to the recency of gas stations along Joppa in 15 

this section?   16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, there was a gas station at Loch 17 

Raven and Joppa or in this section, in this particular section? 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, on this map, on this map, 22-F. 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  There’s always been a service station 20 

there at the corner of Pleasant Plains and Joppa where the 21 

Royal Farms is located. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Does the Royal Farms have gasoline, 23 

that one? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  It does.  And then there’s a BP 25 



54 
 

Station, which has been there for as long as I think I can 1 

remember and what’s noted on here as Marathon, was formerly the 2 

Hess Station. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right.  What would you say 4 

as to whether this map accurately shows various fast food 5 

operations? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I’d say it’s fairly accurate.   7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Let’s move on to 22-G, 8 

excuse me, I wanted, I wanted to ask you one more thing on 22-9 

F.  Do you see in the center of the map, Ridgely Manor Park?   10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  How recent, what would you say for 12 

the recency of that and the charac, the nature of that park? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe that park was established, I, 14 

I can’t be entirely accurate as to the number of years ago, but 15 

I would say it was at least seven or eight years ago.  When the 16 

Hess Station was closed and that park was developed as part of 17 

a settlement with Hess because of the, the problem that they 18 

had with ground contamination from the, from the underground 19 

storage tanks at the Hess Station so they remediated that, 20 

removed a bunch of soil there.  They tore down the homes that 21 

were where the park is now and converted it, and the County 22 

pervert, con, converted it to a park using the settlement with 23 

Hess. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  What knowledge, if any, do you 25 
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have about the involvement of Neighbor’s Space in that one?  1 

No? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, -- 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Neighbor’s Space, you’re not, okay. 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  All right, 22-G, showing 6 

kind of the, the south part of the intersection, Loch Raven and 7 

Joppa and or the intersection then going south on Loch Raven, 8 

correct?  Excuse me for that leading question.  All right.  9 

What would you say as to whether this kind of closer up view 10 

gives, gives you an idea of the commercial along Loch Raven? 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, it looks correct. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I got to ask you this, in terms 13 

of the naming, on the, just across from the Howard Bank of the 14 

proposed Valvoline, it says Mobile One Lube Express, right?  15 

What, is that, is that the correct name of that use?  Is that 16 

accurate? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  The signage on the building is Savco, 18 

S-A-V-C-O and they do all kinds of mechanical work at that 19 

location, auto, auto mechanical work. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Does that include lube? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, and they, they have signage up for 22 

Mobile One Lube Express. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, so how do you account for the 24 

name Mobile One Lube Express?  Was that a previous name or do 25 
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you have any comment on that? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  I have no idea. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and just for sake of completion, 3 

at the south west corner of Yakona and Loch Raven near the 4 

Towson Tag and Title, what knowledge do you have if there’s 5 

also an auto service place on that corner, if any?  That’s not 6 

named on the map.   7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, that would be Rigen Automotive. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Which you mention in your answer to 9 

Mr. McCann a few months ago? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, I think so. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, the map doesn’t necessarily show 12 

every single use? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, it doesn’t. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Let’s move on to 22-H, moving 15 

right along.  Now, this would be Joppa Road, more or less from, 16 

excuse me for, I mean, I can ask you what part of Joppa Road, I 17 

won’t be leading, what part of Joppa Road does this show, 18 

section? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  This would be to the east of the 20 

intersection. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Just to move it 22 

along.  From Emge Road to Don’s Crabs? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and without going through one by 25 
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one.  The, the, the various auto uses are shown, that are shown 1 

on this, what would you say as to whether the, they’re 2 

accurately named?  Namely, Pep Boys, Caspian Motors, so on. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, that, yes that would be accurate. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  What, what knowledge, if any, 5 

do you have as to whether there’s, in this area, there’s also a 6 

Camden Auto Body?   7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, I believe that’s on the south 8 

side here somewhere. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But not named, right? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Not named. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Then Mr. Tire, I think you mentioned 12 

in your direct testimony? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what is Caspian Motors, by the 15 

way? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  It is an auto repair location. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, it’s not just a used, not like a 18 

used car lot? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, it’s not, no. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do you know where the name Caspian 21 

comes from? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Let’s move along 24 

to, only two more to go, 22-I.  Headed toward Oakleigh, I’ll 25 
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just ask you whether this shows some additional auto related, 1 

whether this is accurate or what would, what’s your comment as 2 

to the accuracy of the, the various auto uses and, and how 3 

would you describe them? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I believe that’s current, to the 5 

best of my knowledge.   6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, what –- 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t, I don’t believe the BMW of 8 

Towson Certified Collision Center is, is what I would, I mean, 9 

they, they fix, you know, cars that have been in accidents but 10 

they don’t do auto service, they don’t do oil changes and that 11 

kind of thing. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But cars come in and out of there, 13 

don’t they? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And then, what’s your comment on 18 

Midas Royal Motors, Hertz? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Midas and Royal Motors, I do believe, 20 

provide full auto service and then Hertz is just a car rental 21 

agency. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Last but not least, 22-J, 23 

what’s your comment there on the commercial, including any auto 24 

related facilities? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  I believe that captures what is there 1 

accurately. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Any, what comment, if any, do you 3 

have on the Joppa Road Automotive Center? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s part of the Audio Connection.  5 

They do car stereo, car security and that kind of thing at that 6 

location. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That’s not a service –- 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, it’s not. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what would you say as to whether 10 

this area, you’re getting fairly close to the intersection but 11 

still east of Loch Raven? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, you’re, Easter’s Lock & Key is 13 

probably a hundred and fifty feet from the intersection. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay and while we’re at it, 15 

you mentioned a little while ago and maybe to some extent in 16 

answering Mr. McCann, that there’s some motels in the area, 17 

into the area, of varying types.  What, what inns are in this 18 

area? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  On Joppa Road on the south side is the 20 

Towson East Motel.   21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What about on Loch, on Loch Raven, on 22 

Loch Raven, north of –- 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  On Loch Raven, there’s a Comfort Inn, 24 

on the east side there’s the Welcome Inn Motel and there’s some 25 
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apartments or whatever, they, they have there as well.  On the 1 

west side, across from it, I think it’s an independent hotel 2 

property now.  It used to be the Holiday Inn.   3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Any Days Inns in the area?  Any Days 4 

Inns?  No Days Inns? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  I think, I, I can’t remember what the 6 

signage is on that property on the east side now, it’s Comfort 7 

Inn or, or Days, Days Inn. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What would, what would you say would 9 

be the quality of those inns?  Substandard, I don’t want to say 10 

–- 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I, I would not rec -- 12 

  MS. JOLIVET:  So, what (inaudible)? 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The quality of those inns. 14 

  MS. JOLIVET:  All of them? 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The character of those inns and how 16 

they contribute or don’t contribute. 17 

  CHAIR:  This is a little far afield, is it not? 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right.  I’ll withdraw the 19 

question.   20 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’m happy to comment but that’s 21 

probably for another hearing.  I have a strong opinion. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, so, let me ask you this.  Given 23 

the various uses in the area that you have, well, let me, 24 

besides fast food restaurants, I have to ask you.  Are, are 25 
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there some more like sit down restaurants of some quality in 1 

the area, aside from just the fast food? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, the, the Pizza Hut is primarily 3 

sit down, Mo’s Seafood primarily is a sit down location, 4 

Casey’s on the north side of Joppa on, east of the intersection 5 

is primarily sit down restaurant/bar type facility.  As you go 6 

over toward LaSalle Road to the west, there’s a Bob Evans, 7 

which is sit down. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, that’s outside the district, 9 

isn’t it? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t believe so. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  I think, I think it extends over to 13 

LaSalle Road. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Not to lead to much, 15 

Johnny D’s, (inaudible)? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, Johnny D’s, they’re Joan Avenue. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Any other restaurants you want to 18 

mention? 19 

  CHAIR:  Do you ever go to the Orchard Market? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  I have, yes.  Good sandwiches, yeah.  21 

And then there’s -- 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Anything else besides the sandwiches? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I’d highly recommend Pastore’s. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  There’s no Arby’s in the area, 25 
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is there?   1 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t think so. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay, all right.  So, before I get to 3 

the next question, I want to go back to, I think it’s People’s 4 

Counsel’s four.  I think the Board has an extra copy.  I 5 

believe they’re the Count Council resolutions, am I right? 6 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes, I have it. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do we have an extra copy for the 8 

witness? 9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I’ll give you the original.  The 10 

original exhibit? 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, actually, usually we give you, 12 

oh.  Did we give the original to the witness?  Yes. 13 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Just to review, sure. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and I think, and each of the 15 

Board members hopefully has a copy. 16 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes, we do.   17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, I want to, there are a 18 

number of resolutions in this exhibit, but I want to draw your 19 

attention to resolution number 11-13, modifying the 20 

(inaudible).  Do you have that in front of you?  Or can you get 21 

to that?   22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, my first question is, 24 

does, does your group or, have any involvement in, you know, 25 
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participating in the proceedings which led to the, the adoption 1 

of this resolution? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Would you describe that? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Just from consulting with Councilman 5 

Marks as to the goals and objectives for the commercial 6 

revitalization district. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay.   8 

  CHAIR:  Which, which number was that, number –- 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Resolution 11-13.  10 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and from a citizen’s point of 12 

view, what’s, what’s your general assessment, looking at the, 13 

the second whereas clause of the range of retail service and 14 

entertainment uses in, in your Loch Raven/Baynesville district?  15 

The good, the bad and the ugly, what, you know, what’s good 16 

about it, what’s not so good about it, the range of uses? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, and I, I, you know, I’ve also 18 

read the, the County’s, what’s available on the County website 19 

about the commercial revitalization districts and, and one of 20 

the things that we were in favor of and concerned about was 21 

insuring that there were a variety of uses within the 22 

commercial revitalization district, that it wasn’t focused on 23 

one particular type of commercial enterprise for example. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, in light of what we’ve already 25 
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seen, what’s your assessment of whether or not there’s a 1 

tremendous need for another auto service use in the area to 2 

balance the use –- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m not, I’m not sure, 4 

A, that it’s relevant, or B, that he’s established any 5 

foundation for that type of question or answer.  So, I object 6 

to the question.   7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s a perfectly legitimate question. 8 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, okay.  Overruled.  Go ahead. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  From a citizen’s point of view. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  From a citizen’s point of view, I would 11 

say that there are nine or ten facilities available currently 12 

for oil changes, all kinds of auto services that would be 13 

offered at the Valvoline.  I think it’s, to be honest, I think 14 

it’s redundant and extreme in this area. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What concern, if any, would there be 16 

that any of the established businesses may suffer? 17 

  CHAIR:  I, I don’t know that he can actually get into 18 

that. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right, all right. 20 

  CHAIR:  That’s, that’s a little, that’s beyond the 21 

can of an ordinary citizen, I think. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  From a citizen’s point of view, what 23 

is, what are the main things, if any, that bring about the 24 

desire to revitalize this area? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Well, from a citizen’s point of view, I 1 

guess, is that the, previous to the establishment of the 2 

commercial revitalization district and, in a sense I guess, 3 

even since it’s been established, there’s been concern about 4 

the haphazard nature of the development along the corridor 5 

there and that it’s all, not always consistent with those goals 6 

that are outlined in the resolution for mixed uses, variety of 7 

uses and that, and that type of thing. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what do you think accounts 9 

for the fact that we have this resolution in 2013, modifying 10 

previous resolutions going back to 1998?  What, what is it you, 11 

from your experience that spurred, you know, an additional 12 

resolution? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, based on my experience, I think 14 

that, what I, what I just testified to was the, the lack of 15 

variety and, and the mixed use.  I think it was in danger of 16 

just coming nothing but fast food and, and frankly, auto 17 

service and I think that people in the area generally favored 18 

more variety and, as I testified to previously, I think we’ve 19 

had some success in the Mercy Medical Surg Center, which 20 

replaced the Lazy Boy store there on the south side of Joppa 21 

Road, just east of Pleasant Plains, the development at Loch 22 

Raven Commons, which we feel is a mixed use development, which 23 

is consistent with those goals and, and a few of the other 24 

locations, Lake Shore Learning Center, those types of places. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, let me move on.  In that 1 

same second whereas clause, there’s the lang, language I’m 2 

quoting, as well as establishing the overall image of a 3 

community, unquote.  Okay.  My first question is, what, what 4 

concern, if any, is there about the image of this community, 5 

from your perspective? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, the concern would be that, that 7 

the way that commercial district reflects on the immediate 8 

community and the residential areas there.  I mean, because 9 

we’re concerned about, you know, like I said before, our 10 

housing values and our quality of life and how it’s impacted by 11 

those things that are established, you know, in some cases a 12 

block away from people’s homes.  So, it, it, it, it impacts 13 

everybody up and down the Loch Raven Village area in that 14 

respect. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  In light of your previous 16 

observations about the Loch Raven/Joppa intersection, what’s 17 

your thought process as to how this proposed Valvoline affects 18 

the image of the area for better or for worse? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, and again, it’s, it’s, it’s not 20 

just me, but it’s been in previously introduced evidence from 21 

the 1999 decision that the conversion of this location from an 22 

auto service use to what’s now a Class B office building was 23 

recognized as being located at a prominent in, intersection 24 

that’s the gateway to the Loch Raven communities, it was 25 
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recognized as a tremendous benefit and an improvement at that 1 

time by both the Zoning Commissioner and the County Director of 2 

Commercial Revitalization. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, that was twenty years ago, 4 

right? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What I want to know is what your 7 

perspective is now and –- 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, my perspective –- 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- wait a minute, let me finish the 10 

question.  As to the effect of this proposal on the image of 11 

the community, for better or for worse, good, bad, indifferent? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  My perspective now is that to convert 13 

this back to an auto service use after it being recognized as a 14 

tremendous improvement at a prominent intersection that is a 15 

gateway to our communities is a step backwards, and in that 16 

sense, has to be detrimental to the general welfare, health and 17 

safety of the community.  I mean, that’s what the zoning 18 

regulation says and if it was, if it was an improvement before 19 

it can’t be an improvement to go backwards, it’s just not 20 

logical.   21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Unless there was a major change in 22 

the neighborhood in twenty years that somehow justified that, 23 

right?  Was there any change in the last twenty years that 24 

would cause you to say –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  No, I mean, it’s been a fact that the 1 

commercial activity on Joppa Road, and particularly at that 2 

intersection, has over the past twenty years, has become more 3 

dense, more active, more pronounced than it was even in 1999 4 

when it was pretty pronounced? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Right. 6 

  CHAIR:  Now it’s even more so.   7 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I guess –- 8 

  CHAIR:  Correct or not? 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’m, it’s a, it’s a difficult one to 10 

answer. 11 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  First of all, it’s always been pretty, 13 

it’s been a pretty active intersection and the commercial, 14 

there’s always been a lot of commercial activity at that 15 

intersection. 16 

  CHAIR:  And on Joppa Road in general in that stretch 17 

that we’ve been looking at, right? 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, yeah, it’s always been pretty 19 

dense.  You know, I don’t know that this changed that that much 20 

in that sense, but I’m just talking about primarily the, the 21 

use going from again, auto service, which there is a, a great 22 

deal of density of that use in the area, and going away from a 23 

Class B office building, which the Loch Raven business 24 

association at the time in ’99 supported and, and felt was an 25 
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improvement. 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Let me ask you this, Mr. Moulder.  3 

Other than the Towson Commons that you’ve supported on the west 4 

end of the district with a mixed use, and you mentioned, was it 5 

a medical facility that replaced the Lazy Boy? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, it’s a -- 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- Mercy Medical Systems Medical 9 

Surgical Center Outpatient. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And other than perhaps some changes 11 

in names to some of the uses, can you identify any significant 12 

changes in use in the last twenty years in that area, along 13 

Joppa Road?  Maybe a furniture store coming in, going out, I 14 

mean, what, are there any significant changes?  That’s what I 15 

want to know, in the last twenty years. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, the, over to the east side 17 

there’s a new Gavigan’s furniture store that replaced Harold’s 18 

fruit market over there, Harold’s market.  The Starbuck’s, as I 19 

said previously, replaced the Bel Loc Diner.  The Lake Shore 20 

Learning Center and –- 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, let me, and you regard –- 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, let him finish, let him finish. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Excuse me, he’s answering the 24 

question.   25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Lake Shore Learning Center and the 1 

United Rental Center on the north side, across, I think they’re 2 

across from the McDonald’s parking lot, relatively new, I’d say 3 

probably twenty years.   4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what would you say as to whether 5 

those several things you mentioned have changed the character 6 

of the neighborhood or the density of the neighborhood? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Don’t know that they’ve changed the 8 

density.  We, we felt like the, the Starbuck’s was an upgrade 9 

at the corner, quite honestly.  I mean, we all, like I said 10 

before, we all liked the Bel Loc Diner and Mr. Doxanis 11 

(phonetic), but we felt like it, you know, the, the building 12 

was, was not in good shape and what’s replaced it has been an 13 

improvement in most people’s eyes, I would say. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Based on all that, what 15 

reason, if any, would there be to take a different approach now 16 

than you took in 1999?   17 

  CHAIR:  Well, it’s a, sort of a confusing question, 18 

but go ahead and, if you can answer that. 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I don’t, -- 20 

  CHAIR:  He’s saying how come you supported the Howard 21 

Bank in 1999 and don’t support Valvoline now. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, that’s not actually –- 23 

  CHAIR:  No, not right? 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Okay.   1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, well, -- 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Although that’s a good question. 3 

  CHAIR:  Pardon? 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I said, although that’s a good 5 

question. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  I misunderstood then. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, let me back up.   8 

  CHAIR:  So, again, not to, not to cut anyone off, 9 

okay?  Because we –- 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 11 

  CHAIR:  -- want to make sure the community is heard 12 

and heard sincerely, but I, I’m guessing that my colleagues 13 

would agree with me that we understand the argument about the 14 

health, safety and welfare, how that relates to a special 15 

exception.  We understand from the maps the questions of 16 

residential and commercial density and active, and relative 17 

levels of activity and we, I think we get all that actually. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  All right, let me move on 19 

to one, on this resolution in 2013, the, the first whereas 20 

clause on the top of the second page describing the three 21 

separate communities of Loch Raven/Baynesville, Loch 22 

Raven/Satyr Hill and Loch Raven/Hillendale, and, and the quote 23 

unquote, unique characteristics and identifies.  What, what I 24 

want to ask you is what, if any, would you say would be the 25 
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unique characteristics of Loch Raven/Baynesville that relate to 1 

the, to this case in your opinion? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  In my opinion, I would think that one 3 

of the unique characteristics is that as one of the older 4 

communities we’re now seventy years old, in that general area, 5 

we have worked very, not, not that older, that there are other 6 

older communities that haven’t, but that we’re working very 7 

hard and struggling to maintain that sense of community.  I 8 

think we’re very focused on seeing comm, continual improvement 9 

in these adjacent areas as, as part of that. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right, I’ve got just a few 11 

more questions.  I, I wonder if the witness could be given 12 

Protestant’s Exhibit 4, the master plan 2020?  And let’s give 13 

the Board back People’s Counsel four. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That was Protestant’s number four? 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  Now, I’d like to talk about, 16 

or ask about Protestant’s number four.  And I believe there was 17 

some question about it by Mr. McCann, so I’m hoping not to, to 18 

repeat.  Okay.  So, this begins on page one thirty-three, are 19 

we all on the same wavelength here? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Um hm. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, let’s go to page one thirty-nine, 24 

bottom left paragraph, beginning with the words to remain 25 
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viable.  What, if you look at that paragraph, what’s your 1 

observation, if any, as to whether this proposal fits with the 2 

master plan concept of attracting new and different uses? 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m going to object to 4 

the question.  He has provided no basis for an opinion and 5 

that, and that is far afield, even for a community 6 

representative.  He’s asking for, essentially, compatibility 7 

with the, the master plan.  The master plan speaks for itself.  8 

And there’s been no basis for an opinion that’s been set forth 9 

and he’s not an expert witness.  So, I object to the question. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  One doesn’t have to be an expert to, 11 

to provide –- 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Sometimes it’s quicker to just have 13 

the witness answer the question then to fight over it.  We, we 14 

understand the witness’ limitations, I guess, with regards to 15 

such opinions. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you. 17 

  CHAIR:   We, we, we do get that.  So, with that in 18 

mind, Mr. Moulder, can you, you’re, you’re familiar with the, 19 

with what the master plan says about this area? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 21 

  CHAIR:  Okay and your community defers to the master 22 

plan often, I take it, in, in your determination as to 23 

positions you take on these matters? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  I would say yes, I, I’d say that it’s 25 
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one of the first things we looked at when we heard from 1 

Councilman Marks, maybe last September, that this proposal was 2 

in the offing.   3 

  CHAIR:  Right, and I’m guessing that it’s your view 4 

that this is not compatible with the master plan? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Okay.   7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what, what would your reasoning 8 

be?  What were your, your main concerns about that?   9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Our main concerns, there, there, there, 10 

there are many but the preponderance of auto service uses in 11 

that district today, the conversion of what was, what is a 12 

Class B office building into another auto service use that was 13 

converted, that we converted from twenty years ago and the 14 

community, the Loch Raven Business Association, all supported 15 

that conversion at the time because it was an improvement to 16 

that prominent intersection and also the proximity to some of 17 

the residential areas and concerns about, residents have 18 

expressed about noise, traffic, etcetera. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Just, I think, probably just 20 

one more question in line with that.  Take a look at page one 21 

forty, the top right.  I’m going to quote and then ask you a 22 

question.  The districts like community enhancement areas 23 

should be the, quote, front door to the residential 24 

neighborhood and help establish the overall (inaudible) of the 25 
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community, unquote.  What relevant, if any, does that have to 1 

your observations of this intersection as a gateway? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, we, we, you know, I think we 3 

agree with that part of the master plan and I think we worked 4 

with, actively with the State, for example, on enhancements to 5 

Loch Raven Boulevard.  I think if you drive up and down Loch 6 

Raven Boulevard, you’ll see a median strip that’s brick and 7 

trying to make sure that that, that intersection and that 8 

corridor are, you know, an attractive entrance to our 9 

community.  We, we totally support that, that’s why we’re here. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That’s all I have, Mr. Chairman. 11 

  CHAIR:  Thank you.   12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I will have questions for him. 13 

  CHAIR:  You do? 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes.   15 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I haven’t had a chance to question 17 

him yet.   18 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  You’re not being prevented from 19 

anything. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  All right.  I thought that maybe you 21 

thought that I had already asked him questions. 22 

  CHAIR:  No, I, no, I, I realize you haven’t.   23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Should I go first or not, does it 24 

matter? 25 
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  CHAIR:  Well, you asked questions on direct, so I 1 

think you should, I think Mr. La Fiandra gets to go at this 2 

point.  Let, let me just ask for scheduling purposes, where, 3 

where are we here today? 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I’m very hopeful we are going to 5 

wrap up today.  I thought that we would be less than hour but I 6 

see that we’re coming up on two already.   7 

  CHAIR:  All right. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, my understanding of things was 9 

that Mr. Moulder was Mr. McCann’s last witness.  I, I, oh, 10 

pardon me, -- 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  One more short witness. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- one more short witness after 13 

that. 14 

  CHAIR:  All right. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Very short. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I have one witness. 17 

  CHAIR:  You have one witness and is your witness –- 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Will not, should not be that long. 19 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, -- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not, certainly not, not near as long 21 

as –- 22 

  CHAIR:  As Mr. Moulder.  So, -- 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And just so you know, I don’t have 24 

any witnesses.  I don’t anticipate having a sur –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Any rebuttal. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- rebut, rebuttal case or anything 2 

like that. 3 

  CHAIR:  Right.  Yes, sir? 4 

  VOICE:  My name is John (inaudible).  I came to the 5 

April meeting.  I would like to make comments (inaudible) if 6 

possible. 7 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  That will be possible, okay?  Just 8 

make sure you’re here.  So, in, in terms, I guess we’re going 9 

to have to break for lunch at some point, is that, or are we 10 

going to be done, let’s say, by 1:00? 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, I don’t anticipate having more 12 

than fifteen minutes of questions for Mr. Moulder. 13 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  All right. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And then I don’t know about the 15 

other witnesses.   16 

  MR. MCCANN:  If it’s the Board’s preference, I say 17 

we, we push on. 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay, yeah, it would be my personal 19 

preference. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  I think (inaudible) what, five, ten 21 

minutes maybe? 22 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  Okay. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  If that’s okay.   24 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, okay.  All right.  So, so, can we take 25 
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a five minute break? 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 2 

  CHAIR:  How’s that? 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Absolutely. 4 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Very good. 6 

  CHAIR:  So, we’ll be back at 11:56. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you. 8 

  CHAIR:  Or 11:51, I’m sorry. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Eleven fifty-one.  I’ll be –- 10 

(RECORDING PAUSED – 11:43:47 AM) 11 

(ON RECORD – 11:54:11 AM) 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  We’re back on the record and Mr. 13 

Moulder, you’re still under oath. 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Thank you. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Mr. Moulder, you testified on 16 

a wide range of issues and I don’t intend to ask you questions 17 

about all of them but there were a few things I wanted to go 18 

back to.  The first, when, when did you first learn about this 19 

proposal? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe it was September 2018, -- 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Less, less than a year ago? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, less than a year ago. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  How, how did you learn of it? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  I learned about it from Councilman 25 
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David Marks. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And what did he tell you about it at 2 

the time? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Simply that there was a proposal to 4 

demolish the, what was the 1st Mariner Bank building at the 5 

corner of Loch Raven and Joppa and replace it with a Valvoline 6 

Quick Lube, I think. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  At that time, did he tell you that 8 

my client and I met with him? 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t recall, I’m sorry. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and then you, you, did, you 11 

received notice, did you not, of the Design Review Panel 12 

meeting? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, to speak, would that be your 15 

first official notice that, of the, of the process in, involved 16 

in this? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And you went to that meeting, is 19 

that correct? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  I did. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And you saw my client and I there?  22 

Mr. Kazazian? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, I think, I think so. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And do you remember seeing me there? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, and there were other members of 4 

your community there, Mrs. Krach, I believe, and there was, I 5 

don’t know if she’s, she’s another community representative. 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, Janice Krach was there. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yeah. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe Leslie Noff and Bruce Noff 9 

(phonetic) were there. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes.  The, do you remember that I 11 

offered to meet with you at that time?   12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And we were never able to meet? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.   16 

  MR. MOULDER:  We had scheduling issues, I believe, as 17 

well as just, you know, whatever. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  As, what, what is whatever? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  And, you know, we, we felt like we’d 20 

made the decision to oppose the proposed project. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, so how many times would you say 22 

that I reached out to you to discuss the project? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I can’t recall exactly.  I’d say it 24 

was, we had probably a couple of phone calls and a couple 25 
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inter, e-mail exchanges maybe. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you.   2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Something –- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, the, and there were other, 4 

ultimately you decided you did not want to meet with us because 5 

you didn’t want the use at that location, is that correct? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And by the use, I mean a, an oil 8 

change facility.  9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Auto service facility, -- 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Or auto, auto service facility. 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, you mentioned that you, so you 13 

never had an opportunity to tell us what about the use you 14 

didn’t like or other design features that we could have changed 15 

to accommodate you because you wouldn’t meet with us, is that 16 

correct? 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Objection. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  It’s a question.   19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I mean, I don’t see the relevance. 20 

  CHAIR:  Well, overruled. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  We didn’t, we did not have an 22 

opportunity to tell you that, no. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, obviously Valvoline had 24 

no opportunity to respond to you? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Now, you did meet with some 2 

other people who have developed in the area over the years.  3 

You mentioned you were involved with the Starbuck’s.  I think 4 

you mentioned you were involved with the Wawa, is that correct? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And were you involved with the 7 

Sonic? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  We were. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, sticking with, do you view 10 

Starbuck’s as an auto use?   11 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you know how many trips per day 13 

Starbuck’s generates? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Or per hour? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And when you’ve been over by the 18 

Starbuck’s have you noticed that cars stack into the road 19 

sometimes when they’re trying to turn into the Starbuck’s? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  How frequently does that happen? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I couldn’t, I couldn’t tell you.  I 23 

mean, I’m there occasionally but I don’t, I don’t know how 24 

frequent that is. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The –- 1 

  CHAIR:  Is, is the entrance to Starbuck’s on Loch 2 

Raven or is it on Joppa? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Both. 4 

  CHAIR:  Both, okay –- 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, -- 6 

  CHAIR:  -- and the exit is on both also? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Both. 8 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, the, sticking with the 10 

Starbuck’s, that has a drive thru, doesn’t it? 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  It does. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Is it a two lane drive thru or one 13 

lane drive thru? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Single lane. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Single lane.  Have you ever waited 16 

for coffee there at the, in the drive thru?  Have you cued up? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  You have? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  How long does that take? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  I think it depends time of day but –- 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  What’s the longest it’s taken? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Five minutes, maybe. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  They’re pretty efficient. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, the, do you, you said yes to 2 

being involved with the Wawa, is that correct? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s where the Bendix building 5 

was, right? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, was the Bendix building, I may 8 

have seen it at some point, I don’t recall, was it an office 9 

building? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe it was an office building.  11 

They also did, I think, some manufacturing there, light 12 

manufacturing maybe, but from, primarily I think it was office 13 

space. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you consider the Wawa to be an 15 

auto oriented use? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t think it’s focused primarily on 17 

the auto use, no. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  What do they, do, I mean, they sell 19 

gasoline there? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  They sell gasoline. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do people typically, people bring 22 

their cars to gas up their cars, yes? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  But other than that, they’re a 1 

convenience store operator, I think that’s their focus.  2 

They’re one of the largest convenience store operators on the 3 

east coast. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you know the size of the 5 

convenience store? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Square footage wise? 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I don’t. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  But I know that they, they serve food 11 

there, they have a convenience food location, they make 12 

sandwiches, they have, I am familiar from my career, they have 13 

the most highly developed coffee business in the convenience 14 

store industry at Wawa’s. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, yes. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  I tried to sell it to them for years. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I’m sure.  The, what, what was the 18 

extent, so you mentioned with regard to Wawa that you, the 19 

Bendix building had been vacant for ten to fifteen years before 20 

that, is that right? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe that’s correct, yeah. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And by the way, do you know how long 23 

the 1st Mariner building has been empty? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  I want to say it’s been at least two 25 
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years. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, and you worked, this is, 2 

if, correct me if I’m wrong, but I believe you testified that 3 

you worked with Wawa to match features of the homes in the 4 

community and on lighting and design issues, is that right? 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Objection.  It wasn’t Wawa, this is Loch 6 

Ravens Commons.  He keeps on referring to the Wawa.  The Wawa 7 

is part of Loch Raven. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Loch Raven Commons. 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  What are the other uses in 11 

Loch Raven Commons? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  I think as I previously testified there 13 

is a physical therapy office buil, office, there is a dental 14 

office, Aspen Dental, I’m not sure what the, there’s office 15 

space that’s being located behind the Wawa there next to Loan 16 

Brothers, then the apartments that are going to be built behind 17 

there, behind the office buildings and just north of where the 18 

Glory Days Grill restaurant is. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, you had, oh, and then 20 

the Sonic.  Were you involved with the Sonic? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  I was not involved with the 22 

negotiations with the Sonic myself, but our association was, 23 

yes. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and you’re here speaking on 25 
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behalf of your association? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  I am.   2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, I am on the (inaudible) I was on 4 

the board before, at the last hearing, I’m now the president 5 

because I couldn’t get out of the room fast enough, so. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sorry about that, right.   7 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, everyone else took a step backward and 8 

you were left -- 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  All of a sudden I was the only one 10 

there. 11 

  CHAIR:  Um hm, been there. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, what was the position of your 13 

association with regard to the Sonic? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  We were not in, in favor of another 15 

fast food location there on, on Joppa Road.  We were opposed, 16 

we opposed the Sonic and opposed the, the zoning request for 17 

that, as I recall. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And is that a, would you view that 19 

as an automotive oriented use? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  That is, but to be clear, 22 

that is the type of use where people drive in, park their car 23 

and then eat in their car after the food has like been 24 

delivered to them, is that right? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Either that or they take the food to 1 

go, yes. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.   3 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s fast food. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Often times, people are driving to 5 

that location? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct, yes. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and then they’re obviously 8 

driving away from it as well. 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, no, nobody is walking to Sonic 10 

pretty much (inaudible). 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, you mentioned about the, 12 

the motels.  And I don’t mean to put words in your mouth but 13 

did I hear you say the first time you testified, which was two 14 

months ago, so, but you’re, you, I believe you said you were 15 

hoping that those hotels failed, those motels failed?   16 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I could have said that, yes. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and you, in fact, that, that 18 

would not be a bad result for you? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, if they were gone, I would, it 20 

would not bother me in the slightest. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, with regard to the Hooter’s that 22 

just went out of business, would you share your opinion of 23 

that, that you would hope, you, you’re somewhat happy that it 24 

failed? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  I mean, not, I’m pretty indifferent as 1 

to the, the Hooter’s.  It’s never been, we, the, I would say 2 

that the Hooter’s had never presented issues for our 3 

neighborhood.  I think just maybe my personal opinion is that 4 

in the current environment there’s an opportunity for something 5 

that would improve the area to go in there instead of the 6 

Hooter’s, but. 7 

  CHAIR:  Where, where is actually the Hooter’s?  I’m 8 

sort of –- 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I believe it was shown, I don’t want 10 

to –- 11 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, where, where’s, where is the Hooter’s? 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yeah. 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s on the north side of Joppa Road, 14 

kind of right across from the McDonald’s there. 15 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, -- 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  It used to be a nightclub –- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Rascal’s. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Rascal’s night club.   22 

  MR. MCCANN:  He knew right away what it was.   23 

  MR. MOULDER:  We know where Peter was spending his 24 

time.   25 



90 
 

  CHAIR:  It’s not where Kaos was though? 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, no. 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, Kaos was in the back up Orchard 3 

Tree Lane and then that is actually one place that we were 4 

happy went out of business, so. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, -- 6 

  CHAIR:  I mean, I’ve only heard of Kaos, I’ve never 7 

actually been there.   8 

  MR. MOULDER:  (inaudible). 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s been a while since Rascal’s 10 

closed. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you know what my client’s 12 

investment in the 1st Mariner property and this entire project 13 

is? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I don’t know specifically what the 15 

entire project is.  I, I saw the property listed for something 16 

in the neighborhood of $1.65 million. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Were you here when he testified that 18 

his budget for the project is $3.2 million? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, I think I was, but I didn’t recall 20 

that, sorry. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  That’s okay.  The, and is 22 

that not the type of community investment or reinvestment that 23 

you are looking for as part of the master plan? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, I, I, I think we’d, we’d love to 25 
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have people invest money in the commercial revitalization 1 

district as long as it’s consistent with the goals and 2 

objectives of the master plan and the commercial revitalization 3 

district, yes. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And just sticking with that point 5 

for a moment, just so I understood your testimony correctly, 6 

your primary issue with regard to the master plan is that this 7 

is one of, this would be another auto related use in, in the 8 

area that we have discussed as the neighborhood? 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Objection.  I think that’s not what 10 

the witness said. 11 

  CHAIR:  Well, overruled.  I mean, if that’s not, he, 12 

he can answer no, you know.   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  I would say that’s, that’s, that’s 15 

part, part, part, part of our objection.  I think it, again, 16 

we’re looking to insure that the uses in the district are 17 

consistent with the master plan and the goals and objectives of 18 

the commercial revitalization district, as well as to preserve 19 

what we con, concern, or what we recognize as improvements to 20 

the district going back to 1999 where it was converted from the 21 

Crown Gasoline Station to Class B office space. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  We felt like that was an improvement 24 

and we don’t want to see a step backwards. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, through, I, I’ve seen you 1 

present at most, I think all of the hearings.  Have you been 2 

at, to all the hearings? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  I have. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, and there was the, there 5 

was the one night, you were at the Administrative Law Judge, is 6 

that correct? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And you were also at the Design 9 

Review Panel, as we said earlier? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you recall that in the context of 12 

the discussion of this being a gateway that –- 13 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Which, which (inaudible) are you 14 

talking about? 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Oh, this is, pardon me. 16 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You said, does he remember.  Is this 17 

the Design Review Panel or the ALJ hearing? 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you for asking.  The, the 19 

Design Review Panel. 20 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes, just with regard to the Design 22 

Review Panel, do you remember there being a discussion of the, 23 

there being a monument sign in the front of this property to 24 

welcome people to the Loch Raven community? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  There was a discussion about that, yes. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And do you remember, what is your 2 

position on that?  Would, do, do you want to see that? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  The, the ques, I think the question 4 

would be what would be on the sign.  I think the proposal was 5 

like welcome to Loch Raven and as you can see from some of the 6 

verbiage on all these different documents, that’s kind of a, a 7 

soft target there and that, you know, there’s Loch 8 

Raven/Hillendale, there’s Loch Raven/Baynesville and all these 9 

different areas.  So, something, Loch Raven is not, I mean, 10 

it’s, it’s a big name around here, you know, Loch, you know, it 11 

could refer to the Loch Raven Res, you know, Watershed. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure. 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  So, we weren’t, we weren’t quite sure 14 

what the, the reference was and –- 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  But you never asked us about that, 16 

is that correct? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, I don’t believe we did. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  You never asked us for clarification 19 

at that point? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Or asked us to change it? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and would it surprise you to 24 

know that Councilman Marks asked us to put that sign on the 25 
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plan? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, I guess not. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and –- 3 

  CHAIR:  Now, you know that’s not evidence, that 4 

Council Marks, Councilman Marks did ask to do that? 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I understand. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’m, yeah, -- 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- I’m not aware that he did or didn’t 10 

so. 11 

  CHAIR:  All right. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, how long as the Royal Farms 13 

been there on Joppa Road? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  I can’t say with certainty but it’s 15 

been, it’s been quite a long time, yeah.  The property used to 16 

belong to the Hollenshade family, as a matter of fact. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And were you, did you live in the 18 

neighbor, did you live where you currently live when that was 19 

switched from the Hollenshade family to Royal Farm? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I did.  The Hollenshades sold it to 21 

the Royal Farms business entity a few years ago.  They, Royal 22 

Farms had been leasing it.  Mr. Hollenshade, they had an option 23 

to buy at the end of that lease agreement and so they ended up 24 

selling it to them.  I, I’m guessing five or six years ago. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And so, that went from being an auto 1 

use, the Hollenshade Auto Service –- 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s not where, no.  Hollenshade –- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s not where, where it was? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  --  (inaudible) located, Lee just owned 5 

the property, Mr. Hollenshade, I should say. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  What was there before? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t remember what was there before. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did you take a position on the Royal 9 

Farm at the time? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t recall. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.   12 

  MR. MOULDER:  I mean, that’s a long, long time ago. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, thank you.  Thank you, I 14 

appreciate your time. 15 

  CHAIR:  Mr. McCann? 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, just a couple follow-up.  Maybe I 17 

want to try to simplify some of what you talked about with 18 

respect to Mr. Zimmerman’s questions and Mr. La Fiandra’s 19 

questions and maybe keep it simple.  Am, am I correct it’s your 20 

opinion that there’s a lot of commercial uses in this corridor 21 

that have been around for a long time that aren’t today 22 

necessarily consistent with the commercial revitalization 23 

district and its goals? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You mentioned some of those.  1 

Would, would those include even some of the, the automobile 2 

service establishments and fast food establishments that we’ve 3 

been talking about? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, I think that, you know, we’d like 5 

to see improvements in terms of, you know, walkability and, 6 

like I said, variety of uses other than that –- 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, a lot, so, I’m sorry.  So, a lot of 8 

those uses, fast food, automobile service, even some of the, 9 

the Royal Farms for instance, a lot of those uses if they were 10 

proposed today post commercial revitalization district, you 11 

would not support, you and the community would not support 12 

them, is that fair? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, I, I think it’s, we, we’d assess 14 

each one individually but I think that’s, that’s correct.  We’d 15 

be looking for some different uses maybe. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and in terms of all those 17 

commercial uses that have been around for a long time, even 18 

though it’s pre commercial revitalization district, that really 19 

hasn’t changed in the last twenty years? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  There’s always been a lot? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But then again, there have been, 24 

and you’ve mentioned a number of them, there have been a lot of 25 
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positive changes to the district in, in recent, recent memory?  1 

That is, post commercial revitalization district, is that fair? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Among other things, Towson Commons? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Starbuck’s? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yep. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Just, could you clarify why you 8 

didn’t meet with Mr. La Fiandra?  I’m not sure quite, if you, 9 

if you quite said why you would, you did not or would not meet 10 

with him. 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  I think the feeling was that we looked 12 

at the, the design of the building and the use and found that 13 

we felt it would be a step backwards and that we would be in 14 

opposition to that development –- 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- in any case, I mean, it could be, I 17 

mean, I’m sure they design very nice buildings and that kind of 18 

thing but it was, regardless of how nice the building was, we 19 

didn’t think the use was appropriate for that corner. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  With respect to the Starbuck’s, 21 

why, if you could explain, why is the Starbuck’s okay, even 22 

though it, when I say okay, you, you believe it’s consistent 23 

with the district, even though it has some increased traffic?  24 

Explain why that is. 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Well, I guess, you know, from, from my 1 

experience, Starbuck’s, you know, has an upscale image that 2 

would project to the area that surrounds it.  We, you know, one 3 

would hope and we, we thought that would be beneficial to the 4 

community to, to see that there.  We had, the, the Starbuck’s 5 

was previously located down in the Ravenwood Shopping Center, 6 

not very prominent, you know, next to the bank and the Giant 7 

there and they closed that one and opened the one there where 8 

the former Bel Loc Diner was and we thought that was a, a good 9 

addition, so. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, the, the, the Starbuck’s that’s 11 

there, in your opinion, does that achieve some of the purposes 12 

of the commercial revitalization district?  Some of the ones 13 

we’ve been talking about? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe so, yeah.  It, it’s different 15 

from the other fast food locations in terms of the things that, 16 

the, the offerings it has and the, and the image that it has, 17 

yeah. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  That’s all I have.  Thank you 19 

very much.   20 

  CHAIR:  Mr. Zimmerman? 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, following up on –- 22 

  CHAIR:  Remember this is rebuttal, right?  23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I get –- 24 

  CHAIR:  So, this is limited to what was on cross. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I have that exactly (inaudible). 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, as far as the Starbuck’s goes, do 3 

you know whether or not that required a special exception or 4 

there was ever any special exception review on that one? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I, I don’t recall. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, so, so to the best of your 7 

knowledge, it, that might have been permitted by right? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, and just briefly, in terms of 10 

visual comparison between a Starbuck’s and a Valvoline, would, 11 

you know, how do you, how do you view them?  Which is better, 12 

which is worse? 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m going to object. 14 

  CHAIR:  Well, yeah, well, that’s like do you like 15 

vanilla or chocolate.   16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, -- 17 

  CHAIR:  That’s really just an idiosyncratic –- 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I know.  All right.  (inaudible) the 19 

Towson Commons, I happen to have, I guess this is People’s 20 

Counsel twenty-three.   21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Can I ask a clarifying question?  24 

Because I heard him refer to Towson Commons earlier but do you 25 
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mean Loch Raven Commons? 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, did I, yeah, my, my fault.  Loch 2 

Raven Commons. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Sorry.  Thank you, Mr. La Fiandra.  5 

Loch Raven Commons.   6 

  CHAIR:  Thank you, counsel. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Let’s see.  I’m not going to spend a 8 

lot of time on this but.   9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  This resolution number twenty-11 

five fourteen, adopted April 7, 2014.  Mr. Moulder, do you 12 

recognize this resolution of initiating the planned unit 13 

development process for Loch Raven Commons? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and does, without going through 16 

it paragraph by paragraph, does that describe the mix of uses, 17 

including the Wawa, the residential an so on and so forth in 18 

the background? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe so. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Has there been any PUD 21 

proposed for the Loch Raven/Joppa intersection to the best of 22 

your knowledge? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And by the way, does the PUD include 25 
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some community enhancement or benefit by –- 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, we’ve gone quite, very 2 

far afield.  I don’t really understand the relevance of the 3 

question. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, Mr. La Fiandra was asking about 5 

the Wawa as if it were isolated from Towson Commons. 6 

  CHAIR:  No, it’s part of Towson Commons.   7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Loch Raven Commons. 9 

  CHAIR:  I mean, Loch Raven Commons. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Loch Raven, excuse me.  So, yeah, so, 11 

so I think we needed to give some context to the Loch Raven 12 

Commons. 13 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  What, what exhibit number is this? 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yeah, is there a number –- 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Twenty-three. 16 

  CHAIR:  Twenty-three. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Twenty-three. 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  That’s all I’m going to, I 20 

mean, the Board can, it speaks for itself, I get that.  So, Mr. 21 

La Fiandra asked you, Mr. Moulder, about, some questions 22 

relating to how much money the Petitioner was spending, whether 23 

it was a million or a million and a half, I can’t remember.   24 

  CHAIR:  I think it was closer to three. 25 



102 
 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Three million. 1 

  CHAIR:  In excess of three, actually. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, what, what, if anything, as far 3 

as you know, is in the master plan that says if a Petitioner is 4 

going to spend several million dollars they can get whatever 5 

they want, can you tell me? 6 

  CHAIR:  Well, that, that, that’s a little 7 

argumentative I think. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  I mean, what relevance, 9 

if any, do you as a citizen see that they’re spending a lot of 10 

money? 11 

  CHAIR:  I, I, I think that’s also -- 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.   13 

  CHAIR:  -- not really germane. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.   15 

  CHAIR:  I mean, it shows that there’s a financial 16 

commitment to the area by Valvoline, doesn’t show anything 17 

more, doesn’t show anything less. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, Valvoline is a profit making 19 

operation. 20 

  CHAIR:  Indeed. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Mr. La Fiandra asked you a few 22 

questions about Councilman Marks, do you remember that? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What, if anything, would you like to 25 
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say about whether or not Councilman Marks supports this 1 

project? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I met with David some time ago, with 3 

Councilman Marks.  I, I don’t want to speak for him but it 4 

didn’t seem like this was a project that he felt was consistent 5 

with what he wanted for, I think it’s fair to say, he didn’t 6 

think it was consistent with what he wanted for the commercial 7 

revitalization district.  He did write a letter to the, to 8 

Judge Beverungen but I think was, tried to be very careful in 9 

that, I don’t know if I have the distinction right between the 10 

administrative process and councilman, councilmanic process, 11 

kind of (inaudible) process and there were distinctions and 12 

differences.  But he wanted to make sure that the concerns of 13 

the community were heard. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  That’s all I have, 15 

Mr. Chairman.  16 

  CHAIR:  Anything else? 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Very quickly. 18 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Just with regard to the questions 20 

that you were asked by Mr. McCann with regard to the 21 

Starbuck’s.  The, how long has the Dunkin’ Donuts been there? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s been quite some time. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And there, Dunkin’ Donuts and, 24 

Dunkin’ Donuts or Dunkin’ and Starbuck’s, they both sell coffee 25 
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and other foods.  It’s like, they’re both similar operations, 1 

am I right? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And does the Dunkin’ Donuts have a 4 

drive thru as well? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  They do. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, one of the things that 7 

you mentioned was the predominance of fast food in the 8 

corridor, is that right? 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I guess, yeah. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And yet you, despite the 11 

predominance of food that you identified, you chose to support 12 

the Starbuck’s?   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m going to object in the sense of 14 

Starbuck’s did not require a special exception so I don’t see-- 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Well, he testified that he was in 16 

favor of the Starbuck’s, it was a fact in the record. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s kind of apples and oranges 18 

legally, that’s all. 19 

  CHAIR:  Yeah.  No, well, it’s, both points are well 20 

taken.   21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There was a question, yes, go ahead. 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay.  Can you ask me the question 23 

again? 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, despite the predominance of 25 
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fast food in the corridor that you discussed, you supported the 1 

Starbuck’s when it came in for approval? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. I, and I have some, some 3 

experience with this from my career, which at both Proctor & 4 

Gamble and Smucker’s was primarily serving the away from home 5 

industry so Starbuck’s was a customer, Dunkin’ was a customer, 6 

at both companies. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And –- 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  And I would say the Star, Starbuck’s, 9 

if you segment the industry, has a distinctly different image 10 

and demographic than Dunkin’ Donuts.  So, Dunkin’ Donuts would 11 

skew older, for example, less upscale, no offense to the folks 12 

from Massachusetts where Dunkin’ is really, really popular.  13 

And I think the Starbuck’s, you would view as something that 14 

would have more appeal to younger people, millennials and that 15 

kind of thing, so we saw that perhaps as, or, you know, or, or 16 

in my view, it’s a distinctly different type of coffee and food 17 

operation than Dunkin’. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And McDonald’s sells quite a bit of 19 

coffee as well, is that not right? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe they do. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And the, there’s a McDonald’s in 22 

this corridor as well, is that right? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Were you present for the testimony 25 
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where Mr. Kazazian discussed how Valvoline segments the market, 1 

so to speak, using your terminology that you just used, with 2 

regard to oil changes?   3 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t recall that. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.   5 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t recall. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you.   7 

  MR. MCCANN:  One follow-up? 8 

  CHAIR:  Go ahead. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  I understand your testimony Starbuck’s 10 

is different than Dunkin’ Donuts, but Starbuck’s isn’t fast 11 

food like McDonald’s is, is it?  We wouldn’t put those in the 12 

same category, would you? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  No, no.  McDonald’s would be what we 14 

call the QSR, quick serve restaurant, you know.  Starbuck’s and 15 

Dunkin’ Donuts, to the limited extent would be what we call 16 

limited service restaurant. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’ve never heard them referred to 18 

as fast food restaurants, have you? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  No. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Nothing else.  Thank you. 23 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, okay.  You’re excused, Mr. Moulder. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’ve never seen a witness do that 25 
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before. 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  May I just, on my own behalf, offer 2 

something up? 3 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’ve, I want to thank the Board for 5 

your, your time and your extreme amount of time on this, I 6 

guess.  But I just want to, you know, kind of re-emphasize 7 

from, from our point of view, I think we talked about the fact 8 

that we think that this project would be a step backwards for 9 

our community and, therefore, doesn’t satisfy the County 10 

requirements for special exception.  We, you know, we’re fully 11 

invested in Loch Raven Village.  It’s a diverse community, we 12 

have younger people moving in there.  My son lives in the 13 

village, he was born, you know, not born there but raised in 14 

the village.  My daughter lives in the village, my niece lives 15 

across the street, so from a family perspective, we’re fully 16 

invested.   17 

  There are a lot of older people in the village.  Some 18 

of whom are original owners of these houses, believe it or not.  19 

And it represents, for a lot of them, you know, the biggest 20 

investment they have in their lives and for some of the 21 

younger, the younger people in the village it’s, it’s the 22 

biggest initial investment that they’ve ever made.  When they 23 

buy a house in Loch Raven Village and so, that’s kind of why 24 

we’re here.  That’s what we’re after and I appreciate the Thank 25 



108 
 

you. 1 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, so, I, I think that message is loud and 2 

clear. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  All right, thank you. 4 

  CHAIR:  Okay? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah.  I don’t want to beat a dead 6 

horse. 7 

  CHAIR:  No. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Thank you. 9 

  CHAIR:  Sure.  Mr. McCann? 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, two things.  I have Mr. Hartman 11 

here and I do have his Rule 8 papers.  (inaudible).   12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You go ahead with yours.  No, you go 13 

ahead.  That’s fine. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Before I do that, when I, I was 15 

listening to the CD from the last hearing and I realized that I 16 

was supposed to make copies of Protestant’s Exhibit 20 for you 17 

guys and I never did.  In fact, I may have the original, that’s 18 

twenty.   19 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes, you do.  Do you have an extra for 20 

me? 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  After all that, I didn’t bring my 22 

copies.  How did I do that?   23 

  VOICE:  Aren’t we supposed to be going to a paperless 24 

society?   25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.   1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 2 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Sorry about that.   4 

  CHAIR:  Oh, yes. 5 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Do you, do you swear and affirm under 6 

the penalties of perjury, that the testimony you’re about to 7 

give is true and correct to the best of your knowledge and 8 

belief? 9 

  MR. HARTMAN:  I do. 10 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please state your name, your business, 11 

your address for the record and spell your last name. 12 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Paul Hartman, H-A-R-T-M-A-N.  Address 13 

18 ½ Cedar Avenue, Towson 21286.  And business is Computer 14 

Engineering Group, Inc. 15 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  You can sit down.  Just adjust that 16 

microphone too if you don’t mind. 17 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Sure.  I think we got it.  I also do 18 

radio, so kind of used to microphones.  I get yelled at when I, 19 

people can’t hear.  Sorry. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s okay.  Mr. Hartman, what’s your 21 

affiliation with Towson Communities Alliance? 22 

  MR. HARTMAN:  I’m an at large board member of Towson 23 

Communities Alliance.  I’m a former, or past president of what 24 

at that time was called the Greater Towson Counsel of Community 25 
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Associations or GTCCA.  1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  In fact, that organization was 2 

known for, for a long time as GTCCA, correct? 3 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Correct.  It was the, established in 4 

the early seventies.   5 

  MR. MCCANN:  But Towson Communities Alliance is the 6 

same entity just a different name? 7 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Right.  Rebranding. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Rebranding, okay.  And tell us what, 9 

what I’ll refer to as TCA, what, what do they do? 10 

  MR. HARTMAN:  TCA is an umbrella group that 11 

represents approximately thirty community associations in the 12 

Towson area, roughly between the Baltimore City line and the 13 

beltway on the south and north and from 83 on the west to 14 

Perring Parkway on the, on the east.  But we do have some 15 

communities that are outside of those borders, so it’s not 16 

strictly hard and fact border lines. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  How many members, thirty 18 

associations but how many households does that represent? 19 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Well, we’re, we’re told that Towson has 20 

approximately fifty-five thousand residents.  I would guess 21 

maybe at least seventy-five percent of them are in communities 22 

that submit or that, that are members of TCA and submit, have 23 

delegates that come to our meetings. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and is that how it works?  You just 25 
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mentioned delegates, how does it work? 1 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Yeah, each community has one or more 2 

delegates that come to meetings, they only get one vote 3 

regardless of how many people come to meetings.  But they 4 

designate several people because some people can’t get to every 5 

meeting, so they cast votes as needed at our monthly meetings. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and was there such a vote in 7 

connection with this proposal? 8 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Yes, the, the project was discussed and 9 

the membership voted to oppose it.  Members from Loch Raven 10 

Village, Associates of Loch Raven Village and Knettishall spoke 11 

at that particular meeting. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and are you in both, both you and 13 

TCA, are you familiar with what is proposed? 14 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Yes, and I was here for the second day 15 

of hearings as well. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  And do you live in 17 

Towson, Mr. Hartman? 18 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Yes, Cedar, I mean, yes, Cedar Avenue 19 

now, which is near Towson High School, Towson University, near 20 

York Road for thirty-one years in July.  And for ten years 21 

prior to that, I lived in Loch Hill, which is just south of the 22 

Loch Raven and, and Joppa intersection.  It’s south of Taylor 23 

Avenue, about a block from York, from Loch Raven. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, you’re familiar with the area? 25 
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  MR. HARTMAN:  Yes. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  I have some Rule 8 2 

papers that I’ll give to the Board, I have a copy for Mr. La 3 

Fiandra, of course. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  And these are, there’s three pages to 6 

them and I think they’re self-explanatory. Here’s the original. 7 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you.  8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Copy, copy.  Pete, you want one? 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Sure. 10 

  CHAIR:  And this would be Protestant’s exhibit? 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Twenty-one. 12 

  MS. JOLIVET:  That’s correct.   13 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, I’m going to show Mr. Hartman, if I 14 

could, a copy of that Exhibit 21 and just tell us what that 15 

document is. 16 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Well, this is resolution of the 17 

members, the board of directions, that are authorized to 18 

testify on behalf of the association. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  That’s the first page, what about 20 

the second page. 21 

  MR. HARTMAN:  First page.  Second page is signed by 22 

me that I am a duly elected member of the board of directors. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 24 

  MR. HARTMAN:  And then the third page is our position 25 
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on the, the issue at hand today, Valvoline, that’s all. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  Thank you.  I would move 2 

exhibit, Protestant’s Exhibit 21 in evidence.  Is it, is it 3 

admitted? 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I have no objection to it, no. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, I’m sorry, okay.  Okay. 6 

  CHAIR:  Yes, so it’s admitted. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.  Mr. Hartman, I guess where 8 

you left off was that this sort of last resolution in Exhibit 9 

21 identifies TCA opp, opposition to this proposal.  Could you 10 

explain to the Board why it is that TCA has taken this 11 

position? 12 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Well, it’s, I, the association agrees 13 

with much of Mr. Moulder’s testimony in that we feel that being 14 

in a commercial revital, revitalization district, the point of 15 

that is to improve the mix of uses in the area, to improve the, 16 

the architecture, to increase walkability, none of which this 17 

project does.  In fact, as, as Mr. Moulder said, and I was 18 

planning to say exactly the same thing, is that it is a step 19 

backward to, before the bank building was there it was a gas 20 

station and this is basically an auto, auto, automobile usage 21 

for that.   22 

  So, it, it’s not, it’s not an improvement and 23 

unfortunately, things like commercial revitalization districts, 24 

it doesn’t happen overnight when you designate an area.  It, 25 
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it’s an incremental procedure and, in fact, this, I think it 1 

was twenty years ago that this area was designated as such by 2 

the County Council and as Mr. Moulder testified, there have 3 

been improvements, the, the furniture store, the Loch Raven 4 

Commons, the, the Starbuck’s and, and the, the surgical center 5 

and things like that.  The surgical center back there used to 6 

be Towson Dodge Honda, or Mazda and I had a Mazda and had it 7 

served in that area.  So, that’s a, an improvement over what 8 

used to be there, as just another example. 9 

  So, we just feel that the, that this project is not 10 

in keeping with the, the goals of not only the commercial 11 

revitalization district but there’s also another way to look at 12 

zoning in, in, using transects and this has been designated a 13 

T-5 transect, which is urban center zone, which is different 14 

from traditional zoning where you have DR-5.5 or BL or BM or 15 

whatever for zoning for a particular parcel.  This looks at a, 16 

an area and the T-5 says for, which is designated for the Joppa 17 

Road corridor and the, the section of Loch Raven that again is 18 

stressing mixed use, with a variety of uses, and also emphasis 19 

on walkability and, for example, an auto service place would be 20 

kind of silly to walk to, that’s the whole point, you have a 21 

car.   22 

  So, things like a Starbuck’s, whether it has a drive 23 

thru or not, are places that you could walk to but you need a, 24 

kind of a, a critical mass of those kinds of places in, in an 25 
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area to, to make it walkable and, and that doesn’t happen 1 

overnight.  You have to replace things one at a time and then 2 

you get to a place where people in Loch Raven Village or 3 

what’s, Ridgely Manor, another one of our members, could just 4 

walk up Loch Raven or whatever through street and, and take 5 

advantage of some of these businesses without having to get 6 

into a car.  I think that’s a big plus, especially for people 7 

looking for a home, maybe with families that, that have 8 

children that they could, you know, go to dinner at one of 9 

these places without having to drive.  Parents could have a 10 

drink without worrying about driving.  And, and I think that’s 11 

a very good incentive to, to purchase a home in, in a 12 

particular area. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  Anything else, Mr. 14 

Hartman, or did that cover it? 15 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Yeah, well, I want to also reinforce 16 

the, the gateway aspect of this, the, it’s been touched on.  As 17 

you come off the beltway and head south on Loch Raven, you come 18 

up a big hill and at the top of the hill is the intersection 19 

with Joppa Road and it just seems, from my point of view, I 20 

always end up hitting a red light there, so that’s the view you 21 

get at that light is right now the, the Howard, or 1st Mariner 22 

Bank building and I think it would be, again, going backwards 23 

to have an auto service facility there and that’s more 24 

primarily for the, the people who pass through.   25 
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  That’s a, Loch Raven is a, a vital artery for people 1 

getting downtown to work in rush hour and, excuse me, you know, 2 

it makes it a more attractive area, even if they’re just 3 

passing through.  If they go by there every day, if they’re 4 

looking for a house some day in the future, they might think 5 

that this is, you know, if the other, rest of the, some of the 6 

other commercial areas are cleaned up a bit, this might be, you 7 

know, attractive to them to, to invest in and that keeps 8 

residential communities strong, that’s part of TCA’s efforts is 9 

to try and, and maintain and, and enhance the, the strength of 10 

the, and the stability of communities.  You don’t want to have 11 

people moving out after every, you know, couple of years 12 

because they don’t like it anymore, found out it wasn’t as good 13 

an area as they expected.  Having long term homeowners and 14 

families, that’s, that’s what keeps a great community.   15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I didn’t ask, and I should have, 16 

what TCA’s mission is.  You mentioned something that may have 17 

covered it but. 18 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Well, it, it’s to improve the Towson 19 

area in what ways we can, particularly the residential areas.  20 

Towson has many older areas.  My home in Agreth Manor 21 

(phonetic) is 1953, but the home behind me is 1800 and I’ve got 22 

an 1890 house on one side of me and then Civil War era homes 23 

two houses down.  So, we, we have a great mix of communities 24 

that have been built over different eras, a lot of post-war 25 
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townhouses.  I, I think Loch Raven Village might be, fall into 1 

that category, that each have their own identity and their own 2 

characteristics and that’s what attracted me to Towson.   3 

  I, I grew up in Baltimore City near Memorial Stadium 4 

and that’s what attracted me to the Towson area forty years ago 5 

and when we were looking to upsize our home from the one on, in 6 

Loch Hill, we really wanted to look in the Towson area and, and 7 

that’s when I became involved with, at that time, GTCCA, when 8 

it’s like, well, I have this big investment, I want to, you 9 

know, keep it as a good investment, so. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  Thank you, Mr. Hartman.  11 

No other questions. 12 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Sure. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just a couple of geography questions. 14 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Sure. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What’s the approximate boundary if, 16 

if, if there is such a thing, of Towson east of the downtown 17 

area?  How far does Towson go? 18 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Well, it, it, since there are no 19 

incorporated towns in Baltimore County there is no hard and 20 

fast boundary lines.  Some would put it maybe at Loch Raven, 21 

some maybe at Perring Parkway or somewhere in between.  Just 22 

for our TCA purposes, we would, we use Perring Parkway as the 23 

eastern boundary.  We had Cromwood Coventry is a neighborhood 24 

that’s on the north side of Joppa Road, was a member of ours 25 
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for a while.  They no longer are but because communities drop 1 

in and out occasionally. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Is the beltway the north boundary? 3 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Pretty much but again, we do have 4 

Chatterleigh (phonetic) is outside the beltway, Hampton Estates 5 

and, and they’re members, so we, we do have members outside of 6 

what you might consider the boundaries of Towson. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  South –- 8 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Because they’re concerned, they, 9 

they’re part of the area and they’re concerned with what 10 

happens.  What happens in the Towson area affects them. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  South boundary? 12 

  MR. HARTMAN:  South boundary is the city line.  13 

Although we, again, we have Bellona Gittings, for example, has 14 

members of their community on both sides of the city line, they 15 

straddle the, the border. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If we just take Towson east of 17 

downtown, (inaudible), do you have any idea of the approximate 18 

population in that area? 19 

  MR. HARTMAN:  No, I don’t, sorry. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just a couple more geography.  You 21 

pointed out that when you get off the beltway at the Loch Raven 22 

exit you’re going uphill to Loch Raven/Joppa intersection, 23 

correct? 24 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Correct, yes. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And then, as you go south, what’s the 1 

slope? 2 

  MR. HARTMAN:  It’s pretty steep.  You could go 3 

sledding on that. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I mean, go, is it a downward slope 5 

once again? 6 

  MR. HARTMAN:  From, from the, Joppa Road if you’re 7 

going northbound it’s downward toward Cromwell Bridge Road and, 8 

and the beltway entrances. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And southbound?   10 

  MR. HARTMAN:  And southbound from there, you come up 11 

the hill and you’re at, at the crest of the hill is where the 12 

Joppa Road intersection is.   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You mean, if you’re coming north, 14 

you’re coming uphill? 15 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Coming north from the Joppa Road 16 

intersection? 17 

  CHAIR:  Coming south. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No. 19 

  MR. HARTMAN:  No, from, to the Joppa Road 20 

intersection? 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 22 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Yes, there is a slight hill that comes 23 

up from the, the businesses south of that. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In other words, you’re going down to 25 
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Joan Avenue and the church and so on and so forth? 1 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Right, correct.  Yes, yeah.  So, that, 2 

the Joppa Road, I believe, was an old Indian trail so it 3 

followed the ridge line and, and then, so both sides of it go 4 

down, yeah. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  One of the reasons it’s so 6 

prominent in our area. 7 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Well, exactly.  But the hill coming up 8 

from –- 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah. 10 

  MR. HARTMAN:  -- or southbound on, on Loch Raven is 11 

extremely steep in that, you know. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thank you, that’s all I have.   13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Nothing, thank you. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  You’re excused, Mr. Hartman. 15 

  MR. HARTMAN:  Thank you. 16 

  CHAIR:  Thank you.   17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  A short witness, I think short. 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay and then Mr. Castro.  Okay. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Mr. Bulkeley? 20 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  You have to stay standing, I have to 21 

swear you in.  Do you swear or affirm under the penalties of 22 

perjury, that the testimony you’re about to give is true and 23 

correct to the best of your knowledge and belief? 24 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yes, I do. 25 
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  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please state your name, your business, 1 

your address for the record and spell your last name. 2 

-Yeah, Jason David Buckley, address that I live at, where my 3 

business is at is 8815 Orchard Tree Lane and my residential 4 

address is 9005 Harford Road in Parkville.  What, I’m sorry, 5 

what was the other information you needed? 6 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Spell your last name. 7 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  What’s your business? 8 

  MR. BULKELEY:  The Orchard Market (inaudible). 9 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Oh, that’s right.  And then spell your 10 

last name. 11 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Last name B-U-L-K-E-L-E-Y. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 13 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  You, you can sit down and just make, 14 

adjust that microphone so we can hear you. 15 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Certainly. 16 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  The recorder can pick you up. 17 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Is that okay? 18 

  CHAIR:  It’s B-U-L-K -- 19 

  MR. BULKELEY:  E-L-E-Y 20 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 21 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yes, sir.  Yes, Your Honor. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  For location purposes, I’m 23 

going to show you People’s Counsel twenty, Exhibit 22-E.  And 24 

more or less in the center of the map, does that show the 25 
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location? 1 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Of my restaurant? 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 3 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yes. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And does it actually name it? 5 

  MR. BULKELEY:  I’m taking a look –- 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If you can find it. 7 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yes, actually, I see it, yes, they do. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, you’re basically from 9 

Joppa Road, you go north on, not, not to be leading too much, 10 

go north on Orchard Tree Lane? 11 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yes. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  How long have you operated a 13 

business there? 14 

  MR. BULKELEY:  The restaurant has been there since 15 

1988.  I have been there since 1990 in the same location. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what has been your function 17 

at the restaurant? 18 

  MR. BULKELEY:  We’re a fully service restaurant and I 19 

am the manager and co-owner along with my ex-wife. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and just to, to clarify, what 21 

would you say as to whether or not it’s a fast food restaurant? 22 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, we’re definitely not fast food.  23 

People stay there all, all day, sometimes I’m hard pressed to 24 

get them out late at night.  We don’t have a liquor license but 25 
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we’ve managed to survive for thirty years and we have quite a, 1 

a presence on the internet as well as in the local community.  2 

People walk across the street when the traffic is not bad to 3 

come to the restaurant and have a nice dinner out.  They, we’re 4 

BYOB.  I think we’re the old, longest sit down restaurant in 5 

the area, longest standing that I know of. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and, and you’ve been here this 7 

morning during the testimony of Mr. Moulder? 8 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, yes, I have.  The, the whole time. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what familiar, to what 10 

extent are you familiar with the concept that a Valvoline is 11 

being proposed at the Howard Bank location at the corner of 12 

Loch Raven and Joppa? 13 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, I had known about it now for about 14 

a month. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 16 

  MR. BULKELEY:  I think it’s pretty common knowledge 17 

that that’s going to, that’s the plan. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and have, actually this morning, 19 

had a chance to look at the site plan? 20 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yeah, very, not, not for a very long 21 

period of time but I, I know, I know where it’s going to be 22 

constructed where the Mariner Bank used to be. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  As an introductory kind of 24 

question, what would be your main concerns and observations 25 
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about the proposal? 1 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Well, as somebody who has owned and 2 

operated a business that’s a sit down business rather than a 3 

drive thru or, you know, a car related service business, my 4 

main concern would be that it supports the, the industry of 5 

vehicles, which seems to be the main problem on Joppa Road.  We 6 

have a huge traffic problem there. 7 

  I recall maybe ten years ago a police officer was 8 

killed in a driving accident in front of my restaurant.  9 

Several of my customers have been involved in accidents making 10 

a left turn out of Orchard Tree Lane.  I know that just the 11 

other week down the road from Hollenshade’s, there was a, a 12 

collision.  Usually every week or two there’s some major 13 

collision at one of the crossroads.  There was a tractor 14 

trailer that overturned a couple of months ago with a pile of 15 

cars on their way to Jerry’s Chevrolet. 16 

  So, the, the vehicle industry is, is, is, is my 17 

concern as well as fast food because they involve vehicles 18 

coming in and going.  I’m not involved in that industry.  My 19 

customers come in cars and they’ll stay there for three or four 20 

hours.  We don’t have a liquor license.  So, so my concern is 21 

the volume of traffic and my business has been impacted over 22 

the past twenty, thirty years because of the enormous traffic.  23 

People are afraid to make that turn to come into my restaurant 24 

because of people coming and going in and out of these fast 25 
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food places.   1 

  I think that’s the problem why Hooter’s closed, why 2 

Rascal’s ended up closing and a lot of places where people, 3 

they just don’t feel like sitting down for any long period of 4 

time, they feel like, you know, this is an old Indian trail and 5 

I don’t think that’s changed since, you know, the Civil War. 6 

People are on the move. 7 

  But there are communities, you know, next door, there 8 

are people that live in houses and I think sometimes they’re 9 

afraid to cross the road to, to enjoy a nice venue like mine 10 

and, and that’s a concern of mine. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  When you say afraid to cross 12 

the road, what, if anything, would you, might you be referring 13 

to in terms of traffic going east on Joppa Road trying to make 14 

a left turn into Orchard Tree Lane? 15 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Either way.  Traffic that comes up 16 

from either the beltway or the city has to go through that 17 

intersection.  So, if I have customers coming from the beltway, 18 

either from the city or from, you know, Harford, the County, 19 

they’re going to be coming up Loch Raven making that right turn 20 

onto Joppa.  21 

  If the traffic increases or the amount of accidents 22 

increases, or, people are, are definitely going to see it in 23 

the news.  I know every time there’s a huge accident and the 24 

news cameras are out there, businesses are featured in the 25 
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background.  I remember the Hess Station, there, there was a 1 

murder over there some time ago and then there was a lawsuit 2 

where the ground water was contaminated, multi-million dollar 3 

lawsuit.  That was in the news and it was always a gas station 4 

and, and, and it was always something involved in either fast 5 

food, gas or franchise.  6 

  My, my business doesn’t get any publicity, hopefully, 7 

like that and, and it’s a good thing for me but I’m concerned 8 

that, that all the publicity, all the fast action, all the 9 

moving, the cars, is, people are going to be afraid to come to 10 

my business and my business has decreased probably by sixty 11 

percent in the last ten to twenty years alone.  I don’t know if 12 

we can stay there much longer.  So, this is my concern and, of 13 

course, I’m not really anybody, you know, I’m one of the, the 14 

last bastions, I guess, of the, a sit down restaurant.  But 15 

then we’ve seen Rascal’s or, and Hooter’s go away.  So, are 16 

there going to be any real restaurants in the future? 17 

  My other concern is in twenty years when we have 18 

electrical cars, electric cars don’t use oil, European, you 19 

know, cities and, and, I just came back from Vietnam and, and I 20 

noticed how their communities are so far ahead of ours.  There 21 

are, you know, flowers planted on the side of the road, the 22 

streets are excellently maintained, they have very few cars, 23 

there’s a lot of pedestrian traffic.  24 

  It seems like to step backwards that we’re talking 25 
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about is, is, is happening again.  We’re servicing these fast 1 

moving vehicles which result in, you know, you know, accidents 2 

and lawsuits and, and, and I’ve seen people, you know, die in 3 

car accidents in front of my restaurant.  This police officer 4 

was killed.  I remember seeing the wreck of the car after I 5 

left the restaurant.  So, I’m concerned about the traffic and 6 

I’m concerned not, you know, just about my own survivability in 7 

this restaurant but in twenty years, you know, where are we 8 

going to plug in our electric cars?  You know, why, why all 9 

this oil and gas and fast food?  This, this is my main concern.   10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Suppose playing devil’s 11 

advocate, (inaudible) given all these problems that exist, who 12 

cares if there’s just one more at the moment? 13 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Well, I think the Court cares about 14 

that and the community does because it all involves loss of 15 

money and even the oil industry is, you know, if, if there’s an 16 

accident or a lawsuit like the Hess Station, they have to pay 17 

out.  Why not find a better location that’s a little bit more 18 

off the beaten track? 19 

  I understand we need to have oil changes but we’ve 20 

got like twenty, probably ten or twenty oil service stations 21 

and gas stations all along Joppa Road.  What, you know, and I 22 

think they’re all listed here.  So, do we need another one and 23 

will Valvoline be able to survive this?  Who knows?  There are 24 

already so many fast food restaurants putting each other out of 25 
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business.  But I’ve been there for thirty years and I’m, you 1 

know, I’m hold, you know, I’m just holding on but that’s 2 

because I’m a private owner, but some franchises that are owned 3 

by big corporations may not be able to take that hit.  It would 4 

be nice to see something stable in the community that lasts. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Is there any, are there any 6 

districts, commercial districts, in Baltimore County near the 7 

beltway that you would hold up as a, something to emulate?  A, 8 

a nicely revitalized district that, that would be a good goal 9 

to, to emulate? 10 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yeah, you know, Towson, the center of 11 

Towson where the roundabout is, is a nice little area.  You, 12 

that roundabout really slows down traffic in the middle of, 13 

middle of Towson.  You have some theaters, and you have some 14 

nice old fashioned shops that are doing quite well.  And I 15 

think the reason is is the traffic has slowed down at that 16 

point.  People want to spend money with local merchants because 17 

they’re not in a hurry to get from one location to another one, 18 

you know, they, they drive at a slower speed, they park, they 19 

get out an eat.  There’s a farmer’s market, I believe, every 20 

Thursday and that attracts a great deal of publicity.  You see 21 

it on television.  That’s the kind of image that I would like, 22 

you know, to emulate.  And I think one that’s survivable maybe 23 

in the next twenty years when we have more pedestrian traffic, 24 

hopefully. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What about Catonsville, for example? 1 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, Catonsville.  I, I, I lived in 2 

Catonsville about twenty-five years ago and I moved away from 3 

Catonsville because of all the traffic and I moved up to Towson 4 

because I thought Towson was more gentrified.  But in the last 5 

twenty years, the traffic patterns changed, my business went 6 

down.  It seems like we’re going backwards but Frederick Road 7 

in Catonsville has a lot of nice little shops, speed bumps in 8 

the middle of the road.  I don’t know of any service stations 9 

or gas stations.  They may be separated from a great distance, 10 

but in the middle, you have good tire shops, coffee shops, you 11 

know, places where people walk and they have a bicycle lane and 12 

they do a 4th of July parade down the middle of the road.  And 13 

that’s been going on, you know, the last twenty years or so and 14 

it’s attracted tourists and college students and it’s thriving.   15 

  I’d like to see Joppa Road become a little bit more 16 

gentrified rather than a, you know, a racetrack or a speedway, 17 

for, you know, vehicles on their way to other destinations. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And, and, and do you happen to know 19 

the speed limit on Joppa Road? 20 

  MR. BULKELEY:  The official speed limit or the speed 21 

limit that –- 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Both. 23 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Well, I, I think it’s probably thirty 24 

to thirty-five, perhaps thirty-five because it’s commercial, I 25 
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think thirty is residential.  But people do speed and that, 1 

that causes accidents I know.   2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  What concern, if any, do you 3 

have relating to environmental issues that may, may occur? 4 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Well, again, I mentioned, you know, 5 

the Hess Station at one point, probably ten, fifteen years ago, 6 

was involved in a lawsuit where the, the, the gasoline had 7 

leached into the ground water and that caused a, a great 8 

problem.  They had to build a park, which is a really nice 9 

little park now.  So, you know, again, it’s like the Exxon 10 

Valdez, it, you know, it was a horrible thing but then it 11 

caused legislation.  But I think that’s already been, that’s 12 

already been proved. 13 

  The other issue is, is that if we build, you know, a, 14 

a gas and oil, or an oil service station at the, the, the top 15 

of the hill, we have quite a bit of rain nowadays and, and my 16 

concern is is the reservoir is down here and any, any oil or 17 

any, any, any sort of pollutants could be washed, you know, 18 

down the hill to the reservoir. 19 

  It, it, to me, it just doesn’t seem like the greatest 20 

location.  I, I certainly understand that we need to change oil 21 

but why there in the middle of this, you know, crossroads at 22 

the top of the hill where the oil could go downhill?  I, I 23 

don’t think it could make it, that’s, that would be my primary 24 

concern.  Not that I’m against these gentlemen or anybody else, 25 
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it just seems to me like a very impractical location. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just a couple more questions.  What 2 

about the visual aspect of the oil change operation at that 3 

prominent location? 4 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Well, I’m sure it’s, it’s probably 5 

very, very upscale and very attractive looking operation, 6 

probably a lot better than some of the other oil change 7 

facilities.  But I don’t think, you know, necessarily that 8 

that’s the issue.  I mean, what’s going to happen is people go 9 

up the hill and enter Towson.  The first thing they see is 10 

Valvoline, the first thing they’re going to think is gas and 11 

oil and cars.  So, it’s going to become a point where people 12 

just pass through on their way to other destinations.  13 

  I’d like them to come to a destination like mine 14 

where people can sit down, not drive their cars, you know, 15 

forty, fifty miles an hour, be focused on their vehicles, but 16 

maybe focused on sitting down and, you know, relaxing, enjoying 17 

a nice meal or, you know, taking their time and maybe not being 18 

so focused on being in a hurry or, you know, traveling 19 

somewhere in a car and polluting and, you know, again, twenty 20 

years in the future, who knows, we might have electric cars so 21 

this business may not be there for very long, we don’t know. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  What, given that this is a 23 

commercial intersection, what sort of businesses would you 24 

consider to be the type of businesses that would help 25 
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revitalize the area? 1 

  MR. BULKELEY:  I think something that would stand 2 

out, you know, you’re at the top of the hill and if you have a 3 

flat business, people aren’t going to see it from the top of 4 

the hill.  If you had a building that had diff, multiple 5 

stories where you could actually see a sign on the top, you 6 

know, medical, dental, legal associates, so that the center of 7 

Towson, as you’re approaching from, you know, either the city 8 

or from the beltway would be wow, you know, Towson is a 9 

professional center.  There, with, with services where I could 10 

park my car for three or four hours, talk to my lawyer, go to 11 

the doctor. 12 

  I know York Road, they’re calling it the green mile 13 

because of all the, the cannabis stores down there and, and yet 14 

there’s none on Joppa Road.  Harford Road and Belair Road have 15 

quite a few and these are places where people, medical 16 

marijuana patients can go to get their, their products and 17 

they’ll probably stay there for, for, for an hour or two just 18 

to get in.  That might be one avenue.  And of course, that’s 19 

income and revenue for the State as well, I believe. 20 

  But, but some professional organization like that, 21 

eye clinic, I believe, that took the place of the, the Mazda 22 

service shop, you know, some medical place, something 23 

professional, something to sort of enhance the image of Towson 24 

as being something, again, mixed use.  We keep talking about 25 
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mixed use.  But all I hear is, you know, all these car repair 1 

and oil change facilities and fast food places.  So, mixed use 2 

to me would be do we have a, do we have a bookstore?  We have 3 

Yukazoo (phonetic) there, but it’s just this tiny little, 4 

little place.  We don’t have a, really a bookstore other than 5 

Yukazoo, there’s no new bookstore in Towson that I know of.  6 

Readings and Readings is gone, or maybe it’s still there, I’m 7 

not sure.  But or -- 8 

  CHAIR:  But Barnes and Noble went out of business at 9 

the –- 10 

  MS. JOLIVET:  They closed. 11 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yes, yeah. 12 

  CHAIR:  -- at the, at the circle. 13 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Um hm. 14 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yeah, I was very disappointed and 15 

again, it’s a place where people can sit for hours with their 16 

laptops, not causing accidents, sitting down enjoying, getting 17 

some coffee, having waiters or people attend to you and I, to 18 

me it was a great place to, an employable place. 19 

  CHAIR:  Apparently not though.   20 

  MR. BULKELEY:  I guess not. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  (inaudible)? 22 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Yeah.  And then there was the, the one 23 

in Belvedere Square that went out of business, that was my 24 

favorite.   25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The Ivy is still there, right?  Do 1 

you know if the Ivy –- 2 

  MR. BULKELEY:  I believe, yeah, I, I think so.  But 3 

it would be nice to see something like that.   4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIR:  I think the one at Belvedere Square, I think 6 

that person fled to Switzerland, if I’m –- 7 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, really?  Must have been very 8 

lucrative, or not. 9 

  CHAIR:  Not particularly legal. 10 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, really?  Oh, I did not know.  11 

Well, a legal bookstore would be a good option. 12 

  CHAIR:  Well, I think, the, the books were legal. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 14 

  MS. JOLIVET:  The books –- 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Almost done.  What relevance, if any, 16 

is there that there’s a lube operation across the street?  In 17 

other words, at the south east corner of Joppa and –- 18 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, on the other side of the road to 19 

the proposed location? 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, right across, yeah. 21 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Oh, it’s very prominent.  I mean, it’s 22 

obvious what that, that, that location does.  As a matter of 23 

fact, right in front of my restaurant we have a, an all tune 24 

and lube or Munro Muffler and there, they do oil changes there 25 
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too.  There’s no place where you can’t get an oil change, so, 1 

you know, I’m mystified why we need another one.  I mean, you 2 

know, unless you want more volume of cars, which we don’t need.  3 

It’s nice to have such a facility but I’m just saying perhaps 4 

the location is, is not ideal. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  I don’t have any 6 

further questions, Mr. Chairman. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Nothing, thank you. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Nothing, thank you. 9 

  CHAIR:  Thank you. 10 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Thank you. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Bulkeley.   12 

  MR. BULKELEY:  Thank you. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you very much. 14 

  CHAIR:  Any more witnesses from counsel? 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  No. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  None from me, thank you. 17 

  CHAIR:  No?  Okay.  Mr. Castro?   18 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Do you swear and affirm under the 19 

penalties of perjury, that the testimony you’re about to give 20 

is true, correct to the best of your knowledge and belief? 21 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Yes. 22 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please state your name, your business, 23 

your address for the record and spell your last name. 24 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Sure.  My name is John Fiastro, Jr. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Is that J-O-H-N? 1 

  MR. FIASTRO:  J-O-H-N, that’s right.  I’m not a 2 

Jonathan.  John Fiastro, Jr., John Carl Fiastro, Jr., 1500 3 

Dellsway Road, Towson, Maryland 21286.  I am a lobbyist 4 

registered with the State of Maryland.  I work for Greenwill 5 

Consulting Group.  And as a matter of disclosure, while I’m a 6 

member of the Associates of Loch Raven Village Board, I was not 7 

a member at the last convening of this Board to hear this case 8 

and my views do not represent in any way, shape or form the 9 

opinions, visions or interests of the Board but these alone are 10 

mine. 11 

  CHAIR:  What, can you spell your last name for us? 12 

  MR. FIASTRO:  F as in Frank-I-A-S as in Sam-T as in 13 

Tom-R-O. 14 

  CHAIR:  F-I? 15 

  MR. FIASTRO:  A-S-T-R-O. 16 

  CHAIR:  I think I’ve been mispronouncing your name, I 17 

apologize. 18 

  MR. FIASTRO:  No, that’s fine, that’s fine.  It’s, 19 

you know, it, more often than not I hear fiasco, so yours was 20 

welcome, frankly. 21 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Go ahead. 22 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Thank you very much.  Good afternoon, 23 

now, members of the Board.  My name is John Fiastro, as I had 24 

mentioned.  I do reside in Loch Raven Village and I have no 25 
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opposition, in fact, I support this project.  It’s a massive 1 

amount of money and a massive amount of investment.   2 

  I do own several properties in the Loch Raven area.  3 

In fact, I own four properties, three of which are in the 4 

Ridgely neighborhood, 8614 Chestnut Oak Road, 8543 Chestnut Oak 5 

Road, owned through an LLC and 8553 Wateroak Road, which is 6 

person, personally owned.  All of them are rental properties. 7 

  The reason why I bring that up is one, is that I too 8 

am invested to (inaudible) close to $700,000.  The first 9 

property that I mentioned is 8614 Chestnut Oak Road.  In fact, 10 

is in close proximity, it may even be the closest in proximity 11 

residence to this property.   12 

  Between my property, 8614 Chestnut Oak Road and the 13 

Valvoline proposed project, is a gas station, a, a, excuse me, 14 

gas station, a car wash, Captain’s Car Wash and Ridgen 15 

Automotive.  So, there are three automotive, it should be noted 16 

though, that each of these automotive, automotive businesses 17 

are unique in their delivery of services to customers.  And so, 18 

I think that over the last couple meetings we’ve heard that, 19 

that, that there is already a full saturation of businesses, of 20 

automotive businesses within the corridor.  21 

  And in fact, while there may be a number of 22 

businesses that serve auto, automobiles, they’re all unique in, 23 

in many ways, shapes and forms.  Some of them offer very 24 

specified.  It was mentioned earlier, I think Mr. Zimmerman 25 
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asked what the businesses of Caspian Motors was.  Caspian 1 

Motors actually has the Mercedes Benz logo prominently 2 

displayed on its signage.  They are a foreign motor, they do 3 

domestic work as well, but they are a specializing, they 4 

specialize in foreign motors.  They, so I think the notion that 5 

one, there is a saturation of automobile businesses is, is, 6 

maybe correct but I would also argue, (inaudible) you could 7 

also argue that every business on Joppa Road is automotive 8 

eccentric because ninety-nine percent of the customers that 9 

participate or use the services or buy goods at those 10 

particular retail locations take a car to get there.  So, I 11 

think that it’s kind of disingenuous to say that there’s a 12 

saturation. 13 

  I think that the unfortunate extension of that line 14 

of thinking is this.  Is that once you suggest that there’s a 15 

saturation, then the question to this Board is please establish 16 

a monopoly, close a door and forever block the inclusion of any 17 

more automotive businesses and I don’t think that’s what the 18 

charge of this Board is to do.  There are -- 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I move, I move to strike this kind of 20 

legal conclusion and argument.  It’s, I think –- 21 

  CHAIR:  Well, it’s just his, his lay view of the 22 

situation. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I mean, that’s kind of, more lobbying 24 

than testimony. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Indeed.  But, you know, we’re here to hear 1 

what he has to say.   2 

  MR. FIASTRO:  So, there are questions also about the, 3 

the types of business that are to be included within, within 4 

the corridor and I don’t think, you know, one man’s treasure is 5 

another man’s trash or vice versa.   6 

  CHAIR:  Let, let, let me interrupt for, for one 7 

second.  We need to take a quick break. 8 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Sure. 9 

  CHAIR:  Five, five minute break, if we could?  That’s 10 

acceptable with everyone?   11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s fine, thank you. 12 

  CHAIR:  For the Board’s convenience.  So, don’t go 13 

away. 14 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Okay, sure. 15 

(RECORDING PAUSED – 01:09:09 PM) 16 

(ON RECORD – 01:18:46 PM) 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you.  Thank you for that.  Okay, 18 

we’re back on the record and you can continue –- 19 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Thank you, Mr. Chair. 20 

  CHAIR:  -- your, your testimony –- 21 

  MR. FIASTRO:  And I’ll wrap up. 22 

  CHAIR:  -- and we apologize for that brief delay. 23 

  MR. FIASTRO:  No, it’s fine.  It’s fine, it’s fine.  24 

I was on the point of saturation and, and, and Mr. Zimmerman 25 
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did (inaudible) I’d like to clarify something.  Mr. Zimmerman 1 

insinuated that I was lobbying.  Just to clarify, make sure the 2 

Board understands, I’m not here as a lobbyist registered for 3 

Mid-Atlantic Lubes, I’m not under contract with Mid-Atlantic 4 

Lubes.  I’m coming here solely as a citizen, resident and 5 

homeowner of, and property owner within, with, within the area. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  For the record, I wasn’t implying 7 

that.  It was kind of a metaphor. 8 

  CHAIR:  Right, we didn’t, we didn’t take it as, as 9 

so. 10 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Very well.  I just wanted to make sure 11 

it was clarified. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, I wasn’t, I wasn’t implying 13 

anything wrong, it was just metaphorical. 14 

  CHAIR:  Right, right.  What he meant was you’re being 15 

a strong advocate for your position. 16 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Well, hey, listen, man.  I’ve waited 17 

two days, so.  (inaudible) nothing less.  I, I will just say 18 

I’m very supportive of the project.  I think anybody who wants 19 

to spend $3 million close to my house is fine with me.  The 20 

Starbuck’s was a, I, I believe a $7 million investment and if 21 

this encourages more similar type investments on the remaining 22 

two corners, one occupied by Savco, which is another automotive 23 

site, but who, I understand, their lease is up within the next 24 

couple years and Class C office space on the south east corner 25 
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of Joppa and Loch Raven Boulevard.  That is, at this point, 1 

really functionally commercially obsolete at this point.  It’s 2 

not really conformed to any kind of modern standard of office 3 

space. 4 

  And the north west corner, where, where my Vette 5 

actually is, which is Class C retail with limited parking that 6 

is not convenient.  So, if this type of development continues 7 

around that intersection, I think it’s best for the community.  8 

I think it’s hard to envision now, but we don’t know what would 9 

come on those remaining two, on those remaining two corners.  10 

So, I’m supportive of the project, I’d like to see more types 11 

of projects like these and anybody who wants to spend $3 12 

million close to my house is more than welcome to do so.  Thank 13 

you. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you.  Anyone have any questions 15 

for -- 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  No, thank you. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you -- 18 

  MR. FIASTRO:  Thank you. 19 

  CHAIR:  -- for your contribution. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m questioned out.  I do have one 21 

more document. 22 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you, Mr. Fiastro. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  He’s not documented out, but he’s 25 
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questioned out.   1 

  CHAIR:  You’re not documented out, right. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  This is more (inaudible) convenience 3 

but we made a copy of the BL zone, Section 230.  Section 230 4 

through 232-C, the BL zone, we thought it would be convenient 5 

to give it to the Board now –- 6 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- rather than waiting to attach it 8 

to our memo. 9 

  CHAIR:  Thank you.  Should we mark this as an 10 

exhibit? 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 12 

  CHAIR:  Is that acceptable? 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s no problem. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I believe Mr. La Fiandra may have 15 

introduced some, some excerpts.   16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Ms. Jolivet, what, what exhibit is that? 17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  This is People’s Counsel twenty-four. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 19 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you.   20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, I bel, I believe, anyway, 21 

sometimes we introduce these for convenience. 22 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, well, it is convenient.   23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Does everyone –- 24 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  Thank you very much. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And that’s my last document. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, -- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is twenty-four? 4 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 5 

  CHAIR:  -- we, we want to make sure before we close 6 

the record that everyone has offered, actually offered into 7 

evidence the exhibits that have been marked for identification.  8 

If there are any –- 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  For the record, -- 10 

  CHAIR:  -- that are only for i.d. we want to make 11 

sure –- 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There was nothing for i.d. only on 13 

my part. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, I, I would make, I would, just 16 

to be clear, -- 17 

  CHAIR:  Just for the record, everything that you’ve 18 

provided you, -- 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 20 

  CHAIR:  -- if you haven’t already moved it into 21 

evidence you do now? 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes, I do, I do so now, that’s 23 

correct. 24 

  MS. JOLIVET:  That’s Petitioner’s one through 25 
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eighteen, that’s what I have. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes, thank you. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay and the same with you, Mr. McCann? 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes, one through twenty-one is what I 4 

have. 5 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  We have the Board’s list from last 7 

time and everything was, from everybody, I think, was admitted. 8 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, we just want to make sure.  We 9 

don’t want –- 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, I’m pretty sure everything was 11 

admitted. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 13 

  CHAIR:  -- we don’t want any snafu of that sort. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yeah. 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  And one through twenty-four for Mr. 16 

Zimmerman? 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right, one through twenty-four. 18 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 19 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 20 

  MS. JOLIVET:  That’s what I have.   21 

  CHAIR:  All right.  So, I guess that leaves the 22 

question of briefing.  What, what is, what’s the parties’ 23 

preference on that? 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Closing briefs –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Like thirty days, sixty days? 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thirty days, I, I do not see a need 2 

for sixty days.  I would ask for thirty days.   3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  The only thing I would, I have a 4 

horrid July and I’m going away in the middle and I have 5 

something due before I leave, I have something due while I’m 6 

away and I’m, have something due right when I get back. 7 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, the first week of Aug, August. 9 

  CHAIR:  So, you’re talking eight, forty-five days, 10 

fif, something like that? 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Would that be the 9th of August, 12 

that’s like two weeks after, that’s like forty-five days.  It’s 13 

a Friday. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  That would be great. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  August 9th. 16 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, that would be, that’s certainly fine 17 

with us.  Mr. Zimmerman? 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I, I always cooperate on the 19 

scheduling so, no problem. 20 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, I mean, sure, okay. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 22 

  CHAIR:  So, you want to say August 9th? 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Is that okay with you, Michael? 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s great, thank you.  I appreciate 25 
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it. 1 

  CHAIR:  August 9, is that the date? 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Is that a Friday or? 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes, it’s a Friday, August 9th. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  7 

  CHAIR:  Okay and so that will be briefs from the 8 

parties or memos from the parties.  And then we’ll have to get 9 

involved with Sunny to determine a deliberation date. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great. 11 

  CHAIR:  Anything else anyone needs, wants?  Needs to 12 

talk about?  On the record? 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  We can talk about the sandwiches at 14 

the Orchard Tree. 15 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, okay.  All right.  Well, I guess we’re 16 

adjourned then.  Thank you all very much.   17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, good.  Thank you. 18 

  CHAIR:  Appreciate it.  We appreciate –- 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 
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(ON RECORD – 10:26:11 AM) 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, we are now on the record here for, 2 

excuse me?  Oh, yeah, sit down.  For the resumption of this 3 

matter, which is case number 19-070-SPHX.  It’s Howard Bank, 4 

Mid-Atlantic Lubes, LLC.   5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s correct. 6 

  CHAIR:  And we’re here for day two.  So, these are 7 

the exhibit lists here.  That’s already been, oh, that’s from 8 

before. 9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 10 

  CHAIR:  Right, okay.  All right.  So, we’re here for 11 

day two. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 13 

  CHAIR:  And Petitioners will resume.  Let me just say 14 

this and I apologize, we’re now a half hour late and as many of 15 

you saw, we were in a deliberation which took longer than we 16 

had anticipated.  But one thing we do anticipate is concluding 17 

today.  So, I just want to make sure all counsel is aware that 18 

we’re going to try and really keep this focused and we really, 19 

really, really want to get done today, okay? 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 21 

  CHAIR:  All right.   22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Consist with (inaudible) due process. 23 

  CHAIR:  We, we’re not going to violate the 24 

Constitution.  25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you very much.  Your Honor, 1 

Dino La Fiandra, continuing to represent Mid-Atlantic Lubes in 2 

this case. 3 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  If you’ll recall, we were, we had 5 

just concluded Mid-Atlantic Lubes’ first witness. 6 

  CHAIR:  Correct. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Who was Josh Sharon, who is a 8 

professional engineer.  And I’d like to move to our second 9 

witness now. 10 

  CHAIR:  Good.  Perfect. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That would be Randy Kazazian.   12 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Do you swear and affirm under the 13 

penalties of perjury, that testimony you’re about to give is 14 

true and correct to the best of your knowledge and belief? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I do. 16 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please state your name, your business, 17 

your address for the record and spell your last name. 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s Randolph L. Kazazian, III, 19 

Kazazian –- 20 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Can you pick up the speaker there?  And 21 

can you raise, just raise it up because you’re tall. 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Sure. 23 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  There you go. 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Randolph L. Kazazian, III.  Kazazian 25 
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is spelled K-A-Z-A-Z-I-A-N.  I’m the Director of Real Estate 1 

for Mid-Atlantic Lubes.  We’re located at 54 Jackinette 2 

(phonetic) Street in New Highlands, Mass and the zip is 02461. 3 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please take a seat and you can just 4 

lower that mic there so we can pick you up. 5 

  CHAIR:  And please keep your voice up, okay? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  Mr. Kazazian, you 8 

mentioned that you’re with a company called Mid-Atlantic Lubes.  9 

What is Mid-Atlantic Lubes? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, Mid-Atlantic Lubes is an operating 11 

unit of Henley Enterprises and Henley Enterprises is the 12 

largest franchisee of Valvoline Instant Oil Change.  We operate 13 

currently two hundred locations in eleven states.  Mid-Atlantic 14 

Lubes operates from southern New Jersey, Delaware, Maryland and 15 

a store in Virginia at this point, and we have twenty-seven 16 

units. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And there, are there other operating 18 

units of Henley Enterprises that –- 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, so there’s four other units.  20 

There’s one in New England, there’s one in southern Florida, 21 

L.A. and San Francisco. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And altogether, how many enterprises 23 

has two, I think you said two hundred –- 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Two, currently two hundred, two 25 
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hundred operating units. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, and how many operating units 2 

are there for Mid-Atlantic Lubes? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Currently twenty-seven with three 4 

under construction. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and you mentioned that you are 6 

the Director of Real Estate.  Recently, your title changed to 7 

Vice President of Real Estate, is that correct? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And what are your duties as Vice 10 

President of Real Estate? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  My primary duties are site selection 12 

and permitting for new stores, the acquisition of existing 13 

quick lubes and then there’s an asset management component.  We 14 

own about fifty percent of our stores and the other fifty 15 

percent are ground leased and so there’s landlord relations 16 

that go along with that lease, renewals and extensions and 17 

things of that nature. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And how long have you been with, 19 

with Mid-Atlantic Lubes and Hen, Henley Enterprises? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It will be ten years on October 3rd of 21 

this year. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Now, what is a Valvoline 23 

Instant Oil Change?  What is Valvoline Instant Oil Change? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, Valvoline Instant Oil Change is 25 
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essentially a quick lube change.  Where we differ from most of 1 

the competition is that we use pits.  So, we have a full 2 

basement in our facility and the customer stays in the car 3 

through the service, so it’s typically a fifteen minute service 4 

from the time the customer is guided into the bay until they 5 

leave. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, I’ve, I’ve posted on this board 7 

from the Board’s file Petitioner’s Exhibit 8.  So, this is from 8 

the Board’s file.  And I’m just going to move it a little 9 

closer.  If I don’t make it fall.  Okay.  And you should feel 10 

free to approach the board if, if you’d like to but I’m going 11 

to ask you some questions about this site plan, which is 12 

Petitioner’s number eight.  Can you describe, you recognize 13 

Petitioner’s number eight? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And that’s the site plan for the 16 

site that we’ve been talking about? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  What is the customer’s experience 19 

as, as it relates to, or what will be the customer’s experience 20 

once this is, is built in the manner that it’s shown here? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Sure.  So, the customer would enter 22 

the property off of Loch Raven Boulevard.  As they come to the 23 

back of the facility, they’ll be greeted by a customer service 24 

representative.  That representative will ask the customer if 25 
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they visited a Valvoline Instant Oil Change before.  If they 1 

have, they’ll be asked what services or services they’re 2 

looking for that day.  And then they’ll be guided either into a 3 

bay by another technician or they’ll be asked to park behind 4 

one of the four bays until one becomes free.  If it’s a new 5 

customer, they’ll explain that our service, they stay in the 6 

car and what, what services we offer.   7 

  Once the customer is guided into the bay, a customer 8 

service representative will then work with them to tell them 9 

what the manufacturer’s recommendation is for the oil to be 10 

used in that car.  At the same time, our technicians will then 11 

perform a light check, check other fluids, filters and things 12 

of that nature.  Once the oil has been selected by the customer 13 

and the technicians have done some other work, there may be 14 

some other recommendations based on mileage or the condition of 15 

some of the filters.  In that particular instance, we’re often 16 

time trying to educate the customer so manufacturers will 17 

recommend that transmission fluid or power steering fluid or 18 

coolant be changed at certain interval, mileage intervals.  So, 19 

while that customer may have not come to the store today, 20 

they’re at least given that information and they’ve got an 21 

opportunity to do it then or on a subsequent visit to the 22 

store.   23 

  The oil change takes place both on the top and the 24 

bottom side, the top side being where the customer is seated in 25 
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the car.  So, during that service they can witness what’s 1 

happening.  On the bottom side, technician is removing the 2 

plug, any skid plates, those types of things, removing the used 3 

oil.  On the top side, they’re topping off filters and then 4 

ultimately they’re, they’re pouring fresh oil into the crank 5 

case of the motor.   6 

  At the conclusion of the oil change, the customer is 7 

shown the dip stick, and that will show them that there’s new 8 

fresh clean oil in the crank case and that it’s the correct 9 

level.  The customer is then cashed out and then they’ll be 10 

guided out of the, the service center.  Only one car at a time 11 

is guided out of the service center, just because we don’t want 12 

any issues.  So, the technicians coordinate with each other as 13 

the door goes up.   14 

  Once that customer is guided out and banked, the 15 

process starts over.  That technician would close the door, 16 

walk to the back of the bay and then greet a customer and then 17 

guide them into the, to the bay and start the process over. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  What is the range of mechanical work 19 

that you do onsite for any -- 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, we, we, we don’t do any mechanical 21 

work.  So, we do maintenance.  So, we do fluid exchanges which 22 

is oil, coolant, transmission, power steering.  We do wiper 23 

blades, we do tire rotations.  We will do a serpentine belt in 24 

certain cars where it’s, where it’s easy.  But beyond that, 25 
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there’s, there’s, that’s what we’re doing.  So, we’re, you 1 

know, to the extent someone comes in and they have a problem 2 

with that car, we would instruct them to either go to a 3 

dealership or to a trusted mechanic. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And in the same vein, you, do you do 5 

any body work on cars? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We do not. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And do you paint any cars? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We do not. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, if you could tell us 10 

about where you’re going to, how, how you’re going to hire the 11 

employees for this facility.   12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, we, we have a, a, through our 13 

human resources department, we have a, a local recruiter here 14 

who works out of Glen Burnie.  So, he’ll use Indeed and a 15 

variety of other online resources to attract folks and in this 16 

particular instance, we’ll let them know that there’s an 17 

opportunity here at the Towson store.  But the unit itself will 18 

be staffed by both experienced and existing employees.  In his 19 

particular case, there’s a gentleman that would like to manage 20 

this store who lives in Towson.  He’ll be supplemented by some 21 

other experienced employees, as well as some new employees that 22 

we’ll hire. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And just for context, Henley 24 

Enterprises, how many, how many employees do you have, just to 25 
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give us some –- 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, Henley in total has twenty-two 2 

hundred employees. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and do you know how, how many 4 

there will be at this facility? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I would expect there’d be fourteen or 6 

fifteen, it’ll be a mix of full and part-time employees. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And the part-time employees, how, 8 

how long are those shifts? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They typically can be a four hour 10 

shift, but, but part-time employees, we often get students and 11 

other, kids that go to school or training, they night work an 12 

eight hour shift on Saturday and Sunday as well. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And the training that the employees 14 

get, if you could briefly and concisely go over that because I 15 

think it would be helpful for the Board to understand the 16 

operation. 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, if an employee chooses to, to work 18 

for us, they’ll come in, they’ll have an orientation.  Once 19 

they get through that orientation, they’ll then go to the 20 

service center.  The first week is spent in what’s called 21 

Valvoline University.  So, it’s a, it’s an online training 22 

program that familiarizes with the, with the car and our system 23 

and we use a system called Super Pro.  And that’s how we 24 

complete the fifteen minute oil change. 25 
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  That employee will then apprentice in the store under 1 

a senior technician and will have to gain a variety of 2 

certifications before they can perform certain services on the 3 

car.  Ultimately, an employee, typically over the first ninety 4 

days, would get their tech certification.  That would result in 5 

an increase in pay.  Then they can go on and secure senior 6 

tech, customer service, then move on to assistant manager and 7 

manager and then ultimately a multi-unit manager. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and then, now we talked about 9 

the activities that you’re going to conduct there.  Do any of 10 

those uses or those things that we discussed in terms of the 11 

maintenance work that you do, do they emit excessive noise or 12 

vibration, air pollution from dust, fumes or vapors or gases or 13 

any odors? 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Objection.  Leading question.   15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 16 

  CHAIR:  It’s overruled. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  You can answer the 18 

question. 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  No. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, in fact, have you, is Mid-21 

Atlantic Lubes making an effort to move away from the pneumatic 22 

wrenches that you used to use? 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Objection.  It’s a leading question.  24 

(inaudible). 25 
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  CHAIR:  Well, it’s okay for everyone to ask leading 1 

questions.  You get to ask leading questions as well. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, cross exam is different. 3 

  CHAIR:  Yeah.  Well, if –- 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I try not to ask leading questions on 5 

direct. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, we’ll –- 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m, I’m trying to be 8 

respectful of the, the, the Board’s earlier –- 9 

  CHAIR:  Right, right –- 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- discussion of moving through as 11 

quickly as possible. 12 

  CHAIR:  -- I mean, these aren’t, these aren’t 13 

questions that where the leading nature of the question 14 

undermines the probative value of the question. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I don’t agree with that 16 

actually. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Respectfully.   19 

  CHAIR:  All right. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Especially, you know, are there going 21 

to be bad noises?  No.  You know, is this going to be a 22 

problem?  No.  Is this, you know. 23 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s going to be one after another. 25 
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  CHAIR:  All right. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, I’ve made my point.   2 

  CHAIR:  Well, okay, well, that’s a point well taken 3 

so let’s try and –- 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIR:  -- make it less leading, I’ll say. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  I will do that.   7 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  How many cars per day are you 9 

anticipating servicing? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We anticipate, once it gets up and 11 

running, which typically takes between two and three years, to 12 

service on average sixty cars a day. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And will there be peak days? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Typically, Friday afternoons and 15 

Saturdays are the highest volume days, so I expect, you know, 16 

car count could reach seventy-five, perhaps close to eighty if 17 

it’s a holiday weekend.  And Wednesday typically tends to be 18 

the lowest day and that could be as low as thirty to thirty-19 

five cars. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, Your Honor, may I have 21 

Petitioner’s exhibit number seven?  Thank you very much. 22 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Um hm.   23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is page thirty from 24 

Petitioner’s exhibit number seven.  I’m going to post it over 25 
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here for the witness to refer to.  Now, the, can you see that 1 

okay? 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  This is the, the floor plan, 4 

the foundation floor plan for the basement level of the 5 

facility. 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you recognize that? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, I see that there’s a room 10 

called the tank room? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Can you, can you tell us what 13 

happens in that tank room? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Sure.  So, the, the tank room is a 15 

self-contained room that’s concrete on all sides and in that, 16 

that’s where we have our bulk tank.  So, those tanks in total, 17 

the capacity would be about two thousand seven hundred and 18 

fifty gallons, of which five hundred gallons would be waste 19 

oil.  And oil to those tanks would be delivered just like home 20 

heating fuel is delivered.  21 

  What’s interesting about that room is there is a 22 

(inaudible) fire rated door, but there’s a concrete dike in 23 

front of that.  The floor is coated with an epoxy that rolls up 24 

about twenty-four to twenty-eight inches and that acts as a 25 
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containment area in the event that a tank would leak. 1 

  In the, the tanks are checked each day, as well as 2 

monthly and quarterly inspections that go for the entire 3 

facility that have to do with cleanliness, curb appeal and 4 

things of that nature.   5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, the, the dike that you 6 

mentioned, that’s in the door space? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And how high is that dike? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s about twenty-eight inches and -- 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And is that movable? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  No, it’s block. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That does not move with the door? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  No, it does not. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And the, and you mentioned that 15 

there’s an epoxy that comes up about twenty-four inches around 16 

the whole room? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct, to seal the concrete 18 

floor and the walls. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And what is the function of that, of 20 

that, is that an environmental safety feature? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, yes.  So, we do, we wouldn’t want, 22 

to the extent any oil would spill or there was an oil leak, we 23 

wouldn’t want it to penetrate the raw concrete, so it would 24 

just, it acts as a barrier and then it’s easily cleaned off of 25 
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that surface.  The, the epoxy actually has a silica added to it 1 

so that it’s slip resistant as well. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, is that a fire door? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, it’s a two hour fire rated door. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, are there any other 5 

environmental features of the, of the rest of the basement 6 

area? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, the, the remainder of the 8 

basement, it doesn’t have floor drains, that is sealed as well 9 

with the epoxy.  So, that would be another level of containment 10 

if there was some larger issue with the tank room, as well as 11 

if you have splashing or something happens with a car where it 12 

misses the rolling drain pan that would be under the car at 13 

the, the time of an oil change. 14 

  CHAIR:  You say there are drains or not, no drains? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There’s no, there’s no drains, no. 16 

  CHAIR:  No drains, sorry. 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Just another level of containment. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, how does the oil get in and out 19 

of these tanks? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There is a, on the outside of the 21 

building, just like there would be on a home, there are 22 

multiple connections and those connections are within a box.  23 

That box actually has a, a, it’s containerized and any oil that 24 

would drip would flow to the waste oil tanks that are in the 25 
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tank room.  That’s where it would be captured, so. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And so, those, those boxes that you 2 

were talking about. 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Those are on the outside of the 5 

building? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And that catches anything that would 8 

spill when the tank is being filled? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, during, during the delivery 10 

process if, in fact, there was anything dripped, yeah. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, now you said there are some 12 

waste oil tanks.  Are those, are those D here? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, those two larges tanks are waste 14 

oil tanks. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And how does that oil get off the 16 

site? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  A recycler would typically come once a 18 

week.  They would drop a hose through the closest pit opening 19 

and then bring it over to those, they open the top of that tank 20 

and they, essentially, stick a probe down that, that sucks the 21 

oil out and into the truck where it’s, it goes off to be 22 

recycled. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And how often does that happen? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Typically, weekly. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s about once a week and you 1 

receive oil deliveries for the other tanks about once a week, 2 

is that what you said? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, if, if you know, do you know 5 

what the holding capacity of the tank room is as it relates to 6 

the epoxy that comes up the floor? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I haven’t done the calculation.  8 

The room is sixteen by sixteen, or a little bit bigger than 9 

sixteen by sixteen and then it’s about twenty-four inches but I 10 

don’t think that the room, quite honestly, would hold if every 11 

tank and that’s the reason that the remainder of the basement, 12 

in my ten years, I’ve seen, heard about one tank leak.  They 13 

are checked, they are UL approved, steel tanks.  The three 14 

round circles there are polytanks that hold the coolant and 15 

the, and the windshield washer fluid. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, two hundred stores, ten years of 17 

experience and you recall one tank leak? 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s all I am aware of. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, do, is, do you think that 20 

there’s enough capacity to hold at least more than one tank 21 

failure? 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Oh, I, I would assume, if I did the 23 

calculation, it’s probably forty to fifty percent. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and then outside you said, if 25 
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I, if I heard you correctly, there’s an epoxy floor and does 1 

that come up the, the wall as well? 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It does, it does as well. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And that, that would act as a 4 

separate containment if it were to actually breach the dike 5 

that’s over there? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, it would be secondary 7 

containment. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, now if any of those things 9 

would happen, what is the procedure that the store would follow 10 

to, to clean, to clean up the –- 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, in, in that case, if there was a 12 

large spill, they would immediately contract the, the local 13 

group that we use to evacuate the waste oil.  So, they would 14 

come with a truck and go through the normal procedures and 15 

there would be paperwork that would have to be filed with 16 

Maryland Department of the Environment.  But it would be 17 

cleaned up and recycled. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I see that there is a compressor 19 

room.  It, I assume that’s an air compressor in there? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct.  We use pneumatics to drive 21 

all the pumps to deliver the oil. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and is, can, can you hear the 23 

compressor outside of that room? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  No, that room is vented but it’s also 25 
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insulated.  So, we don’t, because of the customer experience, 1 

we don’t want the customer to hear that.   2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and then, what if there were an 3 

oil spill of some type outside the building, how would that be 4 

handled? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, in, in the, in the, in the service 6 

center, there’s actually a fifty-five (inaudible) drum that has 7 

absorbent materials and a variety of other things that the 8 

store manager, assistant store manager, would use to contain 9 

that while they called someone.  There’s annual training for 10 

that and every employee in the, in the store has to be made 11 

aware and certified with that training. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did you conduct any environmental 13 

assessments to the property before you contracted to purchase 14 

the property? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We did.  We, we got a copy of the 16 

phase one that Howard Bank did in 1999 and then we used Tetra 17 

Check to do another phase one assessment for us. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And were you present at the last 19 

hearing when there was some discussion of, or questioning 20 

whether the property was within the area that was identified 21 

contaminated for the fuel spill that happened up the street? 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I was. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And did your environmental 24 

assessment indicate that this property was in that area? 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It, it did not.  Our, it did not –- 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Objection.  I’m sorry to interrupt. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  We’re talking about an environmental 4 

assessment that we don’t have in front of us that is clearly 5 

hearsay and if we had the opportunity to look at it, I don’t 6 

think he should be talking about an environmental assessment 7 

that he didn’t do that someone else did is my point, Mr. Evans. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, he’s the Director of 9 

Real Estate.  He reads environmental assessments all the time.  10 

And certainly he is capable of relaying how they base their 11 

decision on whether to, to buy the property or contract for the 12 

property. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, that’s a different issue.  I just 14 

don’t want him talking about what the results of that, and I, 15 

I’m not trying to –- 16 

  CHAIR:  No, that’s okay. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  I just don’t think he should be talking 18 

about, about that stuff.  It’s clearly hearsay and he’s 19 

offering it to prove the truth of the matter asserted, which is 20 

that this is, assumedly, a safe site to do this type of work, 21 

so. 22 

  CHAIR:  Well, in, in the, were you involved in the 23 

process, were, were you involved in the decision making with 24 

regard to whether to purchase this site? 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, I was. 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay and what, if any, environmental 2 

assessments do, do you make or does your team make in terms of 3 

whether or not to, well, that you made with regard to whether 4 

or not to purchase this particular property? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, in this particular case, we review 6 

the conclusions.  There’s a team of folks in corporate 7 

development that would review the conclusions from the 8 

environmental assessment and then we would, you know, depending 9 

on what was presented in that, we would decide what risks we 10 

were willing to take. 11 

  CHAIR:  All right and –- 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, I guess the problem with that 13 

question is we’re getting to why they purchased the property 14 

and why they went forward with it.  That, that point in and of 15 

itself is not relevant. So, really what we’re getting out it’s 16 

not relevant to this case at all, (inaudible) to a special 17 

exception. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  May, may I concur with –- 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  It’s background information, so.  My 20 

point, I’m sorry. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  (inaudible) I’m just going to concur 22 

in part because this witness is not an environmental expert.  23 

If he, if they want to show us an environ, phase one 24 

environmental assessment, they want to produce an environmental 25 
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expert that’s one thing.  But for this witness simply to say in 1 

conclusory fashion that the environmental, no environmental 2 

problems, we’ve done the review, that’s not his expertise and 3 

so, so I don’t think that’s competent evidence from the 4 

Petitioner’s side. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  We don’t expect to go much further 6 

with the environmental discussion. 7 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I think whatever has been done 9 

is already not competent. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I, I think where Mr., Mr. La 11 

Fiandra is heading is that to prove some effect upon, you know, 12 

the, under the hearsay exception, some effect upon the hear, 13 

of, of the hearsay and I don’t think that in and of itself is 14 

relevant to this case at all.  So, why should it come in 15 

through that, that backdoor which, you know, -- 16 

  CHAIR:  Well, maybe I’m misunderstanding the point.  17 

I, I, I, I understood the, the point, if it’s an acceptable 18 

one, to be that there were no unusual environmental concerns 19 

that prompted Valvoline not to purchase the property.  Is that 20 

really the point? 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s as far as we intend to go 22 

with that question. 23 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, is that, is that an acceptable point? 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, not really.  Not from this, I 25 
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mean, other than, I mean, it’s acceptable to say that he 1 

doesn’t think there are any problems. 2 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, okay. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s not acceptable to prove that 4 

there are no environmental problems. 5 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, he, he didn’t believe there were 6 

any. 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Could, could I –- 8 

  CHAIR:  And it’s, and it’s within the scope of his 9 

response, corporate responsibilities to flag potential 10 

problems.  He didn’t flag any so he didn’t think there were 11 

any, is that, that’s –- 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Could I offer clarification? 13 

  CHAIR:  Sure, yeah, go ahead. 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, I, I think what Mr. La Fiandra was 15 

trying to ask me is whether or not the spill up the street 16 

impacted this, this property.  It was the conclusion of our 17 

environmental engineer that it had not.  For other people that 18 

know the site and the history of the site, this was a gas 19 

station until it was redeveloped into the Howard Bank in 1999. 20 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   21 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m not sure what relevance that has, 22 

but. 23 

  CHAIR:  I, I’m not sure either. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I’m prepared to move on. 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Just giving you a history. 1 

  CHAIR:  Move on, yeah, that’s okay. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. Now, what about the 3 

building materials that you use, moving back to non-4 

environmental issues. I’m just going to remove this number 5 

seven and this is the site plan, it doesn’t show the building 6 

materials but it gives us a little context, actually those 7 

building materials are reflected right here on number seven.  8 

Is there, this is brick.  Is there, what’s the goal of using 9 

such high quality materials? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  The goal is twofold.  One is reduce 11 

maintenance since brick typically doesn’t have to have anything 12 

done to it for a hundred years.  And second, consistent curb 13 

appeal.  So, also the building, it’s a red brick veneer, but 14 

it’s a block building and the reason we use block in the 15 

interior is because drywall or some of those other materials 16 

aren’t durable enough for some of the, the things that go on in 17 

the, the building, the procedures. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And the roof? 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s a forty year architectural 20 

shingle roof. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, because of the way that you 22 

operate the site and the work that you do, are there any cars 23 

that remain on the site overnight? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  No, no.  Employees would leave and we 25 
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don’t do any repairs so if we can’t perform a service to that 1 

car, the, the customer is asked again, or directed to a 2 

dealership or, you know, to use their trusted mechanic. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Thank you.  Those are the 4 

questions that I have for Mr. Kazazian. 5 

  CHAIR:  Mr. McCann? 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.  Just a few.  Good morning, 7 

sir. 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Good morning. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m not going to try your name. 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Kazazian. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Kazazian.  It’s not that bad, I like it.  12 

So, the twenty-seven units that you said that Mid-Atlantic Lube 13 

owns, when you say units you mean individual stores like this 14 

one? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct, service centers. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and this one, if approved, would 17 

also be owned and operated by Mid-Atlantic Lubes, correct? 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, there wouldn’t be some local 20 

owner of the, of this unit who lived in the community and owned 21 

just this store, correct? 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That is correct. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  You mentioned the services that instant 24 

oil change units provide and I, I, from what I gathered from 25 
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your company’s website, this instant oil change is, is sort of 1 

a trade, trademark, that’s what you call these, these centers, 2 

correct? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, Valvoline Instant Oil Change. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Valvoline Instant Oil Change Centers or 5 

what do you call them? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Just Valvoline Instant Oil Change. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are there different types of 8 

facilities or units that Mid-Atlantic Lubes owns and operates? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There are quick lubes.  The number of 10 

bays can vary. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  So, when you say, again, 12 

when you say quick lube, that’s the same thing as a Valvoline 13 

Instant Oil Change?  Are they the same thing, quick lube? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Well, Valvoline Instant Oil Change 15 

operates quick lubes.  Quick lubes is typically defined as an 16 

oil change facility that would have pits and a full basement so 17 

that procedures could be done to car from both the bottom side 18 

and the top side versus a lift procedure where a car would come 19 

in and come on a lift. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, that’s where the speed of service 22 

comes in with the pit. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Which essentially is the basement. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  I’m just getting to the phrases that 1 

you’ve been using.  So quick lube is the type of service that’s 2 

provided? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, and typically defines the 4 

facility as well. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  And the facilities themselves are 6 

sometimes called Valvoline Instant Oil Change? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Um hm. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Is that a yes? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Sorry. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s all right.  So, I think we’re at 13 

Protestant’s Exhibit 8, but I could be completely wrong about 14 

that Ms. Jolivet. 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You are correct. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  I am correct? 17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You are correct. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, wow.  All right.  Starting off good.  19 

I’m going to have this marked if I could as the next exhibit 20 

and, and I know –- 21 

   MS. JOLIVET:  Do you have another for me? 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  (inaudible). 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  If you’re going to ask me to read 24 

something, I’m going to have to get my glasses (inaudible). 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, yeah, sure, go ahead.  1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Sorry.   2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That was number eight? 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  This is eight.  So, just take a moment 4 

if you would and familiarize yourself with what’s been marked 5 

as Protestant’s Exhibit 8.  And I just have a couple of 6 

questions about it.  And while you’re doing that, if you don’t 7 

mind, sir, I’ll represent to you that what I did is I got 8 

online, on your website, and searched for Valvoline Instant Oil 9 

Changes near us and this came up with the Middle River store.  10 

There is, in fact, a store in Middle River, is that correct? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.   13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  The website is actually run by 14 

Valvoline itself.  We’re a franchisee so it’s not our website.  15 

Our company doesn’t operate a website. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, okay.  Well, thank you for that 17 

clarification.  So, nevertheless, I still want to ask you 18 

questions about what’s on this website and very difficult to 19 

see, but on the first page there’s a reference at the top but 20 

also on the left hand side to the Middle River store.  Are you 21 

familiar with that, with that store, or unit does in terms of 22 

its business? 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Somewhat. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Is, would you characterize it as 25 
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a Valvoline Instant Oil Change unit? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Oh, yes. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Providing quick lube? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  Let me know when you’re 5 

ready for questions.  I don’t (inaudible).  So page one of 6 

Protestant’s Exhibit 8, on the right hand side of the bottom, 7 

it makes reference to certified technicians and their 8 

completion of two hundred and seventy hours of training.  Is 9 

that the training that you were referring to during direct 10 

examination? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and what is ASC certified program 13 

mean?  What is that? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  To my understanding, it’s an 15 

automotive certification that Valvoline has worked to attain so 16 

that the training meets their standards. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Do, can you tell us what the scope of 18 

that training is?  Is it, in other words, maybe more 19 

specifically does the training include things other than just 20 

oil changes? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It could include checking the fluids, 22 

everything that would be part of our super pro procedure.  So, 23 

we don’t check brake fluid, but we check filters, both air and 24 

cabin filters.  We would check the levels of coolant as well as 25 
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windshield washer.  It would involve using certain machines to 1 

extract coolant or transmission fluid or oil or transmission 2 

fluid from the cars. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  But ours is a very targeted service as 5 

opposed to a, a full mechanic’s ASE certification. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, that was my question.  7 

Were, were you just describing all the things that Valvoline 8 

Instant Oil Change units do or were you describing the program, 9 

the certification program? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I was describing the, the training 11 

that our technicians receive so that the use of those certain 12 

machines to provide the services that we offer our customers in 13 

our quick lube facility. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and that entire two hundred and 15 

seventy hours deals solely with that as opposed to –- 16 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s, it’s a cumulative process, as I 17 

said, so you’d start to reach your first certification as 18 

technician and then senior technician, customer service 19 

representative, on up. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  All right.  Moving quickly 21 

through this, on page four, and actually four, five, six and 22 

seven, and these things all, only, don’t always print out well 23 

but at the bottom of the fourth page, where, see where it says 24 

recommended services?   25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  And then, it says full service oil 2 

change and then to the right it says transmission service and 3 

then on the next page there are bullet points for these other 4 

type of services, some of which you’ve mentioned.  And then the 5 

same thing with respect to page six and seven of this exhibit, 6 

you see that?  All types of services that are being identified, 7 

you see all that? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I do. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are those all the same type of 10 

services that would be provided at this location if it was 11 

approved? 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Looking at page five, we, excuse me.  13 

I misread so, yeah, it would appear we would offer all these 14 

services. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, would you agree with me that 16 

many of these services, other than just the, the service oil 17 

change, would involve the customer getting out of the car and 18 

waiting in the waiting room as opposed to just sitting in the 19 

car as you described? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We don’t have waiting rooms and our 21 

customers don’t leave their vehicles during any of our service. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Even, even for all of these? 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Some, some of which may take longer, if 25 
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not significantly longer, significantly longer than fifteen 1 

minutes?  Some? 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Typ, typically fifteen, possibly 3 

twenty minutes, depending on the model of the car. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  For all of these services? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 6 

  CHAIR:  How, how do you do tire rotations? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There’s actually lifts on the pits, so 8 

the, you know, they just position it, it goes up and then we 9 

actually use the battery powered guns, remove the lug nuts and 10 

then rotate the tires, front and back. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, no services are provided while the 12 

customer is out of the vehicle? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I mean, if a, if a customer would like 16 

to use the bathroom, they have to be guided through the service 17 

center just because of the open pits and the liability. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  Well, given that 19 

testimony, I don’t think I need to add anything, ask anything 20 

specific about other things.  Okay.  You mentioned that part of 21 

your responsibilities as director and now vice president is 22 

site selection. 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, were you personally involved 25 
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in selecting this site? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, it was brought to me by a local 2 

broker. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and who was that local broker? 4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Henry DeFord of McKenzie Retail. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and when you say brought to you, 6 

what do you mean by that?  What did he tell you?  What 7 

information did he give you? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Henry knows our criteria and they 9 

brought us a number of transactions over the last five to seven 10 

years. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  His company? 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  And Henry himself? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Henry and he has a co-worker. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and when you say criteria, what 16 

are, what are your company’s criteria for a site? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We typically like to be located on a 18 

busy corner.  The site typically has to be fifteen to twenty 19 

thousand square feet.  We look at traffic counts.  We typically 20 

would like something at fifteen thousand or greater and then we 21 

would look at demographics and population density.  In some 22 

instances, we would look at larger draws if it’s a, kind of a 23 

county situation where people drive larger distances versus 24 

urban. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Where the, the market draw would be 2 

from.   3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  When you say look for busy 4 

corners, literally you look for intersections as opposed to –- 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We, we prefer intersections, it has 6 

the highest visibility. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Your store in, or unit rather, in 8 

Middle River, is not on a corner, is it? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s not. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  What about the other stores in the 11 

vicinity?  I forget where the other ones are located, but any, 12 

any other store in Maryland located on a corner of a busy 13 

intersection? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I don’t come, most of the portfolio 15 

here we purchased.  Middle River we did build, so we do take 16 

parcels in, in various out lot parcels, if you will.  But we 17 

came in 2000, rolled up a variety of small franchisees that 18 

were in financial trouble. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, a busy corner would be ideal. 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  From a bus, and strictly from a business 22 

perspective, that is, the more, I think you used the term 23 

visibility. 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  That would help your business if it was 1 

on a, on a visible corner. 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and would you characterize this 4 

site, that is on the corner of Joppa and Loch Raven Boulevard, 5 

the south west corner, as a vis, visibly prominent site? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Plenty of traffic, right? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Were you the person at the 10 

company that actually made the decision to purchase this site? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I was one of five. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, we, I present to a board. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  All people in your office up in 15 

Massachusetts? 16 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  And I take it when, when you 18 

present to the board for purposes of proposing a site, you 19 

identi, you, you speak to the criteria that you just 20 

identified? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Anything else that you recall or 23 

are those the main things? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Those are the main. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, you present it to the board 1 

and the decision was made to purchase this site? 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Have you, in fact, purchased it 4 

or is it, is there some type of contingency in the contract of 5 

sale? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We have not purchased it. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, you’re a contract purchaser? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct, we’re under contract. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Contingent on the outcome of this 10 

hearing? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Not necessarily. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Among other things? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Have you personally, sir, ever 15 

reviewed, reviewed or any portion of Baltimore County’s master 16 

plan? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I have not. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Specifically, have you personally 19 

reviewed any portion of the master plan per, pertaining to 20 

commercial revitalization districts? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I have not. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Did any of the, did you present 23 

any of that info, any of that information, that is, information 24 

in the master plan regarding commercial revitalization 25 
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districts, to the five directors, or the directors to whom you 1 

presented this site? 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I do not believe so. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Since you were involved in the 4 

site selection, I take it you’re familiar with the fact that 5 

there are within a very short distance of this site, a number, 6 

quite a few other businesses that provide all of the things 7 

that we just went through in Protestant’s Exhibit 8?  I take it 8 

you’re familiar with that? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There are, are more uses, yes. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  A number of them, correct? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I don’t know the exact number.  I 12 

know there’s one directly across the street. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You mentioned that there will be 14 

fourteen or fifteen employees, some of whom will be part-time, 15 

right? 16 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct, full and part-time. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  How many employees on site at any one 18 

time? 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  At peak, there would be eight 20 

employees. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and assumedly all those employees 22 

would, would drive to the site.  Is there, is there room on 23 

site for those eight employees to park? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s not necessarily the case so.  25 
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Typically, we have employees that carpool, we have younger 1 

employees that are sometimes dropped off, we have folks that 2 

take transit, mass transportation.  So, I would, I would say on 3 

average, typically for a center of this type, there would be 4 

five or six cars on site at that time. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s just based on your experience? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But sitting here today, we don’t 8 

know who those employees will be, right? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We don’t. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  How many, how many, just to refresh my 11 

recollection, how many parking spaces on this site are 12 

allocated for employees? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  All of them. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  All of them?   15 

  CHAIR:  How many is that? 16 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It appears to be seven, plus a 17 

handicap spot. 18 

  CHAIR:  Plus the handicap spot? 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Plus the handicap spot. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, if all the employees, I’m sorry, and 21 

how many employees you said at any given time? 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  At peak hours it would be eight 23 

employees. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, if all the employees traveled by car 25 
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individually, there wouldn’t be enough spaces, right?  Unless 1 

one of the persons was handicapped. 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Doing the math.   4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Okay. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  You mentioned some of the, the 6 

precautions that you would take in the, the lower floor where 7 

the oil is stored.  I’m somewhat familiar with those 8 

regulations but am I, am I correct that sort of, the things 9 

that you mentioned, the, the concrete floor, the epoxy, the 10 

dike, all those things are things that are required by law, by 11 

regulation? 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I’m, I’m not certain about that.  13 

Those are just precautions that we take as a firm. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We do have to apply for tank permits 16 

with Maryland Department of the Environment and we obviously 17 

meet or exceed their standards. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Do you know whether you meet or 19 

exceed them, which one?  I mean, in other words, can you sit 20 

here today, it sounds like you’re not familiar with those 21 

specific regulations. 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I’m not familiar with the specific, I 23 

just know that our policy is to meet or exceed any 24 

environmental requirement or standard. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But for this particular location, 1 

you can’t tell us what, whether the precautions you’ve talked 2 

about meet or exceed? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I cannot. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I’m not even sure that some of the 6 

precautions we take are required. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, that’s what I’m asking, you just 8 

don’t know. 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I don’t know. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  You talked about, and I’ll wrap up here, 11 

you talked about the, the anticipated traffic or customer flow 12 

on average days and, and sort of the peak days, Friday 13 

afternoon, Saturdays, you said as many as seventy-five to 14 

eighty, seventy-five to eighty services per day.   15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s right, total car count for the 16 

day. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  For, for the day.  Do you have a sense 18 

of on, at any given, given time what the, the average number of 19 

vehicles will be at the store that is, that are being serviced?  20 

In other words, does that eighty, seventy-five to eighty, 21 

contemplate that they’ll be folks in each of the bays and then 22 

a car cuing or do you have a sense of that? 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, at times, at, at peak times I 24 

would expect that the four bays would be filled and there would 25 
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be four or possibly six cars cuing behind that. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Sitting there. 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Typically, -- 4 

  CHAIR:  One, one per bay you mean or four, -- 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  One per bay across and then in some 6 

instances, you might have two per bay. 7 

  CHAIR:  Two. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  And those cars would be, well, 9 

they wouldn’t be parked, they would be running waiting, I 10 

guess, is what the way, typically in your experience -- 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We, we typically ask customers to turn 12 

off their cars. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  I would move Protestant’s 14 

Exhibit 8 into evidence before I forget and –- 15 

  CHAIR:  It’s admitted. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.  And no other questions. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Good, good morning, Mr. 18 

Kazazian.  Am I pronouncing it correctly? 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Close enough, yes. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Would it be Kazazian or –- 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Kazazian. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  Why is it pronounced one way 23 

rather than the other?   24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  My family pronounces it that way. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What is your educational background? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Graduated high school, I have a B.S. 2 

in Science from North East University and Mechanical Structural 3 

Engineer and I have an M.B.A. from Northeastern. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what year did you graduate 5 

from college and get your M.B.A. or –- 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I graduated college in 1984 and I 7 

received my M.B.A. in 1986. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  How long have you been working in the 9 

auto industry? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Since, it will be ten years in 11 

October. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what specific training did 13 

you get to familiarize yourself with, with the auto services 14 

that you deal with? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I’ve been a car enthusiast since a 16 

teenager and I’ve also sat in on some of our company training. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  What, you went to the 18 

Valvoline University, for example? 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I did not.  I just sit in on certain 20 

pieces of it when it’s offered in our home offices because I’m 21 

interested in it.  I’ve reviewed the book.  There’s a manual 22 

and I flip through it on various occasions. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, what qualifications did you have 24 

to start working in the position that you have? 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Well, I, I’ve always been in the real 1 

estate industry for over thirty years.  So, prior to coming 2 

here, I worked for two pension fund advisory firms and 3 

represented institutional clients as well as pension plans and 4 

endowments. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And as part of that work, is it your 6 

job to be familiar with zoning? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  To some degree, but I obviously hire 8 

professionals. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, you said Mid-Atlantic 10 

Lubes is a subsidiary of, is it Henley Enterprises? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Henley Enterprises. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what is the geographic 13 

territory of Mid-Atlantic Lubes? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  From southern New Jersey, Delaware, 15 

Maryland and portions of northern Virginia. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and did you say how many 17 

franchises there are in, in that area? 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, Mid-Atlantic Lubes, there’s 19 

currently twenty-seven operating and three under development. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and some of those are, were 21 

existing sites that you took over, is that correct? 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct, from multiple small 23 

franchisees. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  For example, you were here at 25 



47 
 

the last hearing date, were you not? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do you recall there were photographs 3 

of a number of sites around Maryland that had two bays, three 4 

bays? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  But at this point, you prefer 7 

to have four bays, is that –- 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Right.  So, our business, our business 9 

has evolved.  It started as a, in two bays and then it went to 10 

three and today we build four bays so the, the, the last number 11 

of units here, I guess, the last two that were constructed and 12 

then the three that are currently being constructed are all 13 

four bays and everything I am working on today is a four bay. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  And that’s just an evolution in 16 

services. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, how many, I’m sorry, I didn’t 18 

mean to interrupt you.  Go ahead and finish your answer. 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  No, the, the four bay we look to, and 20 

part of the reason we like it is electric cars are obviously 21 

coming and so we’re thinking that one of those bays might be 22 

used for charging or battery replacement, you know, oil change 23 

intervals have been extending over the years.  Manufacturers 24 

are using higher quality oils in the engine and so there’s 25 
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other services to be provided in the evolution of the car. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  How many of the existing sites have 2 

four bays that are actually operating now? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  To my knowledge, the only one that 4 

comes to mind that I can think of is the site in Bowie, 5 

Maryland. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That’s one out of twenty-seven, did 7 

I, did I get the number right? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah.  I, I don’t know, I can’t think 9 

of all of the stores in the portfolio because some I have not 10 

been involved in, they were purchased before my time.   11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And if electric cars become 12 

predominant, your facility can adjust to that? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s our thought process.  There’s, 14 

there’s quite a bit of work coming on.  I think we’re, we’re 15 

looking at hybrids being the predominant form because of the 16 

range that they can achieve. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do electric cars still need oil? 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They do not.  Full electric cars. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, if this facility is 20 

approved, what would your estimate be as to how long it will be 21 

there? 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I suspect it will be there as long as 23 

we can provide services for automotive, for autos. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  For decades to come? 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, we have stores that are over 1 

thirty years old in our portfolio that continue to operate. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, this will have a, for better for 3 

worse, this will have a major impact on this intersection in 4 

this area, would you agree with that? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I don’t know how to define the 6 

impact, but we would expect to be there. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay.  What are the normal 8 

hours for the operation? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Typically, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., 10 

Monday through Saturday, Sunday tends to be 9:00 to 5:00. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Your, so you’re open seven days a 12 

week? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct.  Our customers, we opened 14 

Sundays about seven years ago for, after customers requesting 15 

it. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and you mentioned that some 17 

employees may, use mass transit, correct? 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, we have employees who use bus or 19 

Uber, Lyft, a variety of ways to get to work. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you compensate them for that? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We do not. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, what’s the nearest bus stop? 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I’m, I’m not familiar with the mass 24 

transit on Joppa Road. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You didn’t investigate that? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I did not. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, if somebody applies and would 3 

prefer to use mass transit at the moment you could not give 4 

them an answer? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I couldn’t, but perhaps our recruiter 6 

could. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do they know now or, or they would 8 

just have to investigate, has anyone investigated yet what the 9 

mass transit situation is, is regarding that location? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I do not know that. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, it’s potentially quite 12 

inconvenient? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Potentially. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And if that’s true, then the 15 

employees really would have to use cars or get Lyft, pay for 16 

Lyft or Uber? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I suppose they could bike.  There’s a 18 

variety of options, I guess. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What’s the hourly wage for your 20 

starting employees? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Starting employees, I believe start at 22 

$13.00 an hour. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Including the students? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct.  There’s no 25 
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differentiation. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.   2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They’re also eligible for full 3 

benefits as well. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Full medical benefits? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Medical, dental, eye, five percent 6 

401k contribution. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do they have to contribute? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  In order to get the contribution, yes. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  How much? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s up to five percent, they would be 11 

matched a hundred percent. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Up to five percent of the medical 13 

costs, you pay ninety-five percent of your employees medical? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Oh, excuse me.  I thought you were 15 

talking about the 401k.  So, for a, a single person to get 16 

medical, I believe they pay about $26 a week for full medical. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  How much do you pay for the –- 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I have a family, I pay –- 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, I mean, how much for these 20 

students?  How much does the company pay for the students? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They pay, I believe, sixty-five 22 

percent of the cost. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That includes full hospitalization? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay.  As far as the location 1 

goes, you, you pointed out the people, customers will enter on 2 

Loch Raven Boulevard, correct? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And if they have to wait before going 5 

into the bays, they would wait in the area closest to Loch 6 

Raven Boulevard, is that also correct? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They would be positioned in front of 8 

each one of the bay doors. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Could you point out on the, the site 10 

plan what you’re talking about, in front of the bay doors? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Sure.  So, these, these three cars 12 

here are positioned in front of the door and then you see –- 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m sorry, could you raise your 14 

voice? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Sure.  Right here you have this, it 16 

illustrates three cars up in front of the bay doors with a 17 

fourth pulling up to it.   18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, that’s between the Loch Raven 19 

entrance and the bay doors is where they wait? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct.  So, the entrance is 21 

here and the bay doors are –- 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right and the, did you say 23 

there were nine parking spaces, one handicap did, of the nine? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I believe there’s, there’s several 25 
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along the back boundary here and the eighth is the handicap. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, it’s eight total? 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and the seven, the row of seven, 4 

is closest to Loch Raven Boulevard, is that correct? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, that’s, you’d enter the parking 6 

lot from Loch Raven (inaudible) –- 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And the eighth is also closest to 8 

Loch Raven rather than Joppa? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right and the, and the 11 

four front doors of the bays, those are facing at an angle Loch 12 

Raven, would you agree? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I believe the bay doors are facing 14 

Joppa. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The front, where you go in, where the 16 

cars go in?  They face, are you, are you serious? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Well, I mean, this, this is Joppa 18 

Road, right?  So, when you pull in here and you look through 19 

the doors, you’re seeing Joppa. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  When you look through you see 21 

Joppa where the exit is, correct?  The exit is on Joppa? 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, when the doors are closed, 24 

the doors where you enter, those doors are oriented to Loch 25 
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Raven? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They’re actually –- 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If you’re standing in front of those 3 

doors and they’re closed or sitting in your car, you can look 4 

over and see Loch Raven.  You can’t see Joppa if those doors 5 

are closed. 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Well, they’re full glass doors so you 7 

can see through them, but yeah. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, but you can also see Joppa or, 9 

excuse me, Loch Raven, can’t you? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  You can see a portion of Loch Raven 11 

Boulevard, yes. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay and the, the exit doors, 13 

is that a correct way to describe the doors where you leave? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  The exit doors face Joppa 16 

Road, would you agree with that? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, what are, are the other 19 

doors, again, I think Mr. Sharon described some of them.  What 20 

are the other doors on the site? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There’s, there’s some man doors on the 22 

site.  There’s typically –- 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  When you say man doors, you mean a 24 

door where a normal human being could walk through? 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct.  Versus the overhead doors. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Right, so –- 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And where are those so called man 4 

doors? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, there would be an entry here into, 6 

just an open space.  We don’t have chairs so it just leads you 7 

to a customer bathroom. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Can you, I’m sorry, can you speak up? 9 

  CHAIR:  That’s in the tower portion? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, in the tower portion.  So, if 11 

you came through the front door here, -- 12 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Can I (inaudible)? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Oh, sure. 14 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay. 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, there’s an entrance into the tower 16 

here on this side of the building.  I guess we’ll call it the 17 

Joppa Road side of the building.  When you come in there, 18 

there’s just a small entrance way.  There’s a customer bathroom 19 

as well as the manager’s office and then there would be a door 20 

that would lead you into the service bays.  I’d have to look at 21 

the other pictures, but there’s typically a man door that would 22 

be placed between the overhead doors here, that would be so 23 

that someone could leave the center and greet you when you came 24 

on site if there wasn’t someone out here on a full-time basis 25 
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or at that particular time of the day and I believe there’s a 1 

man door on one of these other ends because it’s an exit coming 2 

up the staircase from the basement. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Didn’t Mr. Sharon indicate 4 

that there’s a so called employee door on the side of the 5 

building? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I don’t recall.  I, we, if you’d 7 

like to bring out the renderance –- 8 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You’ve answered the question.  He can 9 

go on to the next one.   10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It, it’s been my experience that the 11 

employees would come through this man door. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, yeah, so, the employees in 13 

the morning when they come in, they go through one of the bay 14 

doors, is that correct? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They would go through a man door. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  They would go through a man door.  17 

Which man door? 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I would assume that the manager that 19 

would open or the assistant manager would come through the 20 

front door and there would be an alarm pad that he would have 21 

to turn off that’s in his office. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And then what? 23 

   MR. KAZAZIAN:  I would, I would assume that he would 24 

open the remainder of the man doors to allow employees to 25 
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enter, since they’d be parking here. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They’d come up to the man doors on the 3 

entrance side of the building. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, when you say the, there 5 

are, is there one man door on the entrance side of the building 6 

or more than one? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, without looking at the rendering, I 8 

don’t recall. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  There could be more than one? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There could be. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In your experience. 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Depending on the design and the 13 

requirements of fire marshals, sometimes we have to add an 14 

additional door. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what’s the situation here, do you 16 

know, based on -- 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I do not know, I –- 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, there might be, there might be 19 

one man, so called man door, there might be more than one?   20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There could be two. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And those would be on the same side 22 

as where the cars enter the bays? 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And that would be, the employees 25 
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would then be going, coming in, whether walking or having 1 

parked their cars, they would be coming from Loch Raven side of 2 

the location. 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They would, they would park on the, 4 

the rear of the, of the parcel and then walk to the, to the 5 

entrance side –- 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  They, they wouldn’t even see Joppa 7 

Road at that point. 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They could look through the glass 9 

doors. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If they were surveying the entire 11 

site. 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Um hm. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  You don’t recall whether there 14 

was, Mr. Sharon said there was a separate employee door 15 

planned, oriented to Loch Raven? 16 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I don’t have that recollection, I 17 

apologize. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  All right, we’ll come 19 

back to that in a few minutes.  In terms of site selection, let 20 

me ask you this.  You mentioned there are several contingencies 21 

in the contract between, is it Mid-Atlantic Lubes, is that the 22 

corporate entity that will –- 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  No, there, there’s a real estate 24 

company that will take title to it and will do an internal 25 
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lease with Mid-Atlantic Lubes. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  But that’s not one of the 2 

Petitioners?  Mid-Atlantic Lubes is your only Petitioner listed 3 

as contract purchaser, correct? 4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I think they have it under agreement, 5 

will likely assign it at some point. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  To some real estate company? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It will be a wholly owned subsidiary 8 

of Henley Enterprises. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And that hasn’t been determined? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Legal handles (inaudible). 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But I mean, it hasn’t been determined 12 

yet?  There, -- 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I would assume it would, there’s 14 

one that typically holds this but I, I haven’t talked to our 15 

legal folks. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and incidentally, are there, 17 

does Henley have like the Pacific Lubes, Mid-West Lubes, is 18 

this, is this a national company that has regional lubes all 19 

over the United States? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, we, we, we operate in east in New 21 

England, we operate here in the Mid-Atlantic, we operate on the 22 

west, southern west coast of Florida, we operate in San Diego, 23 

L.A. and San Francisco Bay area. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, it’s like you have California 25 
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lubes, Florida lubes and, under some name? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and what are the other 3 

contingencies besides zoning approval that, that your, your 4 

acquisition of this site depends on? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I don’t believe I can share those with 6 

you due to, there’s actually provisions in the agreement that 7 

talk about exclusivity and confidentiality. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, even if the zoning is approved, 9 

this may or may not go forward depending on satisfaction of 10 

these other contingencies that you can’t tell us about? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what, if anything, has been done 13 

so far to satisfy these other contingencies? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We’ve done an environmental report and 15 

we’ve done title search. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Did you bring with you any 17 

environmental report? 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I did not. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And that’s done, who, who actually 20 

did that report (inaudible)? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  A company, a company by the name of 22 

Tetritech (phonetic). 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And that’s a written report? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Electronic version, don’t do much in 25 
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paper anymore. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And why didn’t you produce that for 2 

the Board of Appeals? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I didn’t think it was pertinent to 4 

this hearing. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Wouldn’t the environmental impact of 6 

the proposal have some relevance? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I don’t have any below ground tanks or 8 

anything that I would think would impact. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You have tanks. 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I have tanks, but I do not have buried 11 

or, I have above ground tanks in a tank room. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  There’s waste oil that has to be 13 

disposed of, correct? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Have you had any interaction yet with 16 

the Maryland Department of Environment to review your proposal? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  As I understand it, we will submit 18 

them a tank plan when we get ready to do the install. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Have you done that yet? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  We have not. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, how do you expect the Board of 22 

Appeals to evaluate the environmental issues if that has not 23 

been even preliminarily reviewed by the Maryland Department of 24 

Environment? 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m going to object to 1 

the question.  The Board is capable of assessing the 2 

environmental impact that, through this witness and through the 3 

other witnesses that are, have testified and are going to 4 

testify.  None of the zoning regulations require any 5 

involvement with MDE whatsoever and, and he’s testified what 6 

the procedure is that his company is going to take to have the 7 

tanks approved by MDE at the appropriate time.   8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, that’s their opinion, but 9 

special exceptions standards and several of them include 10 

environmental impacts so it’s certainly a legitimate question 11 

as to what stage something should be done to show to the Board 12 

that the, the environmental issues have been taken care of, 13 

whether, and I would suggest sooner rather than later, although 14 

certainly in many cases it’s not, I’m not surprised that the 15 

Petitioners take the position that lots of things will be done 16 

later.  It’s my view that they need to be done earlier.  So, 17 

that’s, that’s a, a point of contention. 18 

  CHAIR:  Right.  So, your question, the specific 19 

question, was how do you expect the Board of Appeals to 20 

evaluate and so that question is really sort of a tad bit 21 

argumentative.  But, I mean, the point, I, we understand the 22 

point, which is it may be that environmental issues need to be 23 

–- 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 25 
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  CHAIR:  -- assessed and, of course, obviously, if the 1 

Petitioner, if that’s the case and the Petitioner doesn’t 2 

present any evidence to that effect, then that’s a failure of 3 

proof. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIR:  So, so I’ll, I’ll, I’m going –- 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I get it. 7 

  CHAIR:  -- to sustain the objection because the form 8 

of the question. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I get it.  All right. 10 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  I think I’ll move on, 12 

perceiving the Board’s instructions, so to speak. 13 

  CHAIR:  Well, we intend to, as I said earlier, we 14 

intend to abide by both the Maryland Declaration of Rights and 15 

the United States Constitution, so. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, let’s, let’s go back to 17 

site selection, Mr. Kazazian.  When did you begin looking for a 18 

site in this part of Baltimore County?  What was the scope of 19 

the area you were looking at? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, I, I looked, we identified a 21 

number of areas we’d like to be into so we identified Towson, 22 

Westminster, a variety of other cities where we don’t currently 23 

operate.  And then we worked through our own contacts with gas 24 

companies, as well as with the brokerage community. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Including McKenzie? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, what was the scope of the Towson 3 

area that you were looking at, the geographic scope? 4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It was most major thoroughfares. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, give me a, a west, east north 6 

and south. 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I didn’t, I didn’t put that parameter 8 

on it, to be quite honest.  I mean, we -- 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Can you give me a radius in miles of 10 

what, what you are talking about?  I mean, could it have been 11 

over at, by Interstate 83 for example? 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It could have been if a site presented 13 

itself. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Could it have been as far east as 15 

Belair Road, for example? 16 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Certainly.  I, I’d have to look.  17 

Without a map and to look at the demographics and driving 18 

patents and shopping patents and -- 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Was one of your criteria to be close 20 

to an interstate highway? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Not necessarily, no. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and I think you’ve already 23 

indicated that the, you didn’t evaluate preliminarily whether 24 

or not the location would be in a Baltimore County designated 25 
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commercial revitalization district? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You could have chosen a site not in 3 

one of those districts, correct?  Depending on what your search 4 

showed? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, it didn’t, it didn’t have 6 

bearing on my decision making.  I was just aware of the special 7 

exception. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, at what point did you become 9 

aware the special exception?  After you had selected this site 10 

as a potential site? 11 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, we, I contacted Dino, just to 12 

understand what, what the permitting would be if we went 13 

forward with the site. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  But at no time did you require 15 

an understanding that this is in a Baltimore County designated 16 

commercial revitalization district? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Mr. La Fiandra could have told me that 18 

but I don’t have a recollection.  I just wanted to understand 19 

the process. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  To, to gain a special exception. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Even as we’re here today, 23 

what, if anything, can you tell me about the Loch Raven 24 

commercial revitalization district? 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Only what I heard in the last meeting. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Um hm, okay.  Now, you mentioned 2 

several other people involved in the site selection from your 3 

company, not apart from the representative from McKenzie Real 4 

Estate, correct? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Did anyone else do any land 7 

use, zoning review of, of your so called, we will call them a 8 

team of people or reviewers? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  They did not. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay.  I wanted to ask you a 11 

few questions about what aspects of your land use and your 12 

operation would be inherent and which ones perhaps may not be 13 

inherent.  Are you familiar with the word inherent? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  You might want to define it for me. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  You know whether it’s defined 16 

in the zoning regulations? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I do not. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Let’s assume that the dictionary is a 19 

good source.  I have an exhibit for the Board of Appeals, which 20 

I’ll describe in a moment. 21 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think I have enough for Mr. 23 

Kazazian too. 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Okay.   25 



67 
 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Even enough for Mr. McCann. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you, sir. 3 

  MS. JOLIVET:  (inaudible) like an extra copy. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, -- 5 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I can take the witness copy.  I’ll take 6 

that one (inaudible). 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Well, I’m certainly going 8 

to –- 9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  That’s fine.  I’ll take it –- 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- ask the witness to look at it. 11 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right and what this exhibit is, 13 

so there’s no confusion, is a page from Webster’s 3rd New 14 

International Dictionary, which I think we can stipulate under 15 

Section 101.1 of the zoning regulations is the source when 16 

there’s no specific definition.  And then we, we also went 17 

further and attached the Miriam Webster online dictionary and 18 

also a reference from thesoraus.com.  And this would be 19 

People’s Counsel Exhibit 12 if my numbering is correct. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, may I have an offer of 21 

proof what this is being offered for? 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m, I’m going to ask the witness a 23 

number of questions about what may or may not be inherent about 24 

the proposed land use here, understanding that this is one of 25 



68 
 

the issues, or one of the aspects of the special exception 1 

criteria, one of which Mr. La Fiandra himself focused on in one 2 

of his observations at the last hearing.  So, my goal is to 3 

help assist the Board and the parties with an understanding of 4 

what, what is inherent about this operation, what inherent 5 

impacts there may be and what impacts may not be inherent.   6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, -- 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think we can, I think it will be –- 8 

  CHAIR:  -- why, why don’t you, I’m going to overrule 9 

the objection for the moment and –- 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Actually, I was asking for an offer 11 

of proof, -- 12 

  CHAIR:  An offer of proof.  Well, -- 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I was about to object but I get the 14 

feeling that you’re going to overrule that objection. 15 

  CHAIR:  Why, why, why don’t you just proceed, Mr. 16 

Zimmerman, okay? 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thank you.  I will.  Mr. Kazazian, 18 

and, and I know the, the wording in the dictionary, the, the 19 

print is small.  But do you see the, the definition of inherent 20 

at the lower left hand side, which I’ll quote.  Structural or 21 

involved in the constitution or essential character of 22 

something, belonging by nature or settled habit, intrinsic 23 

essential.  Do you see that? 24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I do. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and if you’d like to take a 1 

look, because I don’t want to be misleading, if you’d like to 2 

take a look at the Miriam Webster, very similar, right?   3 

  CHAIR:  We’re talking about page two now? 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right.  On the next page, and that 5 

inherently is an adverb.  All right.  Inherent would be an 6 

adjective, would it not? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  English isn’t my strongest point. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, you see where on, on the 9 

Miriam Webster it says inherently is an adverb, do you see that 10 

towards the bottom?  And then you see inherent, adjective?  And 11 

actually if you go back to the, Webster’s, you see the adj? 12 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, you lost me in inherently and it 13 

says adv, so is that an adverb? 14 

  CHAIR:  So, inherent is an adjective, inherently is 15 

an adverb.   16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay, so. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay and then do you see all 19 

the synonyms for inherent?  We’re not going to go through every 20 

one of them. 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  What, what page are you on now? 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  We’re on the, I think third, fourth 23 

page of the exhibit.   24 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Okay.  It says one of four on the top? 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It does. 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Thank you. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Synonyms for inherent and, gosh, 3 

there probably are thirty or so synonyms, right?  And then the 4 

next page is, we’re not going to go through all the words but.  5 

Anyway, hopefully this at least focusing centrally on the 6 

Webster’s definition I want to proceed with the understanding 7 

that that’s the basic meaning of the word inherent and then I’m 8 

going to ask you some questions regarding the proposed land 9 

use. 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, could we agree that it’s 12 

inherent and we’ll just call it the Valvoline operation, am I 13 

pronouncing that correctly, Valvoline?   14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yep, Valvoline. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  It’s inherent that there be 16 

some service provided to automobiles.  That would be inherent, 17 

it would be in every single operation. 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It would be inherent that there’d be 20 

some number of seats, or you call them drive through bays, what 21 

seats, what (inaudible) –- 22 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, drive, drive through bays. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, that would be inherent in 24 

every service garage operation, would it?  There are many 25 
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service garages that don’t –- 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Not, not necessarily. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  It would be inherent that you 3 

have some number of, of employees? 4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But the precise number would be a 6 

matter of choice, depending on the operation.  So, the precise 7 

number of employees is not necessarily inherent, not 8 

necessarily inherent that you have fifteen.  You could have a 9 

site with eight or twenty, depending on the size? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s, yes, I, I’m not that –- 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay, all right.  Okay.  It would be 12 

inherent that there’d be some use of oil? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Because that’s in every, every 15 

location, wherever it is, right? 16 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Right.  Our primary service is in oil 17 

change. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  It would be inherent that 19 

there’d be some tanks in the operation as you’ve described? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  For Valvoline Instant Oil Change, yes. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.  But it, it would 22 

not necessarily be inherent that it be on a corner, would it? 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I’m going to object at 24 

this point.  These questions are irrelevant in the context of 25 
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the word inherent as it relates to the Schultz v. Pritz test, 1 

which I can see is where we’re going.  Schultz v. Pritz speaks 2 

about adverse effects inherently associated with the use, not 3 

inherent factors in the use such as the number of, the fact 4 

that there are employees, the fact that there is traffic, the 5 

fact that it may be on a corner or in the middle of a block.  6 

Those are factors, that are not effects.  If counsel wants to 7 

speak about inherent effects, that’s a different story.  But 8 

we’re talking about factors that are irrelevant to the 9 

discussion of Schultz v. Pritz. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, this all connects up with 11 

effects, but I, I will go to effects.  While we’re at it, so, 12 

so there’s no misunderstanding, I have a copy of Schultz v. 13 

Pritz, which I’ll refer to.  Okay. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  (inaudible) give me one? 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I even have one for Mr. La Fiandra. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  You, you, you did give me one 17 

(inaudible), thank you very much. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I gave him one already. 19 

  MS. JOLIVET:  And you do have the extra for, for me? 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I wasn’t submitting these as an 21 

exhibit. 22 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Oh. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But I do have an extra. 24 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Just a matter of clarification, is 1 

the definition of an exhibit? 2 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Oh, yeah.  I, because I didn’t mark 3 

that as an exhibit. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, I, I was submitting that as 5 

People’s Counsel Exhibit 12. 6 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 7 

  CHAIR:  Exhibit 12, I guess?  Okay.   8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And I’m going to object, -- 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  That’s a, that’s a –- 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- I’m going to object to that as 11 

irrelevant. 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And on other basis. 14 

  CHAIR:  That, that objection is noted and the exhibit 15 

is admitted. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.   17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, -- 18 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You are not offering this?   19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not as an exhibit, but I want to make 20 

some reference to it so that, and –- 21 

  CHAIR:  So, I’m just having a little bit of trouble 22 

understanding where, where we are going with this. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, well, let’s, so I can explain 24 

to the Board where we’re going, and this is part of Schultz v. 25 
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Pritz actually that was, part of this was quoted last time by 1 

Mr. La Fiandra from the more recent Attar v. DMS Tollgate case, 2 

which I also have a copy of incidentally.  So, let’s, so, so, 3 

sort of the ground rules for the next questions, let’s look at 4 

Westlaw page nine, bracket thirteen.  Which, so the Court of 5 

Appeals among, and certainly there’s more to the case than just 6 

this paragraph.  7 

  But quote, these cases, cases establish that a 8 

special exception use has an adverse effect and must be denied 9 

when it is determined from facts and circumstances that the 10 

grant of a requested special exception use would result in an 11 

adverse effect upon joining and surrounding properties unique 12 

and different from the adverse effect that would otherwise 13 

result from the development of such a special exception use 14 

located anywhere within the zone.  And here we’re coming to the 15 

point that I think, actually, Mr. La Fiandra quoted last time. 16 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I’m sorry.  I, I’m just going to 17 

interject.  I’m just wondering, you’re supposed to be asking 18 

questions of the witness and so now you’re interjecting case 19 

law and it’s (inaudible) –- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, there was an objection and I’m 21 

explaining, I’m explaining the connection.  Because there was 22 

an objection, you’ll notice that the, the next sentence, which 23 

Mr. La Fiandra –- 24 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Didn’t, I thought the objection was 25 
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overruled, that’s why I don’t understand why you’re doing this. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, okay.  I thought he was objecting 2 

again.   3 

  MS. JOLIVET:  No, he didn’t, he didn’t say anything 4 

else. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  All right.  Now, so we’re 6 

going to get to the so called inherent, the question of 7 

inherent effects.  The question of whether an effect is 8 

inherent or not inherent.  Okay.  I would suggest to you, for 9 

example, that whether or not there is an adverse traffic effect 10 

at this location particularly, it’s not an inherent effect 11 

relating to the land use, but it’s particular as to this 12 

location, would you agree with that? 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, counsel is asking an 14 

opinion question of a fact witness.  If he would like to bring 15 

in his own expert witness, he’s welcome to do so.  My witness 16 

has not been qualified as an expert, he has not expressed any 17 

opinions and now to ask him about his opinion about effects in 18 

the context of a case that he’s already discussed he’s not 19 

familiar with is, it’s unfair to the witness and it’s improper 20 

in the context of the rules of evidence of this case.   21 

  CHAIR:  So, the, the, the, the question is a, is a 22 

little bit tough here for this witness.  I mean, if it’s a four 23 

bay store, then there’s more traffic than if it’s a two bay 24 

store if that’s your point. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That’s one, that’s one point, that’s 1 

not the only point. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  I mean, the, those are points which 3 

actually are readily understood without testimony I, I believe.  4 

I mean, I understand that, I think my colleagues understand 5 

that.   6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, the witness did testify about 7 

site selection and –- 8 

  MS. JOLIVET:  But you’re asking him to draw legal 9 

conclusions and that’s beyond the scope of this fact witness’ 10 

testimony.  You need to, you need to fashion your questions 11 

accordingly.  I don’t think that you, I don’t think what you’re 12 

doing is appropriate for this particular witness. 13 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  And, and aren’t some of those arguments 14 

made in your briefs that you submit to us?  He hasn’t held 15 

himself out as a traffic expert. 16 

  MS. JOLIVET:  No. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  I’ll move on to something 18 

else. 19 

  CHAIR:  Thank you.  Okay, good.  Thank you. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  And I think we can wrap up 21 

fairly soon.  To make a long story short, you have not 22 

evaluated whether or not there may be some particular adverse 23 

effects of the proposed use in relation to the commercial 24 

revitalization district? 25 
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  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I don’t believe so, no. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And nobody on your, if I call it your 2 

team, has done that, to the best of your knowledge, is that 3 

correct? 4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay, all right.  All right.  Based 6 

on, separately, it’s a different question, based on the 7 

configuration of the site, the entry on Loch Raven Boulevard, 8 

the exit on Joppa Road and everything else, the location of the 9 

parking spaces, where, where the employees come in, whether 10 

walking or driving, wouldn’t you agree as a matter of common 11 

English language usage that the front is Loch, is oriented 12 

towards Loch Raven Boulevard? 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, this draws, this calls 14 

for a legal conclusion in the context of the zoning 15 

regulations.  We discussed this at length at the last hearing.  16 

I’m going to object to the question. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, this is common factual English, 18 

use of the English language really.  Not asking for a legal 19 

conclusion, I’m asking him a basic descriptive question. 20 

  CHAIR:  You’re asking him where’s the front of the 21 

property? 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right.  Based on all of the 23 

circumstances, the way the orientation is, the entry, the exit. 24 

  CHAIR:  So, where, where is the front of the 25 
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property? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I believe the front of the property is 2 

Joppa Road. 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And your explanation for that, 5 

please? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  The, the address is Joppa Road.  It 7 

just happens for my particular operations that we ask customers 8 

to come to the rear of the property and we selected Loch Raven 9 

because we thought it was the safest place for people to come 10 

and also afforded most customers to come from every direction 11 

except for one where they could turn at the intersection and 12 

then enter the property.   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do you know what the definition of 14 

the word front is? 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Objection. 16 

  CHAIR:  Sustained. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, so it’s, it’s your understanding 18 

that the front is not ordinarily the place where you enter? 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Objection. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It has nothing to do where you enter 21 

a property?   22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Same objection. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The front is really the exit?  Is 24 

that your, is that your belief? 25 
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  CHAIR:  Well, that’s a pretty muddled question there, 1 

Mr. Zimmerman. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.   3 

  CHAIR:  In, in any given situation, can the front be 4 

where the cars enter or can the front be where the cars exit, 5 

depending upon the configuration of the roads? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Am I supposed to answer you? 7 

  CHAIR:  Can you? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, we, we’ve, we put the front of the 9 

building on Joppa, that’s where the entrance is that I talked 10 

about for, to come into the building.  The reality is is we’re 11 

a drive thru, customers don’t get out of their car, so it’s 12 

just, the only reason that perhaps he’s confused about what the 13 

front of the building is is because of the particular operation 14 

on the site. 15 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What is your definition of front?  17 

What, what do you understand to be the meaning of the word 18 

front? 19 

  CHAIR:  Well, I think he said that he, he, for his 20 

purposes anyway, it’s where the front door is, the front 21 

entrance door. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Don’t even the employees come in 23 

through the bay door?  They don’t, they don’t use that door 24 

that you called the front door. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Asked and answered. 1 

  CHAIR:  Yeah.  I, I think, again, I, I think, I think 2 

we’re clear on the point. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 4 

  CHAIR:  I mean, I think the Board is clear on what 5 

the argument is and, you know, he, he has indicated that from 6 

his point of view the front is the, is the portion of the 7 

building that’s facing Joppa Road.   8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Have you, did you review the 1999 9 

zoning case, (inaudible)? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I did not. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You were, you were here last time, 12 

correct? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I was here. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Did you, have you ever taken the 15 

opportunity to review that, the opinion in that case and the 16 

Petition? 17 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I did not.  I rely on Mr. La Fiandra. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You’ve never looked at it? 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I have not. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, if that Petition, -- 21 

  CHAIR:  Well, he’s not in a position to answer 22 

questions about it. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  So, you would not, just 24 

one or two more, you would not agree that ordinarily the front 25 
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is where one enters and the back is where one exits? 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I’m going to object to the question. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You, you would not agree, would not 3 

agree with that? 4 

  CHAIR:  That’s, well, it’s sustained for a couple of 5 

reasons.  But, it’s sustained.  Not the least of which is it’s 6 

a confusing question.  I’m not sure if the answer is yes or no, 7 

I’m not sure what a yes means or a no means.   8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, the last thing, at the 9 

risk of (inaudible) to New Castle, you would not agree with me, 10 

Mr. Kazazian, that the front means the side of a building, 11 

especially the side that contains the principal entrance? 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Objection to the question. 13 

  CHAIR:  Well, -- 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The form of the question, the 15 

relevancy. 16 

  CHAIR:  -- I’m, again, I’m going to sustain, I’m 17 

going to sustain the object. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Let me, let me –- 19 

  CHAIR:  Actually, I think he, he actually responded 20 

to your question because he indicated that this, this operation 21 

is a little, a little different than the norm because there are 22 

no pedestrian, pedestrians entering the building, so. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Well, let me ask one or 24 

two more.  Wouldn’t you agree that the principal entrance for 25 
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cars coming to the site, that’s Loch Raven Boulevard, correct? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Cars would enter from Loch Raven 2 

Boulevard, that’s correct. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And the principal entrance for 4 

employees who have cars, that’s Loch Raven also? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s correct. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And if anyone is walking up Loch 7 

Raven Boulevard to get into the site, they’re going to enter on 8 

Loch Raven also, are they not? 9 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There is a sidewalk that would lead 10 

them to the front door. 11 

  CHAIR:  Well, as a matter of common, as a matter of 12 

common sense, they’ll probably cut in the drive. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, I mean, -- 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- there is a way to get into that 16 

building from the Loch Raven side, isn’t there?  Whether from 17 

the –- 18 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There, there are man doors, yes. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah. 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Or at least a man door. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And then the bay doors, there’s, 22 

there’s a connection between the bay area and the tower? 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  There’s, yes. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.   25 



83 
 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  But folks, unless you’re an employee, 1 

you’re not allowed into the bay area. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  But an employee could 3 

walk through the bay area and into the tower in the morning? 4 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 5 

  CHAIR:  If the bay area is already open and he’s 6 

coming to work, he can walk through the bay area. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right, right. 8 

  CHAIR:  And if it’s shorter probably would. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 10 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  That’s all I have, 12 

(inaudible). 13 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Any re-direct? 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There are a couple of very quick 15 

follow-ups. 16 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There was some discussion, Mr. 18 

Kazazian, about the number of stores that you have that have 19 

four bays versus fewer than four bays.  Do you recall that just 20 

now? 21 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Could you repeat the question?  I 22 

apologize. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There was some discussion, People’s 24 

Counsel asked you some questions about the number of stores 25 
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that you have that have four bays or fewer than four bays? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, and now you had mentioned 3 

Hensley has two hundred, two hundred and one stores altogether, 4 

is that correct? 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct, today. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And what percentage of those stores 7 

are four bays? 8 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I would say today, because the four 9 

way adopt, was adopted about five years ago, there’s probably 10 

fifteen to eighteen percent of the portfolio that have four 11 

bays. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And so, and there was one other four 13 

bay store that you identified in Maryland that is operating 14 

now, is that right? 15 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yes, I actually permitted that 16 

building, it’s in Bowie, Maryland. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Bowie, Maryland.  Are there other 18 

four bay stores, either in development or under construction 19 

that may not, in Maryland, that may not be operating now? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Currently, there’s three four bay 21 

stores under construction, one is in Glen Burnie, one is in 22 

Baltimore City and the third is in Bel Air, Maryland and I’m 23 

working on multiple other four bay locations. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, turning to the discussion of 25 
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wages and benefits.  I think that you said starting wage is 1 

about $13 an hour? 2 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I believe it’s thirteen.  We typically 3 

are several, a dollar or more above minimum wage. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And then, the, in terms, how quickly 5 

do raises come after that? 6 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, there would, the first raise for a 7 

new employee would be sixty days if they got their initial 8 

certification, that’s typically twenty-five or fifty cents, and 9 

they continue as they get other certifications. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, as the employee progresses with 11 

the training, achieves these certifications, their hourly wage 12 

will go up? 13 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Correct. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, I think that’s, that’s, 15 

that’s all the follow-up questions that I have for this 16 

witness. 17 

  CHAIR:  Thank you.  Mr. McCann? 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  I do have one that my client is handing 19 

me. 20 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Do you have, are you aware if any stores 22 

have closed in the, in Maryland? 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I personally closed a store in 24 

Manassas Park, but that’s Virginia.   25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Any in Maryland that you’re aware? 1 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Cockeysville.  There was a store some 2 

time ago we had in Cockeysville.  It came as part of a multi-3 

unit purchase, I believe, and it was an inferior location.  It 4 

was also a Jiffy Lube not too far away.  So, we were out 5 

positioned.  That’s the only one I can think of. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Why was it an inferior location? 7 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It’s, as I recall, I haven’t been by 8 

the site in a number of years, it, it sat down off the road and 9 

didn’t have good exposure. 10 

  CHAIR:  It had pretty poor exposure, actually.   11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I don’t recall where it is.  What 12 

happened to those store locations, do you know?  Specifically, 13 

the one in Cockeysville and the one in Manassas Park? 14 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Manassas Park, we, we didn’t own 15 

either one of those sites, they were leased.  I assume they’ve 16 

been put back into service with some other type of automotive 17 

use. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But you don’t know? 19 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  It doesn’t concern me. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  It, it seems to me though this is the 21 

type of use that would require redevelopment.  In other words, 22 

you’re, if you’re going to, if a McDonald’s is going to come 23 

along, and I’m not suggesting McDonald’s, McDonald’s at this 24 

corner, but if a McDonald’s was to come along, you’d have to 25 
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tear down the existing structure.  There’s only one thing that 1 

can come in if Valvoline leaves in these sites and that is 2 

another similar quick lube type facility, correct? 3 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  That’s not correct. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  So, we, we do, on the owned properties 6 

that we own, so if we buy a portfolio and then we have stores 7 

that are too close together and we close one, the bay door, in 8 

this particular instance with this brick building, we would put 9 

brick, I guess about three foot up in each one of the bay doors 10 

and put typical store front in and we’d add other doors.  The, 11 

the cuing area here would become parking, we might make some 12 

reconfiguration of parking here.  But we do put them into other 13 

use.  They’ve been turned into offices, they’ve been turned 14 

into, let’s see, Subway restaurants have gone into one that I 15 

know of.  So, there, there have been other uses so we do 16 

transform them in our own portfolio and put them back into use 17 

because we don’t want competitors. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  In a case where there’s another one 19 

close by, that is? 20 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  Yeah, so we typically close stores 21 

because they’re too close together. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 23 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  And it typically results because of an 24 

acquisition. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  No other questions, 1 

thank you.   2 

  CHAIR:  Mr. Zimmerman? 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No questions, Mr. Chair. 4 

  CHAIR:  All right. 5 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Do you, I, I got one. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay, I’m sorry. 7 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Do, do you know whether, under the EPA 8 

regs, that your facility would be considered like an unloading 9 

and loading terminal? 10 

  MR. KAZAZIAN:  I, I don’t know that.  I do know that 11 

we’re considered a small something generator of waste.  We have 12 

a variety of permits that we have to apply for and abide by. 13 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Thank you. 14 

  CHAIR:  (inaudible)? 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  (inaudible). 16 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  Okay, this witness is 17 

concluded then. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you.  You’re excused.  19 

So, what’s the Board’s pleasure? 20 

  CHAIR:  So, do you want to break for lunch now or? 21 

  MS. JOLIVET:  What, what do you have? 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I have one more witness.  I would 23 

expect my direct examination to maybe be a half hour and, and 24 

then obviously cross examination.  My only question, my only 25 
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issue is if we were to start the examination, if we break, I 1 

would like our witness to be able to confer with us during the 2 

break. 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, why don’t we stop now then? 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  All right. 5 

  CHAIR:  That’s probably cleaner. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 7 

  CHAIR:  And how about if we take thirty minutes, can 8 

we do that?  That way we’ll be able to –- 9 

(RECORDING PAUSED – 12:09:35 PM) 10 

(ON RECORD – 12:48:05 PM) 11 

  CHAIR:  Okay, everyone please be seated.  Your cell 12 

phones are off. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 14 

  CHAIR:  And we’re ready for our next witness. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I’d call Mr. Ken Schmid. 16 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Raise your right hand.  Do you swear 17 

and affirm under the penalties of perjury, that testimony 18 

you’re about to give is true and correct to the best of your 19 

knowledge and belief? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  I do. 21 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please state your name, your address, 22 

your business for the record and spell your last name. 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  My name is Kenneth William Schmid, 24 

that’s S-C-H-M-I-D.  I’m Vice President, firm Traffic Concepts 25 
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Incorporated.  My address is 7525 Connolly Drive in Hanover, 1 

Maryland. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I intend to offer Mr. Schmid as an 3 

expert. 4 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Mr. Schmid, have you testified in 6 

Baltimore County as an expert before? 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Many times. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And have you testified before the 9 

Board of Appeals? 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And what are you typically qualified 12 

as as an expert? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Traffic, transportation planner. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Trans, transportation planning? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, I think, I’ve lost track 17 

of the number that I’m on, it may be twelve.   18 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes, you are on number twelve. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  That’s for you.  20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  (inaudible).     22 

  CHAIR:  This is his c.v. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes.  We’ll mark this as number 24 

twelve.  Mr. Schmid, do you recognize this document? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, it’s my resume. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, and does it accurately reflect 2 

your professional qualifications and your experience? 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, it does. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, I’m going to offer Mr. Schmid, I 5 

think that counsel had indicated that perhaps we could –- 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I have no problem with him being 7 

accepted in those areas. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I just got a couple questions 9 

actually. 10 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Mr. Schmid, how many Baltimore County 12 

special exception cases have you testified in? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Probably a hundred. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Before the Board of Appeals? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Probably twenty-five, I guess. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And when’s the last time? 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  I think the last time I was here, people 18 

from my office have been here testifying but myself, the last 19 

time I was here was probably the Royal Farms on, in Hereford. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Famous case. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  One of our favorite cases. 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, sir. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you testified that the, okay.  25 
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Everything was copacetic in that one, right? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, sir. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Have you ever seen a special 3 

exception that you thought was not appropriate from a traffic 4 

point of view in your life? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  Sure, um hm.  And if I couldn’t, if I 6 

couldn’t work out the site plan to where I felt it was 7 

appropriate I bow out of the case. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Have you ever testified in opposition 9 

to a special exception? 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  I’ve made a practice not, at twenty 11 

years ago, not to do opposition cases. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Would it be fair to suggest that 13 

implies that you tend to be biased in favor of zoning 14 

petitions? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  I’m not biased at all. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Are, are you familiar with the level 17 

of service criteria for intersections A, B, C, D, E, F? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  In Baltimore County? 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  They’re all different, each county is 21 

different, so. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Are you familiar with the 23 

Baltimore County criteria? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, yes. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Where do they come from?  Do you know 1 

where, where, where the definitions are with respect to those 2 

criterias? 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, the definitions of those, they’re 4 

assigned a level of service A through F based on the operating 5 

condition of the intersection.  Baltimore County has a method 6 

called the double cycle method, meaning basically they go out 7 

and look at traffic on, during the peak hours in the morning 8 

and afternoon and they see if any of the approaches are, 9 

somebody has to wait two phases to get through the light and 10 

they record that.  And they do that throughout the hour and 11 

based on the percentages, percentages of double cycling, it’s, 12 

it’s given a level of service. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And where is that written?  If the 14 

Board or any of us want to look that up, where do we see that 15 

in writing? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s in the County Code, it’s in the 17 

County Code. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In the Baltimore County Code? 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  I believe the basic services map is, is 20 

referred to in the Code, yes. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Can you give us a section? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  No. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Are you sure it’s in the County Code? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  I know the reference to the, the, the 25 
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level of service charts are in the Code, are referenced in the 1 

Code.  You can actually go to the Baltimore County website and 2 

look up the basic services map and get an actual map of the 3 

basic service areas in the County. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Can you give us any idea of what part 5 

of the Baltimore County Code we should be looking at to find 6 

anything written about the level of service? 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t know the Code section but I know 8 

it’s in there. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.   10 

  MR. SCHMID:  (inaudible) developments inside the 11 

URDL, doesn’t apply to any development outside the URDL. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  When’s the last time you looked at 13 

it? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Basic services map? 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, the Code section that you’re –- 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  Oh, I don’t know.  Probably back when I 17 

was, I think when I was working on the, the golf course case 18 

off of, up in Hunt Valley area. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The golf course case in Hunt Valley? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, they changed the golf course over 21 

into some residential units. 22 

  CHAIR:  Are you talking about Chesapeake Ridge? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, sir. 24 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 25 



95 
 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Chestnut Ridge? 1 

  CHAIR:  Chestnut Ridge, I mean, yes. 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Chestnut Ridge, yes, sir. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, that was years, years ago or 4 

was –- 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, I don’t have to look it up every 6 

time I testify about it. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, how do you know it hasn’t been 8 

modified? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Code?  I would have known by, somebody 10 

would have told me that.  The, the map changes every year, 11 

basic services map. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, when’s the last time you, 13 

when’s the last time you, you say the last time you actually 14 

looked at the Code was several years ago? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Probably, yeah, in reference to the 16 

basic services map, yeah. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you’re sure it’s in the County 18 

Code? 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, this question has been 20 

asked several times. 21 

  CHAIR:  Okay, yeah.  We, we, we’ve been through that. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 23 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  We’re, we’re suspecting it’s not and 24 

you’re going to make that point so let’s, let’s move on, okay? 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, actually, I, all right.  That’s 1 

all I have. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think, obviously, the witness does 4 

have some expertise and the weight of the different things will 5 

be for the Board. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, then he’s accepted as an expert 7 

and we’ll –- 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 9 

  CHAIR:  -- accept his –- 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  As a transportation planner, is that the 11 

area, I’m sorry? 12 

  CHAIR:  Yes. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 14 

  CHAIR:  As a transportation planner. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you very much. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Great, thank you.   17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Mr. Schmid, you were asked on voir 18 

dire about level of service.  What is, what is, what is level 19 

of service?  What’s that mean? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Level of service is, I guess, a 21 

determination of the actual flow through the intersection, the 22 

A being a, pretty much no delay, pretty much flow, free flow 23 

and F being a condition where there’s congestion. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, if I understand then, level of 25 
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service is a, a letter system where they rank the service, so 1 

to speak, -- 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- of the intersection based on the 4 

delay that one might expect at certain times of the day. 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, it’s A, B, C, D, E, F and there’s 6 

no, as far as I’m concerned, there’s no meaning to the word F, 7 

letter F or E.  F doesn’t mean failed and E doesn’t mean 8 

excellent, so.  It’s just a gradation of all levels, so to 9 

speak. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There we go.  And, -- 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And can I get one?  All, every time 12 

it seems like I’m left out with all these exhibits.  13 

  MR. MCCANN:  I actually, this has already been 14 

parked, hasn’t it? 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  No, I don’t think so.  That must 16 

have been somebody else’s, it wasn’t mine. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don’t mean to complain.  18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I might have given that to you.  19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  (inaudible). 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you very much.  Sir, I’m 21 

showing you this. 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Copies for the Board.   24 

  CHAIR:  Is this thirteen? 25 
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  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes.  Thank you very much.  Do 2 

these, what, what have I handed you?  What, what is this 3 

document? 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s, first there’s a cover sheet or 5 

legend from the County’s basic services transportation map. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  The second page is the 2018 version of 8 

the area around the subject site.  Page is 2017 and 2016.  As I 9 

said, the County updates their basic services map every year. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And this is the basic services map 11 

for transportation, is that correct? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And to your knowledge, there are 14 

other basic services besides transportation? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Sewer. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sewer and water, okay. 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  Correct. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And there are other maps for those 19 

and we’re not interested in that right now. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, does this indicate what 22 

the current basic level of service is for transportation at the 23 

intersection of East Joppa Road and Loch Raven? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s currently rated by the County as a 25 
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D level service. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And just to round out the 2 

conversation, you said these are updated every year? 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, every intersection that has an E 4 

or F, D, E or F rating, is updated every year. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did you say D, E or F? 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  D, E or F is counted and re-evaluated 7 

every year. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And –- 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Those that are A, B, C are evaluated at 10 

least once, once every three years. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And does, does the packet of 12 

information that you have say what the level of service of this 13 

intersection was in 2017? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, in 2017, if you look at the third 15 

page, you’ll see a hollow circle around the intersection.  If 16 

you go to the front page you’ll see the hollow circle 17 

represents the D level of service. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, ‘17 and ‘18 it was both a D 19 

level of service? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And what about ‘16? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  Sixteen is identified as an F level of 23 

service. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, what are the –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  I’m just a bit confused, I’m sorry.  Unless 1 

I’m looking at the wrong intersection, it looks like a circle 2 

that’s half filled, right? 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s the intersection at East Joppa –- 4 

  CHAIR:  Oh, that’s at Perring Parkway. 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- and Perring Parkway. 6 

  CHAIR:  That’s at Perring Parkway. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, sir. 8 

  CHAIR:  Sorry.  I see.  So, the Joppa Road –- 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  At Loch Raven is a D in ‘18, a D in ’17 10 

and an F in 2016. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, from a transportation 12 

perspective, what are the, what is the level of service used 13 

for? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  On Baltimore County, basically, if, if 15 

the County rates an intersection as an E, E or an F, then they 16 

create a transportation zone around that intersection where new 17 

development could impact, it could further degregate the 18 

intersection.  So, it’s, it’s, it’s assigned a, (inaudible) 19 

project is in the, the shed that was developed around the 20 

intersection you’re not allowed to develop. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, if you’re at E or an F, you’re 22 

not allowed to develop? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  But if you’re a D or a C, a B or an 25 
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A, then there, there’s no reason that you couldn’t develop from 1 

that perspective? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct, you can develop, yes. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, now you mentioned an 4 

area around the intersection.  Would that be called the traffic 5 

shed? 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s the traffic shed they draw around 7 

each (inaudible). 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, we’re at D level intersection.  9 

Is there a traffic shed around this intersection? 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  There is, but there’s also inside of 11 

that traffic, no, there is no traffic shed around –- 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  There is no traffic shed, okay.  So, and 13 

we are, our property, if I may approach the Board, this is 14 

number eight, we are right on the south west corner of the 15 

intersection that we’ve been talking about. 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Now, you’ve been present for 18 

this hearing since the beginning? 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, um hm. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And that includes the March 5th 21 

date? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct.   23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, did you hear conver, discussion 24 

among counsel and the Board on, that this property is in a 25 
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commercial revitalization district? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, what is the impact of the 3 

commercial revitalization district on the, the level of service 4 

indicators that we’ve been discussing? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, if you’re a revitalization 6 

district, you’re exempt from the basic services map.  7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, if you’re in a revitalization 8 

district, then if I understand what you’re saying, you may 9 

proceed with your development even if you’re in an E or an F? 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There’s no zoning –- 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m going to move to strike unless 13 

the answer to the question is limited to the level of service 14 

issue.  Now, the witness is not implying or saying that the 15 

commercial revitalization district is irrelevant to the special 16 

exception –- 17 

  CHAIR:  No, no.  He’s, all he’s saying is that if 18 

you’re, if it’s a revitalization district, the level of service 19 

grades are waived. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, I think that’s in the zoning 21 

regulations. 22 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In fairness, I just wanted to make 24 

sure that was clear. 25 



103 
 

  CHAIR:  It’s clear, I think so. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just as to the, the basic services 2 

map issue. 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay, good.   4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In terms of –- 5 

  CHAIR:  I think that’s all the question was.  If I’m 6 

not mistaken. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  That, that’s correct. 8 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s all the question was, yes. 10 

  CHAIR:  All right. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did you visit the site with State 12 

Highway Administration? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, I did.  I met the access permit rep 14 

from district four out there, Richard Zeller. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And I’m going to hand this to Peter, 16 

(inaudible).   17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Oh, thank you. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you very much.  Sorry.  Mark 19 

this as number fourteen.  When you visited the site with Mr. 20 

Zeller, Mr. Zeller deals with access permits? 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, for State Highway. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Does that deal with access to and 23 

from State roads to properties? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  Only in, in this case, Loch Raven 25 
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Boulevard is a State road, Joppa Road is a County road, so the 1 

County controls access to Joppa Road. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did, when you explained to Mr. 3 

Zeller, did, what did, did you explain to Mr. Zeller, he was 4 

present on the property so he saw the existing two curb cuts? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, we, and we talked about the two 6 

curb cuts that are existing and that we were going to, we 7 

planned on closing the acc, the existing access closest to the 8 

intersection, which he was very happy about, -- 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Again, can, I’m sorry to interrupt 10 

again, Mr. Evans. 11 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Just, again, we’re talking about 13 

conversations with a witness who isn’t here.  I understand 14 

hearsay is allowed sometimes but this, this just, the letter is 15 

coming in obviously it is, so. 16 

  CHAIR:  Right, right.  Yeah, right.  We don’t need 17 

any editorial comments, okay? 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  The, but then let’s just 19 

authenticate the letter.  What is that letter? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  This is a letter that the State Highway 21 

generated to the County based on the review of the special 22 

exception plan. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And the, the letter is coming in but 24 

does the, does the letter indicate any technical issues or 25 



105 
 

access, access permit issues beyond that which you would 1 

typically expect for an access permit at this location? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, it just explains what kind of curb 3 

and gutter they want, what kind of section and how they want 4 

the existing access removed and rebuilt. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Are you aware that the site 6 

is presently improved with a four thousand six hundred and 7 

thirty square foot bank building with two drive thru lanes? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, I, it was, operated as a bank 9 

before, I think, and now it’s just an empty building on, on the 10 

property, yes. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, within the scope of your 12 

expertise, are you capable of determining the, the number of 13 

trips to and from a bank building of that site at this 14 

location? 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Objection.  It’s irrelevant.  We’re 16 

not dealing with a bank at this point that was approved twenty 17 

years ago.  So, it’s just total irrelevant. 18 

  CHAIR:  Well, I think the point is going to be 19 

measuring the level of service now compared to what it was when 20 

there was a bank, is that correct? 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Which, which is irrelevant.  In fact, 23 

there was a similar issue about getting into the prior zoning 24 

and I think the Board agreed, if I recall Mr. Evans, that the 25 
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prior zoning, when we’re talking about special exceptions, 1 

we’re not comparing current to past. 2 

  CHAIR:  No, you’re right. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, so. 4 

  CHAIR:  You’re right. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Well, Your Honor, if I may?  6 

People’s Counsel already indicated that the level of service 7 

question is not irrelevant as it relates to the special 8 

exception, although it might be irrelevant with regard to other 9 

zoning regulations. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  I agree it’s relevant, it is relevant, 11 

absolutely, -- 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And to the, and, and if this witness 13 

has a statement that he can provide about how this, the, the 14 

proposed use is going to impact the level of service at the 15 

intersection, then that would be relevant within the con, 16 

within the scope of the special exception. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’d just like to add, we don’t know 18 

what the traffic situation was twenty years ago and we’re 19 

dealing with a case where there was no opposition twenty years 20 

ago.  So, I –- 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I would add that we’re not talking 22 

about twenty years ago, we’re talking about today. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, yeah. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, no, I mean, the bank was 25 
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approved twenty years ago without, without opposition and we 1 

don’t, it’s not clear whether the traffic situation –- 2 

  CHAIR:  Well, let’s see what the witness knows and 3 

then we can make a more informed decision to it. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Great.  So, are you able to make 5 

those calculations what the, let’s say, average number of daily 6 

trips to and from a bank building of that size would, are? 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Objection.  Who cares? 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s the question, that –- 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  What about a gas station that was there 10 

four years ago or what about a, you know, a food stand –- 11 

  CHAIR:  Well, let, let’s, let’s see if he can answer 12 

the question.  Maybe it is not relevant, okay?  But let’s –- 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  If he’s able to, I guess, is the 14 

question. 15 

  CHAIR:  -- let’s see if he’s able to answer this 16 

question. 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, we can, we can predict traffic flow 18 

from various sites and various uses based on information 19 

provided in the Institute of Transportation Engineers’ trip 20 

generation manual, which the County requires us to follow when 21 

we do any kind of traffic analysis. 22 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s fine.  No objection to that. 24 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  The question is going to be, is it going 1 

to be improved here.  Are we changing, are we making things 2 

better, is there going to be less traffic here than there was 3 

at a bank, or will the level of service be different here than 4 

it was at a bank?  That question to me is irrelevant. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, the, People’s Counsel 6 

already indicated that level of service is a relevant 7 

indication when it comes to special exceptions.  And if 8 

changing the use from one to another is going to impact the 9 

level of service at the intersection, that is a relevant 10 

inquiry for the special exception. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  He keeps on missing when he says that 12 

and he said it twice now, level of service for a bank that is 13 

no longer there.  That’s the level of service that he’s now 14 

asking about. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Because the existing level of 16 

service is based on the fact that there is a bank there and if 17 

it is going to change as a result of changing the use to a 18 

different use, then the Board is entitled to know what the 19 

impact of changing the use is going to be on the level of 20 

service at the intersection. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  The impact on the change of level of 22 

service is entirely irrelevant.  The question is, we’re talking 23 

about the, the volume, level of service, for this use.  Is that 24 

greater, lesser, the same then the same use or what is 25 
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inherently associated with that use?  That’s the comparison, 1 

the delta between what’s inherently associated with this use 2 

and with this particular location with this use –- 3 

  CHAIR:  Well, that is, that is, indeed, the ultimate 4 

question. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s the delta.  So, whether or not a 6 

bank is, how that, that analysis compares to a bank is entirely 7 

irrelevant.  8 

  CHAIR:  Well, I thought that what was being said 9 

earlier by Mr. Zimmerman, at the risk of misquoting him or mis, 10 

mischaracterizing him, is that, you know, in general terms, in, 11 

in the assessment of whether some, a special exception should 12 

be granted, that the, the affect, the impact that the proposed 13 

use will have on that particular site is relevant.  So, if the 14 

proposed use is actually going to decrease traffic, then that 15 

is arguably relevant, not to whether it’s an A, B, C, D, E or 16 

F.  But whether it generally, from a, the health, the general 17 

health and welfare of, you don’t think so? 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  (inaudible). 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  May I, may I clarify what I meant? 20 

  CHAIR:  Sure.  Let’s, let’s try and keep it succinct 21 

though, okay? 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, I’m going to try and keep it 23 

really quick.  24 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Without repetition.  May I clarify?  1 

Yes, I believe that the level of service, well, maybe an 2 

exemption from the so called basic servicing, which is a permit 3 

prohibition standard, it is relevant to the special exception.  4 

What I’m trying to say is that a bank that was approved twenty 5 

years ago without opposition at a time when the level of 6 

service situation may have been different, the traffic 7 

situation may have been different twenty years ago, I just 8 

don’t think that rises to the level of relevance, that’s, 9 

that’s my only –- 10 

  CHAIR:  Well, I, I don’t know that the witness is 11 

going to be talking about levels of traffic twenty years ago.  12 

I mean, the bank -- 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But the bank is gone.  I mean, the 14 

bank is gone. 15 

  CHAIR:  Well, when, when did the bank leave? 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  A year ago, it’s vacant, I mean, the 17 

bank –- 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  It’s been, it’s been vacant –- 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- it’s gone. 20 

  CHAIR:  It’s been vacant, it became vacant recently, 21 

okay?  So, if he’s applying these standards, he’s apply the 22 

standards as they exist today or within a couple of years of 23 

today, is he not? 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I’m saying, it doesn’t matter 25 
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what the bank is or is not at this point, is my view.  But it 1 

is relevant to consider this proposal under the current 2 

situation.  I don’t think it’s helpful to go back and, and talk 3 

about what the bank –- 4 

  CHAIR:  But, I mean, well, -- 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- what the bank might be in the 6 

future because there’s not going to be a bank. 7 

  CHAIR:  I, I get that.  So, let, let’s do it this 8 

way.  We’ll reserve on the, on the objection because you may 9 

well be correct. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  I, I think we’re, we’re speaking, and 11 

we’re not, level of service is absolutely relevant, that the 12 

level of service that this will generate is relevant. 13 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  When you start talking about impacts of 15 

level of service, I think you’re suggesting that some change in 16 

the level of service from the current use to this use or some 17 

use fifty years ago, whether it was last year –- 18 

  CHAIR:  Or one year ago. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Or one year ago, six months ago.   20 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  That change, delta, that’s a completely 22 

different delta.  That has nothing whatsoever to do with this 23 

case.  We’re talking about this, so take this very same 24 

Valvoline and put it somewhere else in the district and see 25 
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what the, see what the level of service is there and compare 1 

that to the level of service for, for this Valvoline in this 2 

spot.  That’s the delta we’re talking about. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And Your Honor, I, that is not the 4 

law of the State of Maryland. 5 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, -- 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That is absolutely not correct. 7 

  CHAIR:  -- so, I get that.  I understand your point.  8 

I get it, I understand your point.  So, let’s hear the witness 9 

and we’ll, we’ll, we’ll deal with, we’ll deal with that point 10 

down the road, okay?   11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 12 

  CHAIR:  But let’s at least, we’ll, this way the 13 

record will be complete and we’ll be able to understand.  Maybe 14 

we should end up striking it, maybe we should disregard it.  15 

We’ll, we’ll see. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 19 

  CHAIR:  All right.   20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did you have occasion to compute or 21 

estimate the average daily trips from a four thousand six 22 

hundred thirty square foot bank building with two drive thru 23 

lanes as a result of the methodology that you, you described 24 

earlier? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  Yes.  We determined that the, a bank of 1 

that size would generate forty-four trips in the morning peak 2 

hour, ninety-five trips in the p.m. peak hour and five hundred 3 

trips, 501 trips daily. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, you said three numbers, 5 

501 daily trips. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And what do you mean in the peak 8 

hour as it relates to the ninety-five and the forty-four? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, we, we look at things and when we, 10 

we analyze intersections, we look at the highest hour of 11 

traffic volume in the morning and during the peak times, which 12 

is typically the morning and afternoon.  So, trip generation 13 

manual tells me between 7:00 and 9:00, the peak hour may be 14 

7:30 to 8:30.  So, between 7:30 and 8:30 it predicts that we’re 15 

going to have forty-four cars either coming in or coming out of 16 

the site. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Now, 501 average daily trips 18 

sounds like quite a lot from a forty-six hundred square foot 19 

bank building in Towson, Maryland, 501 trips.  Is there, -- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Object, objection.  That’s a 21 

(inaudible) –- 22 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I’m asking the witness a 24 

question. 25 
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  CHAIR:  That’s a preface to it, that’s just a preface 1 

to his question, okay?   2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you, do, do you know, or can you 3 

infer from what, what generates that number as it relates to, 4 

particularly between 7:00 and 9:00 a.m., like would people be 5 

going to the bank?   6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, over the past ten years, banks 7 

have certainly changed their hours of operations.  I normally 8 

used to go to a bank from 10:00 in the morning till 2:00 in the 9 

afternoon and that was it.  But most banks now are, lobbies are 10 

open or drive ups are open till 6:00 at night.  And now, we’ve 11 

introduced ATM’s, so people can drive up to the drive thru, use 12 

the ATM at any time of the day –- 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- so people are using the, the bank at 15 

10:00 at night to go to the ATM to get cash.  It’s not during 16 

the peak hour, but it’s, it’s certainly daily traffic. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And how, do you base those numbers 18 

that you gave, ninety-nine a.m. peak trips, forty-four p.m. 19 

peak trips and 501 average daily trips on the square footage of 20 

the building? 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct.  That’s where the most, 22 

the best data is for this land use. 23 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I’m sorry, can you get him to say the, 24 

the numbers again? 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure.   1 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Can you say that again? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  A.m. trips are forty-four. 3 

  MS. JOLIVET:  That’s what I thought, okay.  Go ahead, 4 

next one? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  P.m. trips are at ninety-five. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  And daily trips are one, 501. 8 

  MS. JOLIVET:  (inaudible), thank you. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you very much. 10 

  CHAIR:  So, there’s a hundred and fifty trips, a 11 

hundred and forty trips, the forty-four and the ninety-five, 12 

and then, but throughout the entire course of the day –- 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Throughout the rest of the day. 14 

  CHAIR:  -- there’s a total of five hundred, 15 

basically? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I may be moving through this too 18 

quickly. 19 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, let’s make sure that we 21 

understand what the peak hour number means.  And for both the 22 

a.m. and the p.m., if you would just state, clarify what you 23 

mean by that? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, generally, we determine the peak 25 
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hour.  You go out and count the traffic at an intersection 1 

between 6:30 and 9:30 or 7:00 to 9:00 or, or a two or three 2 

hour time period.  And then you look at that data and you find 3 

out the, the highest consecutive five minute periods and that’s 4 

considered the peak hour and that’s what we generate all our 5 

analysis on that peak hour of traffic. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Are you able to generate the 8 

estimated number of average daily trips from a two thousand 9 

five hundred and thirty-five square foot service garage or 10 

perhaps from a, let me clarify the question.  What’s the 11 

average estimated trip generation of a five thousand seventy 12 

square foot service garage with four service bays? 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m, I’m just going to object.  I know 14 

you want to hear the answer (inaudible) object, move to strike.  15 

Everything that was just answered, object, ask for a continuing 16 

objection on all questions going forward.  And the reason, one 17 

more time, I’m sorry if I haven’t made it clear and I haven’t, 18 

I know –- 19 

  CHAIR:  I, I think you have made it clear actually. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  But I can just read what Schultz v. 21 

Pritz says? 22 

  CHAIR:  Sure, sure, sure, sure.  Make the record.  23 

Okay. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  (inaudible) it says, it’s so clear to me 25 
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and this is, what he’s obviously doing is, hearkens back to 1 

what Mr. Zimmerman said at the beginning of this hearing was 2 

what sometimes is engaged in, when people apply special 3 

exception standard is, is this a good project? 4 

  CHAIR:  Um hm. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  And if I were, if I were here, sitting 6 

here, not knowing anything about the special exception 7 

standard, if someone told me wow, this is going to be less 8 

traffic, which is where we’re headed, you know, he’s not hiding 9 

it.  This is going to be less traffic than a bank, I’d say wow, 10 

this is a good development, that would be a reason we should 11 

grant approval.  And that has nothing to do with (inaudible) 12 

and I’ll just read it to you. 13 

  CHAIR:  Okay, fine. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  And this is at page, I’m sorry, it’s on 15 

page ten of the printout, which Mr. Zimmerman has handed out.  16 

A special exception has an adverse effect and must be denied 17 

when it is determined from the facts and circumstances that the 18 

grant of the request of special exception use would result in 19 

an adverse effect upon adjoining and surrounding properties, 20 

unique and different from the adverse effect that would 21 

otherwise result from the (inaudible) of such a special 22 

exception use located anywhere within the zone.  So, we’re 23 

comparing two diff, the same use and, under two different 24 

circumstances. 25 
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  It goes on to say, the appropriate standard, I’m 1 

sorry, I’ll just paraphrase.  The special exception should be 2 

denied, should be denied, I’m sorry.  The, the appropriate 3 

standard for whether a special exception should be denied is 4 

quote, whether there are facts and circumstances that show that 5 

the particular use proposed at the particular location proposed 6 

would have any adverse effects above and beyond those 7 

inherently associated with such special exception use 8 

irrespective of its location within the zone, so -- 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  -- we’re here, if we’re here to look at 11 

good developments, that would be a relevant question, but we’re 12 

not here about good developments, we’re here on the special 13 

exceptions. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, we understand the point. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 16 

  CHAIR:  Okay?  I’m not even sure that, you know, when 17 

you’re talking about a bank that’s open five days a week for 18 

certain hours and a, other facility that’s open seven days a 19 

week for expanded hours –- 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 21 

  CHAIR:  -- not even sure that, you know, that we’re 22 

not talking about apples and oranges, okay? 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Took the words right out of my mouth. 24 

  CHAIR:  But, let’s, let’s just finish it up. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay?  And –- 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s fine if it comes in, I just want 3 

a continuing objection, that’s all. 4 

  CHAIR:  You, you have a continuing, -- 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 6 

  CHAIR:  -- you have a continuing objection. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And I will address counsel’s 9 

assertion of the law at the appropriate time because--  10 

  CHAIR:  At the appropriate time, wonderful. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s fine. 12 

  CHAIR:  Right. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The question on the table, sir, was 16 

whether you can estimate the trip generation from a five 17 

thousand seventy square foot service garage that has four 18 

service bays? 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, the IT trip generation manual has a 20 

land use code for automotive lube centers, which is oil changes 21 

and lubes, and based on the size proposed it would generate 22 

twelve a.m. trips. 23 

  CHAIR:  Twelve what? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  Twelve a.m. peak hour trips, nineteen 25 



120 
 

p.m. peak hour trips and a hundred and sixty daily trips. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And does the manual require that you 2 

take the square footage of the building or the number of 3 

service bays into account or both? 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, there’s different variables but 5 

the most data on this use is by the number of bays. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, that number is generated 7 

primarily by the number of bays? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Will the reduction in trips 10 

have an adverse effect or beneficial effect on the intersection 11 

of the traffic shed? 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Objection. 13 

  CHAIR:  The, the objection is noted. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, I’m sorry. 15 

  CHAIR:  Right. 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  Less traffic is always better. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.   18 

  CHAIR:  So, am, am I, am I correct in saying that Mr. 19 

Kazazian indicated that, that Valvoline’s estimate would be 20 

significantly higher than, in terms of car, daily car trips, 21 

than what –- 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, sir. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  If I may? 24 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I believe that Mr. Kazazian said 1 

that there would be sixty on average customers per day.  I 2 

don’t think he expressed an opinion –- 3 

  CHAIR:  Yes, you’re right, you’re right.  Sixty a 4 

day, right.  Sorry.  Okay. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Have you had an opportunity 6 

to review the site plans that deal with this case? 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, yes, um hm. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And are you familiar with 9 

Petitioner’s number eight, which is this colorized landscape 10 

composite plan that shows the proposed building on the site? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, that looks like the site, yes. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, can you explain for the Board 13 

what the flow of traffic is going to be with regard to this 14 

onsite, how that works? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah.  And I think that’s one of the 16 

compelling arguments about this case is this, the, the 17 

circulation pattern, the ingress and egress pattern is set up 18 

to minimize impact to the adjacent road system.  In bound 19 

traffic will be controlled through the, the traffic light at 20 

Loch Raven and, and Joppa so anybody coming into the site will 21 

either make a, make a right turn and come into the site on Loch 22 

Raven, come straight across Loch Raven and come in, make a left 23 

turn at a protected light at Loch Raven Boulevard to come in or 24 

they’ll make a protected U-turn at north bound Loch Raven 25 
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Boulevard to get back to the site and (inaudible). 1 

  CHAIR:  There’s a permitted U-turn there? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, sir.  And it’s a protected phase, 3 

so the, the green arrow is up, there’s no, it’s exclusive 4 

phasing and there’s exclusive permissive phasing.  Exclusive 5 

phasing is when the arrow is up all the time and you have the 6 

right of way, as a left turning or U-turning vehicle.  7 

Exclusive permissive means you have an arrow for some of it, 8 

then the arrow goes out and you get a green ball, then you can 9 

make a green ball when, this is an exclusive left turn.  You 10 

can’t make the U-turn on a green ball.  All the left turn 11 

movements around this intersection are exclusive.  So, it’s all 12 

protected, that U-turn movement is well protected by the 13 

phasing of the light. 14 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, anybody approaching this site 16 

from any direction needs to enter on the, on Loch Raven. 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  And that’s for a specific purpose.  You 18 

don’t want people entering or trying to make a left turn across 19 

Joppa Road. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, that left turn that you’re 21 

talking about it would be if somebody was trying to enter the 22 

site from Joppa Road? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, if they were traveling west bound 24 

on Joppa Road and the access was here, they would be stopping 25 
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out here in the thru lane to try to get across the two left 1 

turn lanes and the two thru lanes of traffic.  Not something I 2 

would advise anybody doing, but it is pretty common along this 3 

corridor.  So, we’ve basically eliminated these left turn  4 

movements that are much more impact to, to our area road system 5 

than simple right, right ins and right outs, is basically what 6 

we have.  So, the one way system has allowed us to utilize the 7 

light to get people in and to prohibit, we’ve agreed to 8 

prohibit left turns out of this site and, and force people to 9 

go to the right, which again is the simplest movement you can 10 

have, you only have to yield to the people on east bound Joppa 11 

Road. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, when you say right turn out 13 

only, that avoids a situation where you have somebody exiting 14 

the site, crossing over multiple lanes of east bound traffic to 15 

get into the west bound lane of Joppa Road, is that right? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct, yes. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, all the traffic enters 18 

the site, regardless of which direction it’s approaching from 19 

on Loch Raven. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And can you make a left turn from 22 

north bound Loch Raven into the site? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, there’s a raised median. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There’s a raised median there? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, yes.  And so, like the, the 1 

adjacent property, which is a sandwich shop or sub shop, 2 

doesn’t have that ability to have access to two roads and set 3 

up that kind of right in, right out movements.  So, people 4 

forced in here, they want to come out, they only have one way 5 

out.  They have to wait and cross those four lanes of traffic, 6 

which in this area is pretty difficult during the peak times.  7 

So, this location and this location are far inferior to a site 8 

here where we can utilize the two frontages and create this one 9 

way, right in, right out type flow. 10 

  CHAIR:  Is that roughly what the bank had as well? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, the bank had full movement access to 12 

Joppa Road. 13 

  CHAIR:  Had what? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Had full movement access to Joppa Road. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  What does full movement access mean? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  It means you can come in with a left or 17 

right and you can leave with a left or right.   18 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’ll object to that question as well, 19 

Mr. Evans, if you don’t mind. 20 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  I’m just trying to understand the 21 

dynamics of the intersection. 22 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  And the only thing that’s prohibiting 23 

from as they exit the facility on making a left is Valvoline’s 24 

direction that they have to make a right there?  Because 25 
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there’s no curb or median there, right, on Joppa? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, but in reality, if you go up there 2 

and look during peak times, the phasing and the level of 3 

traffic basically prohibits you from trying to even get in the 4 

left turn lane, because if you look at the way the traffic 5 

flows along Joppa Road, traffic is stacked up, it’s serving 6 

Loch Raven Boulevard and traffic, when, when the green comes to 7 

Joppa Road, the first thing that gets green phase is the left 8 

turns, okay?  So, the left turns go and they go and, and then 9 

once the left turn stays out, the, the thru movements go.  And 10 

when the thru movements go, they flow through but some of the 11 

thru movements are going to fill back into the left turn lane 12 

and once you have two or three cars to the left turn lane, you 13 

physically can’t get in the left turn lane.  I sat out there 14 

for, twice, for two or three hours and through two hours there 15 

was one time when you could squeeze across and get in the left 16 

turn lane so it’s self-policing during the peak times. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you have an opinion whether there 18 

would be any cars stacking on the street during the peak hours 19 

or any other time to get into the site or –- 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, I mean, we, we, we calculated we 21 

could get about eleven cars on the site, outside of the four 22 

that’s already in the service bay.  I checked IT and there’s 23 

really no cuing criteria for, a lube, a Valvoline site like 24 

this but, in reality, the way we set this up with four bays, it 25 
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minimizes the impact of cuing on site and minimizes the need 1 

for people to wait in line, where if you had a two car bay you 2 

might have some cuing that extends back and maybe out on the 3 

road but in this location, we’re provided, we’re able to 4 

provide eleven stacking spaces on site, in addition to the four 5 

cars that are already in the bay and we’ll never reach that 6 

kind of, based on the testimony of the operator. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, just that one quick question.  8 

Do you know how many parking spaces are provided for on the 9 

plan? 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  There’s nine spaces. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Nine. 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  Say eight regular spaces and one 13 

handicapped space. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, Mr. Kazazian testified 15 

earlier that there eight.  He, he was mistaken? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, there’s a, it’s under the tree. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you.  Now, are you aware 18 

that the Valvoline operations allow the technicians to control 19 

the release of cars back onto the local roads? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, they, the, their, their policy is, 21 

or procedure is that if two cars are ready to leave at the same 22 

time, the tech (inaudible) employees will only let one car go 23 

and once he egresses out onto the road, they let the other car 24 

go, just to avoid any congestion up at the access point. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, now, I’d like to ask you a 1 

series of questions to discuss the impact of the revitalization 2 

district. 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  Okay. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  On, on, on this site and on the 5 

approvals that are necessary for the site. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Okay. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  I’ll do the best I can. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m going to, I’m going to object 10 

right away.  I don’t think this witness has shown any expertise 11 

about commercial revitalization districts. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  I would, I would agree with that. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I, I can’t even hear counsel’s 14 

objection. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m sorry.  I don’t think this 16 

witness has any expertise with respect to commercial 17 

revitalization district planning.  (inaudible) because he’s a 18 

traffic engineer does not make him an expert on commercial 19 

revitalization -- 20 

  CHAIR:  Well, he’s a, he’s a transportation planner 21 

and I imagine that in the course of planning transportation, he 22 

has to take into account characteristics like revitalization 23 

districts, is that –- 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don’t imagine that that’s true. 25 
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  CHAIR:  You don’t imagine that’s –- 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  We can ask the witness. 2 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, why don’t you. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I mean, he’ll probably say, oh, yeah, 4 

he knows everything about it but, but –- 5 

  CHAIR:  Well, I mean, -- 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- I don’t think traffic engineers –- 7 

  CHAIR:  -- and, and if he does, we’re kind of stuck 8 

with that, I mean, you know. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, not necessarily.  It’s a matter 10 

of credibility.   11 

  CHAIR:  Well, right.  Okay, you can –- 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I just don’t think, I just don’t 13 

think his expertise, so far as we know, just because he’s a 14 

traffic engineer makes him an expert planner with respect to 15 

commercial revitalization, that’s –- 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I, I, I would just add –- 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, that, that, that’s fair enough. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That’s what I was trying to say if 20 

imperfectly. 21 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  And a transportation planner, I think, 23 

is a bit of a misnomer, frankly, because he’s not a, he’s not a 24 

planner, like you know, some other expert may be.  He tran, he 25 
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plans traffic movements, he plans, that’s what he plans.  But 1 

he’s not a planner, like we all know planners to be. 2 

  CHAIR:  Right. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, and CRD clearly deals with planning 4 

aspects, so. 5 

  CHAIR:  So, so let’s, as with these other issues, 6 

let’s, let’s move on and see what we have and then we’ll be in 7 

a better position to –- 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, thank you. 9 

  CHAIR:  -- assess whether it makes a difference or 10 

not. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 12 

  CHAIR:  Whether it’s probative or not, whether his 13 

expertise extends to that point, okay? 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you.  Now, what, are you 16 

aware, do you know what the impact of the revitalization 17 

district is on the regulations that govern level of service? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  In regards to traffic, yes. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Objection.  This is rep, rep, now 20 

this is repetitious. 21 

  CHAIR:  Okay, okay.  Yeah, and, and let’s, you know, 22 

it’s quicker to repeat the question than it is to like object 23 

to it.  24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, -- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Let, let’s just move on.  1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- we’ve been through part of it. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  We, the regulations say, we know that 4 

with respect to level of services that it’s exempt from the 5 

permitting prohibition. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 7 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  We know that, so that was just a 9 

repetition and hopefully if that objection were sustained we 10 

wouldn’t have more repetitive questions, -- 11 

  CHAIR:  Well, we’ll, we’ll see how repetitive this 12 

gets, okay?  Proceed. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  The, the level of 14 

service of this intersection being D, the, am I correct in 15 

understanding that the revitalization district in this area 16 

doesn’t change the prohibitions or the regulatory requirements 17 

of permitting for a level of service D? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, a level service D is an acceptable 19 

level of service so any use could go in there and any use 20 

allowed in the zone by a right or special exception if it, it 21 

was granted would, could be developed there, yes. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, if the intersection were an E 23 

or an F, if the intersection were an E or an F, the property is 24 

still in a revitalization district. 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct, and any permitted use or 1 

special exception use could be constructed in a revitalization 2 

district.   3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Regardless of the level of service 4 

being E or F? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, if the intersection were E or F 7 

and there was no permitting prohibition, there would be a 8 

great, am I correct in my understanding of things, there would 9 

be a greater impact from any use, regardless of what the use 10 

was actually, on that intersection if it were, if the use were 11 

permitted under that clause that says if you’re in a 12 

revitalization district –- 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  We, we, we don’t care about the E or 15 

F? 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Objection. 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 18 

  CHAIR:  Well, now, okay.  So, I’m going to have to 19 

sustain that objection.  The, -- 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  On what basis?  I don’t understand 21 

why you –- 22 

  CHAIR:  Well, the, I didn’t understand the question, 23 

frankly. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Maybe I can ask it again.   25 
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  CHAIR:  If, if the question, let, let, let’s do it 1 

this way.  One would expect greater impact, greater traffic 2 

impact if the intersection is an E or an F then if it’s a D, is 3 

that correct?  Is that not correct? 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, I mean, I mean, it’s a fairly 5 

general question but it depends on what traffic flow it is and 6 

what, what’s critical and what’s not, but generally speaking, 7 

yes.  The higher the traffic (inaudible). 8 

  CHAIR:  Well, this intersection is a D. 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Correct. 10 

  CHAIR:  And so, the revitalization, the fact of re, 11 

that it’s a revitalization district does not impact the level 12 

of service, is that correct?  The level of, you know, is that 13 

correct? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s D level of service, we’re allowed 15 

to develop.  It’s, it’s a known D level service –- 16 

  CHAIR:  Right. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Just for purposes of permitting, we’re 18 

just dealing with that one, -- 19 

  CHAIR:  One –- 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  -- nothing to do with the commercial 21 

revitalization district itself, none of the things that we’ve 22 

been talking about -- 23 

  CHAIR:  Right, just permitting.   24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Just permitting. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Just permitting. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  You can get a permit in a commercial 2 

revitalization -- 3 

  CHAIR:  (inaudible). 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s it. 5 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Just a permit. 7 

  CHAIR:  Just a permit. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And briefly, we’ll get into it in 10 

cross to explain the different set of regulations for growth 11 

management and transportation standards versus special 12 

exception, which is a totally different -- 13 

  CHAIR:  Different –- 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- set of regulations.   15 

  CHAIR:  Got that.  Okay, all right. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  I think that concludes that 17 

question. 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay, great. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I think that will satisfy everybody. 20 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, what, you’ve been involved with 22 

special exceptions on other automotive type uses? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, I mean, mostly gas stations. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Now, what are the adverse 25 
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effects that you would typically associate with a service 1 

garage, from a transportation perspective or traffic 2 

perspective? 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Objection. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is what the witness is, his, 5 

basis of his testimony. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Overruled. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, we’re talking about this 8 

particular use. 9 

  CHAIR:  Yes.  Okay.  Let, let’s, -- 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not a hundred other gas stations, I 11 

mean. 12 

  CHAIR:  Right, so –- 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I asked a question about service 14 

garage. 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  It was overruled, so. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  (inaudible). 17 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, let, let’s just move on, okay?   18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, generally, the inherent impacts 19 

for this is that you’re going to have people coming in and out 20 

of the store throughout the day when it’s opened.  Those impact 21 

with, those in, inbound and outbound movements do affect the 22 

traffic flow along the corridor.  You’ll have employees coming 23 

in and deliveries coming in at this location.  Generally, this, 24 

this type of use wants to be on a high, high visibility, high 25 
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volume corner, like most smaller retail type service 1 

businesses.  So, it’s generally the traffic flow that I would 2 

expect to be generated out of this kind of site, the access 3 

points and how those access points work and the load of traffic 4 

and how it, and, the movements and how, what are the movements 5 

like.  Are they simple movements, are they complicated left 6 

turn movements across arterial traffic flow? 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m moving to strike.  Is the witness 8 

finished?  I’m moving to strike because a service station is a 9 

different category.   10 

  MR. SCHMID:  I didn’t talk about a service station. 11 

  CHAIR:  He, he was specifically about this, this 12 

project. 13 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah. 14 

  CHAIR:  He had limited himself to this, this 15 

particular site. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay?  At least that’s what I heard.  Is that 18 

–- 19 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah, I thought he was –- 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I thought he was talking about 21 

service stations. 22 

  CHAIR:  No, no, he limited himself to this, this 23 

particular site. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, but he was comparing to service 25 
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stations.   1 

  CHAIR:  No. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Wrong about that, that was my sense 3 

of it, not service garages or Valvoline. 4 

  CHAIR:  No, he was just talking about the traffic 5 

flow with regard to this particular site at that, this 6 

particular business, that particular site, okay?   7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Does the site design that you see 8 

here minimize the impact of those, of those, minimize the 9 

effect of those of, adverse effects that you previously 10 

discussed? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, mainly in terms of access and 12 

access flow and how traffic will get out and in.  And the way 13 

we have it set up is a one way loop with coming in off of Loch 14 

Raven and making a right out onto Joppa Road simplifies our 15 

movements and those movements are the lowest conflicting 16 

movements you can have.  So, we’ve limited ourself to right 17 

in/right outs and abandoned any kind of left turns or in or out 18 

that caused conflict. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Are those adverse effects that you 20 

identified, I’m going to ask a very specific question.  Will 21 

the proposed use, being this service garage, this Valvoline 22 

service garage, at this proposed location, at the south west 23 

intersection of Joppa and Loch Raven, create any adverse 24 

effects from a traffic perspective above and beyond the adverse 25 
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effects typically associated with the proposed use being a 1 

service garage regardless –- 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  (inaudible) –- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- of where it is located in the, in 4 

the zone? 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Object.  It’s leading and –- 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- and ambiguous.   8 

  CHAIR:  Well, -- 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  How could it be ambiguous?  It’s 10 

directly from the case. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, lead, leading. 12 

  CHAIR:  What, what, what zone are we talking about?  13 

Can you define the zone? 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Are you aware of which, what zone it 16 

is? 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s BL zone. 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, the question is, what im, -- 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  It’s not a leading question.   20 

  CHAIR:  -- how does the impact here compare with the 21 

impact at a similar zone? 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  No, no, it’s not. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  There’s no foundation for it.  24 

There’s really no foundation for being aware of other –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Could, could you, could you repeat the 1 

question? 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure.  Maybe I’ll rephrase the 3 

question. 4 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And see if we can do better. 6 

  CHAIR:  All right. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Are you aware, you previously 8 

testified what you would expect for adverse effects from a 9 

service garage, just, five minutes ago. 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, yes. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And there were a number of 12 

objections and they were overruled.  And you’re aware this is 13 

in the BL zone? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, the adverse effects that you 16 

identified here, specifically with regard to this site design 17 

at this location, are they above and beyond the adverse effects 18 

that you previously identified as being those that are typical 19 

for this proposed use, regardless of where it might be located 20 

in the zone?   21 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, this, this is a fairly typical 22 

impact and, as a matter of fact, as I’ve already testified to 23 

based on the, the access pattern we’ve implemented here, we’re 24 

eliminating some of the more conflicting movements that could 25 
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have occurred at a, if this site, site was next door. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you.  The, what about 2 

impacts on the secondary road system?  And by that, I mean, 3 

like right down Loch Raven, there are a number of side streets 4 

that enter into like a residential community.  Do you have a, 5 

do you have an opinion on what the adverse effects from this 6 

use at this location would be on that road system? 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m sorry, Dino, would you mind 8 

repeating the question? 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m sorry, I missed it. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  There are, I was identifying that 12 

there were a number of side streets that enter off of Loch 13 

Raven and off of Joppa Road and I was asking him if this, this 14 

proposed use at this location, what the impact on those side 15 

streets would be. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, thank you. 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, they would be minimal at best.  I 18 

mean, like we said, we’re at an arterial, arterial intersection 19 

so most people are going to arrive to the site and leave the 20 

site by the arterial road system.  The only movement that I 21 

think that people who are familiar with the area maybe that 22 

want to proceed back to the west, west on Joppa Road, I would 23 

assume they would go down and make a U-turn into Takoma, is it 24 

Takoma?  And then come back out to the light and make a left 25 
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turn at the protected light.  Some people if they have a GPS or 1 

something that tells them to go somewhere else, they could go, 2 

cut across the side street over here to Pleasant, I think it’s 3 

Pleasant Plains Road, that goes up to Joppa Road at a traffic 4 

light.   5 

  But the impact to that kind of flow would be minor 6 

because this, we don’t, there is a peak, there’s a peak time at 7 

the, that he testified to, that generally afternoon, but 8 

generally this is pretty busy all day long.  It’s pretty over, 9 

the traffic is spread over a whole day, not like an office 10 

building that everybody comes in in the morning and stays.  11 

This, this is sort of generating traffic throughout the day, 12 

spread out through the day so there’s possibilities of impact 13 

back there, but any use in that location would have that same 14 

issue. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, speaking of Yakoma, do you know 16 

where the nearest bus stop is? 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  At Yakoma. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And is that, what, about a block 19 

away? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, that’s right down here. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 22 

  CHAIR:  When you say down there, you mean? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  First street -- 24 

  CHAIR:  South, south bond on Joppa Road, south of the 25 
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site? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, the first, first intersection south 2 

of the –- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And Your Honor, you said Joppa Road, 4 

but I think he was pointing to Loch Raven. 5 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Loch Raven. 6 

  CHAIR:  I, I meant Loch Raven, yes. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 8 

  CHAIR:  You’re, thank you.   9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, there’s, I think three different 10 

bus lines that run up Loch Raven Boulevard and go straight 11 

across and then go to the park and ride down at the 12 

interchange, then circle back around.  One of the buses, I 13 

think, actually makes a left turn at Joppa Road and goes into 14 

Towson. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The, will the, if the special 16 

exception, if granted, would it create any congestion in the 17 

road, streets or alleys of the general vicinity of this area? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, and what would you, so what would 19 

you identify as the vicinity of this area?  The locality, so to 20 

speak? 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  If I had to come up with an area, I 22 

would probably say the revital, revitalization district from, 23 

probably the beltway, it goes beyond the beltway to, to Perring 24 

Parkway but I don’t think it’s the same, different land uses up 25 



142 
 

there.  I would go from the beltway over past (inaudible) 1 

around Pleasant Plains Road, that strip along the corridor. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And north and south, what about 3 

along –- 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  It goes down along Loch Raven Boulevard 5 

down some ways. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah.  And these are old, this is, 8 

neighborhood, there’s older uses that have their own access 9 

points and sometimes they have two access points and 10 

(inaudible) a very old, older designs and, and it’s a plethora 11 

of access points all along the corridor. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s all I have for him.  Thank 13 

you.   14 

  CHAIR:  So, it’s time for cross.  Let, let, let me 15 

just say this.  I, I’ll have to consult with my colleagues 16 

here, but my inclination is that you, Mr. McCann, you were 17 

correct in terms of the prior use, prior bank use, and how 18 

that’s not particularly relevant here today. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 20 

  CHAIR:  So, I just want to give you that heads up 21 

before you start your cross, okay? 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  Great. 23 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.   25 
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  CHAIR:  I think you’re probably right on that. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.   2 

  CHAIR:  Some, some of us, some of our minds don’t 3 

work quite as quickly as others. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, good.  So, I won’t address that.  5 

I wasn’t going to anyway but. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Good afternoon, Mr. Schmid. 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Good afternoon. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, I, I guess I’ll start sort of where 10 

you ended.  You, you, you testified that you did not believe 11 

that this proposal would create congestion and you, you recall 12 

that? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, um hm. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  But you, but you do agree, and it sounds 15 

like you agree with this, that since we’re having this one turn 16 

or loop movement, that since all the cars are going to be 17 

coming out of the exit on Joppa Road, that there will be, for 18 

those cars coming out certainly and the cars that are receiving 19 

those cars, there will be some congestion as they, as they 20 

head, as they’re forced to east bound?  It will be some 21 

congestion there? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’ll be some conflicting movements but 23 

that, I wouldn’t call that congestion.  That’s all along this 24 

corridor when somebody tries to make a right turn out of an 25 
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access and, and somebody slows down in the thru, thru lane and 1 

it’s, perceive a gap, they, they go out into the gap. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  3 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s not causing congestion. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, I guess congestion is a relative 5 

term but cars coming out are going to have to turn right and 6 

they’re going to face difficulties sometimes getting into the 7 

flow of traffic, particularly since that exit is so close to 8 

the light at Joppa and Loch Raven? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  We would anticipate during the peak 10 

times that people are going to go either straight or right. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  But either, you would, you would 12 

also agree with me that people are going to try to get in the 13 

left hand lane, left hand, as they make that turn out of the 14 

exit to head east on Joppa, they’re going to try to get, some 15 

people are, I mean, you know how people are, are going to try 16 

to get into that left lane to turn left to go north on Loch 17 

Raven so they can get to 695 or wherever.  You would agree 18 

that’s going to happen, right? 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  I agree there’s outliners that’ll do 20 

some stupid things, yeah. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, -- 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t even think they’re going to be 23 

able to do it.  As I explained before, you can’t leave this 24 

driveway access from 3:00 till 6:00 because the traffic is cued 25 
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past the entrance. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  So, you can’t get across the thru lanes 3 

and the left turn lanes to get in that left turn lane. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, people, people, some people will 5 

try to do it.  I mean, let’s be honest, right? 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  And since we’re so close to the 7 

intersection it’s probably better than if we were further back, 8 

because again, the way the lights are faced, -- 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- if somebody happens to be an idiot 11 

and pulls out and blocks the thru lane to get into the left 12 

turn lane that they can’t get into –- 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- they’re just going to stop the cue 15 

from that point back and soon as the light, the first thing 16 

that goes green is the left turn, left turn, that guy gets in 17 

the left turn lane and goes and then the, the thru traffic 18 

pulls up to the red light.   19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  How far is the exit onto Joppa 20 

from the actual intersection roughly? 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s seventy-five feet. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, and, and to get to that left turn 23 

lane as you’re heading east bound on Joppa and to take a left, 24 

if you were to take a left, there is a turn lane there, right, 25 
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a left turn lane? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Could you, could you repeat that?  I was 2 

(inaudible). 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’m sorry.  If you, for a person 4 

pulling out of the exit, going east on Joppa, if they wanted to 5 

take a left hand turn lane on north, going north on Loch Raven, 6 

there is a turn lane that they’d have to get to to do that, 7 

right? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, there’s a double left turn lane. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, so two left turn lanes. 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  Two left turn lanes. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  And then in addition to those two left 12 

hand turn lanes, there’s also one or two just –- 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Two thru lanes. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Two thru, so there’s four east bound 15 

lanes on, on, on Joppa? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  But you’d only cross two of them to get 17 

to the left turn lanes. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Cross two to get to the two turning 19 

lanes. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, I’m sorry. 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  And, you know, and –- 23 

  CHAIR:  Is, is the, is the further, furthest most 24 

right hand lane, that’s not a right turn only? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  No, sir, it’s a right and a thru. 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah.  And you know, during, it’s, it’s 3 

a, it’s, it’s a function, the difficulty of movement is a 4 

function of the time of day.  You go out there at 7:30 in the 5 

morning, like I was this morning, the heavy traffic is west 6 

bound towards Annapolis. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  East bound is not that heavy and the 9 

right, the left turn is not that heavy.  So, once that flushes 10 

out, there’s gaps galore for you to pull out and get in the 11 

left turn lane. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Same is not the case in the, in the 13 

evening though? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Evening it’s, you can’t, there’s a point 15 

where you cannot make that movement if, even if you tried 16 

because of the stacking I, that I, I talked about. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, as you said, it’s self-policing. 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  You said, so there, there are folks on 20 

this road, I’m sorry, that are leaving, that are going to leave 21 

this site, if it’s, if it’s approved, that are going to engage 22 

in some level of self-policing as they try to head out and head 23 

east bound on Joppa? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, we try to hope people know how to 25 
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drive, make good decisions. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you said, you talked about 2 

inherent impacts and the impacts associated with this use.  3 

What, if any, other intersections did you look at and by look 4 

at, I don’t, I’m not asking that you’re familiar with, I’m 5 

asking you did you take this site plan and move it to any other 6 

intersections along Joppa or any similar thoroughfare and see 7 

what the impacts might be there?  Did you engage in that 8 

analysis? 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, that, I would object to 10 

that question.  11 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, we’re --   12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Just note the objection. 13 

  CHAIR:  I’ll note the objection.   14 

  MR. MCCANN:  (inaudible). 15 

  CHAIR:  It’s overruled. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 17 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Did you look at other intersections, 19 

specifically? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, because once we believed that this 21 

site had less impacts that are inherent to a typical use 22 

because of the way we set up our access points, my 23 

determination is the inherent impacts here at this location for 24 

this use is less than -- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Well, it’s less? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Less. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  You didn’t say less before, you just 3 

said not more. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  I’m saying it now, it’s less.   5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Because of the removal of those left 7 

turn movements in and out.   8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Because of the loop you created? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah.  Now, if you put this site next 10 

door where the sub shop is, much greater impact because it only 11 

has one access point to Joppa Road and all the inbound and 12 

outbound movements have to come out of that access. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Can you think of any other 14 

intersection along Joppa Road where there is, well, strike 15 

that.  That’s okay, I’ll move on.  Okay.  You mentioned in 16 

discussing level of service, you called the, the County’s 17 

methodology, did you call it double cycle? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, my, I sometimes call it double 19 

cycle, they call it something else too sometimes, loaded cycle. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Loaded cycle? 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah.  And loaded cycle means you 22 

couldn’t through on the green phase so it’s a loaded cycle. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  And we’ll get to that in a 24 

moment.  But and I, and you may have just been overstating this 25 
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but you said A through F are the, the grades, right, for the 1 

load cycle method? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  You, and you said F being congestion. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  You actually said those words. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  You would agree with me that there is 8 

congestion short of F for, for levels, certainly with level, 9 

with respect to level D, there’s congestion associated with a 10 

level D intersection, right? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  There’s double cycling associated with 12 

D, yes. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, in other words, and just for, 14 

maybe this would be most helpful at this point forward, start 15 

talking about double cycling.  Let me give, this would be 16 

number nine?  (inaudible)?   17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You are. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Great.  It’s unusual for me to be on top 19 

of that.  Okay.  So, this is Protestant’s nine.  I’ll represent 20 

to you that this is a printout from Baltimore County’s website 21 

describing level of service ratings and this load factor that 22 

we’ve been discussing. 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Okay. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Do you agree with me, that’s what it is? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t know, I haven’t read it, but. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, take a look at it.  Just 2 

make sure I’m not making anything up.   3 

  MR. SCHMID:  This appears to be a synopsis of their 4 

methodology, yes. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and I don’t want to go into too 6 

much details, try and move things along here, but let’s just go 7 

directly to page three of five, if you would, in this exhibit? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, um hm. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  And this is a chart indicating the level 10 

of service A through F and the load factor, just, you could 11 

probably explain this better than I, but let me just get, take 12 

a shot at it.  With the percentages to the right of that level 13 

of service is the percentage of time that it takes more than 14 

one change in lights to accommodate the traffic that has cued. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, if the, counsel would 16 

like to cross examine the witness on the methodology, perhaps 17 

he can provide the actual methodology and not just a snippet 18 

from the County’s website.   19 

  CHAIR:  Well, -- 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I think this is a very limited 21 

probative value.  I don’t think if, the witness may know these 22 

things off the top of his head, but if there’s some type of 23 

question here about what the methodology actually is and 24 

whether this intersection somehow complies with it or doesn’t, 25 
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perhaps that methodology could be supplied to him in a form 1 

that’s not from a website that was last updated three years 2 

ago. 3 

  CHAIR:  Well, let’s see if the, so –- 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m just asking a question about a 5 

chart. 6 

  CHAIR:  -- the, the, the way objections are handled 7 

is kind of sauce for the goose and sauce for the gander, okay? 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay?  So, Mr. McCann gets to ask his 10 

question, all right?  And if the witness can’t answer it 11 

because he doesn’t have the information or this is an inadeq, 12 

insufficient document then he’ll, he can say so. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  Yeah, I’m just focusing on the 15 

chart, that’s all.  Just that, and do you recognize the chart? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, um hm. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  In fact, it’s the same chart 18 

that’s in the, the Code, isn’t it?  Or –- 19 

   MR. SCHMID:  Same percentages.  20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, okay.  So, that’s all I’m asking 21 

about and my question again is with respect to D in particular, 22 

level of service D, what that percentage means is that, that’s 23 

the percentage of time, thirty-one to seventy percent of the 24 

time it’ll take more than one change in the traffic signal to 25 
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accommodate the traffic that has cued? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Along one approach. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Along one, right. 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  One approach.  It’s the worst –- 4 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- approach is what gives it the level 6 

of service.  So, -- 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, in other words, -- 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- you could have one double cycling 9 

sixty, sixty-five percent of the time and get a D for the other 10 

three approaches double cycle (inaudible). 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right, as long as one of the four 12 

approaches? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct.   14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Do you know how many approaches 15 

here are, are, are D? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  No. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and that, okay.   18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, all the approaches are D.  At 19 

least D. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right. 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Some of the approaches may be F. 22 

  CHAIR:  Right, if one approach is D, they’re all D. 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  They’re all D, sorry. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Got it, okay.  Got it. 25 
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  CHAIR:  What, what he was asking –- 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 2 

  CHAIR:  -- is do, do you know which particular –- 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, I don’t. 4 

  CHAIR:  -- access was, is worse than any other 5 

particular access and the answer is no. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t know that. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  And I know congestion is, we were 8 

talking about congestion before, I know that’s a relative term 9 

but –- 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  -- would you agree with me that a, that 12 

a set of cuing vehicles that has to wait thirty-one to seventy 13 

percent of the time to, to, to get through a cycle is, is some 14 

level of congestion?  I mean, that’s congestion, isn’t it? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, I didn’t make up these levels of 16 

service and criteria, the County Council did. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and then is this accurate, at the 18 

bottom of page three, since there’s some question about the 19 

accuracy of the County’s website, it says level of service D 20 

intersection do not control issuance of building permits but 21 

the areas are identified on the basic service transportation 22 

maps to identify the deficiency.  The purpose of identifying D 23 

intersection is to provide notice to the public that the 24 

intersection has the potential of going to an E or F.  Is that 25 
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an accurate statement, what I just read to you? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, and sometimes they can go from an 2 

E to a D. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, okay. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Like it did here. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  And I think you’ve acknowledged as much 6 

in, in one of the Petitioner’s exhibits reflects that this 7 

intersection previously was, in 2016, rated F, right? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  And is it true, in fact, that prior to 10 

2016, in 2013 and ‘14 included, it was likewise an F 11 

intersection? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t know, I know as far back as four 13 

years, I don’t know, ‘18, ‘17, ‘16 and ‘15. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Do this quickly.  I got a couple 15 

exhibits that I’m, will essentially introduce but I’m asking a 16 

question or two.  This will be ten.  Ten. 17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Ten, Mr. Schmid.   19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  This is ten? 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Ten.  Eleven.   21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Thank you. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Eleven.  And twelve.  Twelve.  Thank 23 

you.  Twelve, Mr. Schmid.   24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Is this, okay, thank you.   25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  So, I don’t want to spend a lot of time 1 

on these other than ask you maybe to help me identify them.  2 

They are public records, but beginning with Exhibit 10, Mr. 3 

Schmid, that’s the one page, you have that in front of you, 4 

correct? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes.   6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Do you recognize this, this type of 7 

document?  This is a County document that –- 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, this is what they produce when 9 

they do their yearly –- 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, my point simply on this 11 

exhibit is, is it, does this exhibit not confirm that the 12 

intersection of Joppa Road and Loch Raven Boulevard, which is 13 

the last line item, reflects a level of service F for 2013 and 14 

2014? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  And then quickly moving to eleven, this 17 

is, do you recognize this document as the, -- 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  What’s the date? 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  The November 19th, 2018. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Okay, okay. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Do that one first maybe?   22 

  CHAIR:  No, don’t you mean the Jan, the January 5th 23 

one? 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, the other one, I’m sorry.  Yeah, 25 
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January 5th, 2018. 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  January 5th, okay. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  This is, this is the type of memo that’s 3 

issued every year by the Department of Public Works, I’m sorry, 4 

by the Bureau of Traffic Engineering that identifies the D, E 5 

and F intersections in the County? 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  That is correct, they do a report to the 7 

Council people. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right. 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  (inaudible) then they say what changed 10 

from the year before. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right.  So, this, this is sort of a 12 

standard document that, every year, right? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  And then this document is used by the 15 

County Council to develop the basic services maps, right? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  Hold on.  The Council develops the basic 17 

services map –- 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, they don’t, they approve them, I’m 19 

sorry. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  They approve them, right. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Or not. 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and real quick, another question on 24 

Exhibit 10, this document reflects, does it not, that the level 25 
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of ser, reflects the, the D level of service for Joppa Road and 1 

Loch Raven and that’s on sort of page one of the attachment to 2 

the memo, about two-thirds of the way down, do you see that? 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, um hm. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  A D in ‘16 and a D in ‘17. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  You were referring to number eleven, 7 

were you? 8 

  CHAIR:  Number ten.   9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Ten, which is January 5th, 2018. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I thought that, pardon me, I’m 11 

sorry, I thought that ten was just this, is this not a separate 12 

exhibit?   13 

  CHAIR:  Oh, right, right, right. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  That, that’s ten. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, I made -- 17 

  CHAIR:  It’s actually in eleven.  You’re right. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  This is eleven, I’m sorry. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Eleven is January 5th, 2018? 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Correct. 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  And these are, correct me if I’m 24 

wrong, Mr. Schmid, these are all of the, the, the two page or 25 
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attachment to the memo, these are all of the D, E and F 1 

intersections in the entire County, correct? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t know, but I would think that’s 3 

true, yes. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, relatively speaking, there, 5 

in comparison to the total number of intersections, it’s, it’s 6 

relative rare, would you agree with me, that an intersection 7 

be, have a level of service D, E or F? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  D, E or F? 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes. 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  I think probably D is pretty common 11 

along arterial roads.   12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Pretty common?  Well, how, how many 13 

arterial, how many intersections are there within the URDL in 14 

Baltimore County? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  They’re just signalized intersections. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  I know.  But how many, how many sig, 17 

signalized intersections are there in Baltimore County within 18 

the URDL? 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  I have no idea. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.   21 

  MR. SCHMID:  But it wouldn’t be uncommon for me to 22 

see D levels of service along arterials like U.S. 40 or Harford 23 

Road or Joppa Road or, you know.  I always say if it’s not a D 24 

level of service we’re underutilizing the intersection.   25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Move to strike.  That is total 1 

speculation and conclusory without any foundation. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  That, that’s granted.  That’s granted. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, then with respect to 4 

Protestant’s Exhibit 12, I guess the same questions, Mr. 5 

Schmid.  This is the, sort of the same type of memo, this is 6 

dated November 19, 2018 that identifies the D, E and F 7 

intersections as, as proposed by the Bureau of Traffic 8 

Engineering, correct? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  All right.  You have any 11 

knowledge or information that would support why the 12 

intersection was changed from an F to a D? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t think I saw any physical changes 14 

out there.  So, it has to be timing. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  It has to be what? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  Seq, sequencing to the lights, the 17 

timing. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  They may have spread out the delay along 20 

all the approaches to keep it from –- 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- being seventy percent on when 23 

approach. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, are, are you familiar with any data 25 
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or information that would support that there’s been a decrease 1 

in the volume on Joppa Road?  You’re, you’re not aware of any 2 

such information are you? 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, but I don’t, I don’t believe volumes 4 

are, are, are increasing that significantly anymore. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  All right.  Let me show you Exhibit 13.  6 

This is the last one.  And there’s a lot of information on here 7 

so I’ll just sort of cut to the chase, but number one, do you 8 

recognize Exhibit 13 as turning movement count data of 9 

Baltimore County? 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  (inaudible) turning movement count is 11 

also the field sheet that shows the counts and the, and the 12 

percent of double cycling –- 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right. 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- on each approach during the a.m. and 15 

p.m. peak hour.   16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right.  So, and this is, up, upper right 17 

hand column, this is from April 2014, right? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, if we were to look at just pure 20 

volume for Loch Raven and Joppa in the a.m., we would like at 21 

about a third of the way down where it says a.m. hour totals 22 

and then look to the right, those totals on the right hand side 23 

of zero to three thousand seven hundred forty-nine, those would 24 

reflect the, collectively would reflect the, the ADT’s, the 25 
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average daily trips or actually daily trips for those hours in 1 

the a.m., correct?  That’s traffic volume, that last column? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s peak hour. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Peak hour. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Not daily. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right, I’m sorry.  From 6:00 to 7:00, 6 

7:00 to 8:00 and 8:00 to 9:00, correct.   7 

  MR. SCHMID:  So, you can see from the chart the, the 8 

peak hour is 7:00 to 8:00 because that’s, well 7:15 to 8:15, 9 

because that’s the highest total volume. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and then just to, at the bottom of 11 

the same first page are the p.m. hour totals, that last column 12 

on the right hand side.  You see those numbers? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  And I lied, I have another 15 

exhibit for 2017, the same document. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Could Mr. McCann keep his voice up? 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Sure.  Just real quick, is this 18 

document, this two page document, which is Protestant’s Exhibit 19 

14, is this the same turning movement count data only for March 20 

of 2017? 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Oh, yeah, it’s a different day. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Different month.   24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and if we were to compare the peak 25 
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hour a.m. and peak hour p.m. totals on the right hand column in 1 

2017, would you agree with me that the volume of traffic as 2 

reflected in these two reports, Exhibits 13 and 14, has 3 

increased from 2014 to 2017? 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, along, along Joppa Road. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  Okay.  So, before I forget, I 6 

would move ten, eleven, twelve, thirteen and fourteen into 7 

evidence. 8 

  CHAIR:  They’re admitted. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.  Okay.  Just a couple more 10 

questions.  We talked about the commercial revitalization 11 

district and I understand your testimony that when it comes to 12 

commercial revitalization districts, level of services D, E and 13 

F don’t have any effect on or don’t, are not subject to the 14 

prohibition against permits being issued, correct? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Other than that, did, did you 17 

personally take a look at the master plan and its provisions 18 

regarding commercial revitalization districts in conducting 19 

your analysis? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  No. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  No. 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  Just, I just worried about the traffic 23 

part. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.   25 
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  CHAIR:  He’s not a planner. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right, that’s right.  I should know that 2 

before I asked.  Okay.  And that is all I have, thank you, Mr. 3 

Schmid. 4 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Mr. Zimmerman? 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, briefly, Mr., Mr. Schmid, 6 

your degree from the University of Maryland, College Park is 7 

in, Master’s in Civil Engineering in 1981, correct? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  You don’t have a degree in 10 

Comprehensive Planning or Urban Planning? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, I have a Civil Engineering degree 12 

from the University of Maryland. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Just a, you 14 

mentioned the, the County Code and I’m not trying to be picky 15 

but let’s take a look at the zoning regulations, Section 4-A-0-16 

2, or actually beginning with Section 4-A-0-1, but I presume at 17 

some point you’ve read these, section that I’m showing you –- 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- on page 4-A:10 on the 20 

transportation basic services dis, provision. 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Is that what you were referring to 23 

when you were talking about the County Code? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, I mean, (inaudible). 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, no, just want to –- 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, so, without reading everything, 3 

it looks like the level of service references the so called 4 

highway capacity manual of 1965.  Is that your understanding of 5 

where these levels of service come from? 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  No. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And how, why does the, the law then 8 

refer to the highway capacity manual? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  I have no idea. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, isn’t that what’s supposed to 11 

be followed according to the law? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, I follow the, I, I don’t do any 13 

calculations.  I look at the basic services map and the County 14 

identifies what do that level of service, how they operate, 15 

period. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Well, there are references in 17 

this section to, to C, F, E, D and so on, correct? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  They’re very, okay. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, -- 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, may, can we just ask 23 

counsel to identify the sections that he’s referring to? 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I’m in 4-A –- 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Because I’m having a hard time 1 

following. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- 0-2.4D, excuse me, did I say, 4-A-3 

0-2 –- 4 

  CHAIR:  Point. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- .4 generally, basic services 6 

mapping standards, subsection D, transportation.   7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Point four, okay. 8 

  CHAIR:  Okay? 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and I’m, pages 4-A:10 and 4-10 

A:11.  Okay and there are references to levels of service in 11 

various parts of this subsection, correct? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I’m just trying to figure out, 14 

according to the law at least, what, what is the source by 15 

which the Public Works Department is, is supposed to define or 16 

delineate, what is A, B, C, D and F, D, E, F.  And I see the 17 

highway capacity manual mentioned and you say oh, no, that’s 18 

not –- 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, the highway capacity manual in 20 

1965, I was six.  I’m not sure that it had a reference to 21 

loaded cycle methodology but maybe it did. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, that’s, but that’s in our law, 23 

right?  I mean, that’s in the law here.  So, you’re saying the 24 

law has nothing to do with it? 25 
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  CHAIR:  No, he’s really not saying that. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, -- 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay, all right.  Well, -- 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay?   4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- well, what, you know, so what 5 

then, so what document do we go to, what piece of paper do we 6 

go to?  Is it the, Mr. McCann did give you a, the loading 7 

factors in, in the document that the Public Works Department 8 

publishes online, correct? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  I went to the County’s website and I 10 

have it on my wall at my office. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Well, is Mr., is what, you 12 

agree what Mr. McCann gave you is accurate as to what the 13 

County publishes? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Oh, yes, yes, yeah, um hm. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And do you know where they get those 16 

definitions of A, B, C, D, E and F?  Or they make them up, I 17 

mean, what, where do they come from? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Somebody developed the procedure to do 19 

this.  I’m not sure when, but the procedure was –- 20 

  CHAIR:  Right, that, that, that’s absolutely the 21 

point here, I think.  Is it’s, the County, through whatever 22 

process it undertakes, whether it refers to the 1965 23 

transportation manual or not, the County is the one that comes 24 

up with the grades and the, and then the County Council 25 
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ratifies it.  So, it’s not actually Mr., it’s not the witness’ 1 

job to come up with those definitions.  He simply follows what 2 

the County issues, for good or ill. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Well, I just, since this is an 4 

expert, I thought perhaps the expert might know where these 5 

come from. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, -- 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But I, I get the Chairman’s point. 8 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I’ll move on. 10 

  CHAIR:  I mean, it, it comes from the County. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Anyway –- 12 

  CHAIR:  (inaudible). 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- there’s no, there’s no dispute 14 

about what Mr. McCann submitted, right?  About the authenticity 15 

of it? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  All the grades that back, back, years 17 

ago? 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I would, right. 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, correct. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And just to clarify rather than 21 

waiting to brief it, the reference to the commercial 22 

revitalization district exemption, or actually so called 23 

general exception to basic services mapping standards, is on 24 

page 4-A-12 and 13, Subsection E-1-I.  Do you see that?  This 25 
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is what really you’ve been referring to? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Exception, quote, to any development 3 

located in a commercial revitalization district, unquote. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Like all industrial developments 7 

(inaudible) there’s exceptions to the map. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Now, if it were not exempt, then 9 

there would be a, at least temporary prohibition on permitting 10 

–- 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Not (inaudible) –- 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- not exempt, if it were an E or F, 13 

if it were an E? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  If it was an E or F. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes, that’s my point. 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, if it was in a revitalization 17 

district, no, it –- 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, but I’m saying if it were not, 19 

if there were no such exemptions in the law. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, this is the same line of 21 

questioning that his objection against my questions were 22 

sustained. 23 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’m just trying to clarify –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  We, we get the point. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- what the issue is.  Okay. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But, and, and the point is, whether 4 

the use is permitted by right or special exception, other than 5 

those that are exempt or excepted, any E or F would be subject 6 

to that prohibition. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct.  Unless you got a 8 

variance, applied for a variance. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  There’s a so called 10 

special variance provision, right, in the law. 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I get that. 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  But this is a different 15 

set of regulations from the special exception regulations.  16 

  MR. SCHMID:  In Schultz v. Pritz, you mean? 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, I mean, do you know where the 18 

special exception standards are located in the zoning 19 

regulations? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What section?  Now, without, this is 22 

not an open book exam.  Do you know what section? 23 

  CHAIR:  Well, -- 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Come on, I mean is that for real? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  502.1. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, we, -- 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 4 

  CHAIR:  -- it’s clear, we understand –- 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 6 

  CHAIR:  -- the point is made that -- 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 8 

  CHAIR:  -- that the special exception provisions have 9 

their own set of criteria. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, in fairness, I, I think the 11 

whole issue has been confused by bringing up all this stuff. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  About the exemption.  It could have 14 

been done in like one sentence, maybe. 15 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, in any event, -- 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  All right.  So, -- 17 

  CHAIR:  -- we’re, we’re, where we are now, we 18 

understand the, the distinction –- 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- the Board has it.  Okay. 20 

  CHAIR:  -- and the, and we’re happy to move on. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  I, and I will.  All 22 

right.  So, I’m, I’m interested in a few further questions 23 

about the exhibit that Mr. McCann produced about the loading 24 

factors and I don’t remember what the number is. 25 
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  CHAIR:  I think that’s nine.  1 

  MR. MCCANN:  It is nine. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And let me show it to the witness, 3 

Protestant’s nine.  (inaudible).  Okay.  So, the, so first, 4 

well, we know there are six different levels, correct? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And A is best, F is worst, we, we all 7 

agree on that? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, D, as it’s been pointed 10 

out, says load factor of thirty-one percent to seventy percent, 11 

correct? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  Correct. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That, and that translates to, did you 14 

say, you have to go through a full cycle before, before you’re 15 

able to get through the intersection? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  During, during a peak hour, when the 17 

light goes green on whatever approach failed, which I think is 18 

west bound Joppa Road in the morning or got the highest 19 

percentage.  Seventy percent of the time during that peak hour 20 

people had to wait through more than one cycle of light. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, the peak hours are which 22 

again?  Can, if you –- 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  They’re the highest fifteen minute –- 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, what are the peak hours?  And 25 
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what, what are we talking about?  Seven to 9:00, 4:00 to 6:00, 1 

I mean, what are we –- 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s not a peak hour, that’s two 3 

hours. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I’m asking what you –- 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  A peak hour, as I explained before, is 6 

the hour of the, the, the hour of con, the highest volume of 7 

flow within an hour period in the morning travel time.  Travel 8 

time in the morning could be, you could count from 6:00 to 9 

9:00, you could count from 7:00 to 9:00.  Normally, it falls 10 

within the 7:00 to 9:00 time period. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But are you saying it’s a sixty 12 

minute period somewhere –- 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- that you, you pick –- 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- the, the worst of the sixty minute 17 

period –- 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  The highest sixty, sixty minute volume 19 

consecutively. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Not just –- 22 

  CHAIR:  It could go from 7:15 to 8:15? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right, exactly, right. 24 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Now, at the risk 1 

of asking a, too simple a question, where it says thirty-one 2 

percent to seventy percent, does that mean, let’s say the load 3 

factor is thirty-five percent, that still would be within D, 4 

yes? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, it doesn’t have to be seventy 7 

percent to get up to D? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Up, up to seventy percent. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  It could be forty percent and 10 

you’re in a D level? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct, um hm. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and as you said, they can be 13 

measured for each of the four potential movements of, of the 14 

signalized intersection? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  They, they look, yes, yes, they look at 16 

each, they have people watching each approach in the 17 

intersection. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and if any one of the four hits 19 

a level D or whatever level, then that’s the way it’s 20 

classified, is that –- 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  The worst approach level is the overall 22 

level, yes. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay, all right.  I have a few more 24 

questions on this.  I think you, I think the indication is that 25 
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this intersection changed from F to D in, was it, -- 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  The last, the last two years it’s been 2 

D. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  4 

  MR. SCHMID:  The year before that it was an F. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, presumably the, and this is 6 

measured by the Public Works Department, traffic engineering 7 

staff, am I correct? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and they would have numbers for 10 

each approach as to what the percentage is, correct? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct, yes. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Well, have you looked at the 13 

numbers for, the current numbers for this intersection, whether 14 

it’s thirty-five percent, fifty percent, seventy percent –- 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  I think it was just given to me. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- for each –- 17 

  MR. SCHMID:  I haven’t looked at it. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Excuse me? 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  I think it was given to me by Mr. McCann 20 

and I looked at it. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, what, maybe I didn’t have the 22 

exhibit.  So, what is the, what’s the number for this 23 

intersection at the moment?  Or the latest computation for each 24 

approach? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  I’d have to get a copy of that again 1 

(inaudible). 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, let’s do it.  I want to see 3 

what it is. 4 

  CHAIR:  So, this is eleven and twelve, I think, 5 

right?  Protestant’s eleven and twelve? 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I want to know what the percentage 7 

is, I want to know if it’s thirty-six percent, I want to know 8 

if it’s sixty-nine –- 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  I believe it was seventy, but I’ll 10 

check. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I, I want to pin this down. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The witness needs an exhibit –- 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, the exhibit, fine, look at –- 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Exhibit 13 and 14. 15 

  CHAIR:  Thirteen and fourteen. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Look at the exhibit.  No tricks here.  17 

Whatever the answer is, it is.  I don’t even know the answer 18 

because it’s Mr. McCann’s exhibit.  I’ll, I’ll trust, I’ll 19 

trust Mr. Schmid to read it accurately. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  The highest load was eastbound in the 21 

morning at fifty-two percent. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what are the other three? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Southbound had no loaded cycles, 24 

westbound had no loaded cycles, northbound had forty-eight 25 
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percent. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 2 

  CHAIR:  And where, where do you see that on the -- 3 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah, where do you see that? 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Page two. 5 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Oh. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Loaded cycles. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Near the bottom, loaded cycles. 8 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah. 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay, great.  Thank you. 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, two of the four are within 12 

level D? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right, in the afternoon northbound is 14 

twenty-four percent but all the other approaches are zero 15 

double cycle. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  But I asked you whether two of 17 

the four approaches are within level D, that’s why –- 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s a D level service whether there’s 19 

two or one. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Okay and these levels of 21 

service fluctuate, do they not, from year to year? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  They, they, I mean, Mr. McCann showed me 23 

some traffic counts that showed an increase, but traffic 24 

counts, traffic counts on typical roads vary five percent a 25 
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day, you know.  It depends on what the traffic flow is and if 1 

there’s a, somebody is being diverted to Joppa Road because 2 

something is on the beltway, so traffic can change every day.  3 

But consistently it’s normally within five percent unless 4 

there’s an incident. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, we’re dealing here with an 6 

intersection that’s fluctuated between F and D over the last 7 

five years, correct? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, fluctuated from an F to a D two 9 

years ago and it’s been a D for the last two years. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and it could go back to, it 11 

could go back to F next year, as far as we, it could go back to 12 

F? 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, that’s, I object to 14 

that. 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I’m sorry.  I had, I, I have to ask him 16 

about an exhibit, I apologize. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, no. 18 

  MS. JOLIVET:  So, please ask your question again, 19 

because I know he was probably listening to me, so I apologize. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, we, I mean, we’re dealing with an 21 

intersection which includes a history of F level, not current 22 

but it has a history, right? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  In the past, but we’re not, we’re fifty-24 

three percent, pretty far away, that’s half the time we got to 25 
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get to seventy percent of the time, so. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, it went from F to D, so that 2 

was a fairly big move maybe.   3 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But it could go back to F at any 5 

time. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, no, -- 7 

  CHAIR:  Well, I think it can go back to F if –- 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I mean, -- 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  It could stay a D. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right.  Now, do you have any ballpark 11 

idea of how many signalized intersections there are in 12 

commercial areas? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  No idea. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Does the County have any listing of 15 

A, B and C intersections as far as you know? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  No. 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Did you attempt to find out whether 18 

there are commercial intersections in the County within the 19 

urban rural development line, which are rated A, B or C? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, I’d have to call the County and 21 

get the printout because they don’t list, they don’t list the 22 

intersection’s level of service.  So, I’d have to go, if 23 

there’s a signalized intersection that’s not shown on the map 24 

as a D, E or F, it’s an A, B or C. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  But you don’t know how many 1 

there are? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  I would think there’s probably many more 3 

working intersections than non-working.  Many, many more 4 

intersections work at D level of service or better than work at 5 

E and F. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But what I’m asking you is about A, B 7 

and C.   8 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Mr. McCann, I’m confused for a second 9 

here.  Isn’t this from the County?  This exhibit that you gave? 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes. 11 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  And doesn’t this have A, B and C on it? 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes.  Well, that one does, yeah, I think 13 

you’re right.   14 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  It has all of them. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, thank you, Mr. McComas, there 16 

weren’t enough (inaudible) -- 17 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  So, so maybe if Mr. McCann, yeah, 18 

because I’m confused, if –- 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  This is just one page, yeah. 20 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  I know, but is this coming from the 21 

County? 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  It is, yes. 23 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  So, so the County maintains it? 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCOMAS:  All right.  Because I wasn’t –- 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Does the County have –- 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  They’re not shown on the, they’re not 3 

shown on the basic services map, they’re just listed. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, the County has records showing A, 5 

B and C intersections, correct? 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  It’s ten. 7 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Ten. 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, um hm.  Um hm. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you could have gone, whether by 10 

request or by asking for the documents, you could have surveyed 11 

the number of A, B and C intersections in the County and 12 

identified in the commercial –- 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Why would I do that? 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Excuse me? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  I would have no purpose to do that. 16 

  CHAIR:  Okay. Well, you don’t need to, you don’t 17 

need, it’s just a yes or a no.  You don’t need to fight with 18 

him. 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  I have no purpose, reason to do that. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, the purpose would be to 21 

evaluate this particular zone, location at the, at this, in the 22 

zone here, relative, whether it’s above and beyond the traffic 23 

level of service situations at other locations in the zone, 24 

which might be A, B or C.  That would be the purpose. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, that’s not the legal 1 

standard, Your Honor. 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes, it is. 3 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Well, I haven’t heard a question. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, the ques, I asked the question 5 

and then he, then it was objected to. 6 

  CHAIR:  The ques, the, the witness has indicated that 7 

he didn’t compare this –- 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  He didn’t. 9 

  CHAIR:  -- intersection with any of the other –- 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 11 

  CHAIR:  -- intersections in, in A, B or C. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And then he said there’s no purpose 13 

to it.  And then my next question, I thought, maybe my memory 14 

is, short term memory is gone, but I’ll rephrase then.  15 

Wouldn’t the purpose be to evaluate whether the level of 16 

service situation here is more problematic than at other 17 

commercial zone locations at intersections with A, B or C? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  I was looking at D. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And it was at that point that I said 20 

that that’s not the legal test. 21 

  CHAIR:  Right.  Well, -- 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It, it absolutely is part of the 23 

legal test, in my opinion. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And in my opinion it’s different. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  So, can you answer the 1 

question? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  My, my look at this was are the inherent 3 

impacts of this use at this location greater or is it unique 4 

and different than if it was located some, elsewhere out, 5 

similar zone else, elsewhere in the zone.  Since I determined 6 

that there was no above and beyond impacts at this site and 7 

this location, I didn’t look at other sites.   8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, the impact at a, a D level in 9 

terms of you’ve got cars stacking, you’ve got more, you’ve got 10 

more cars stopped, the impact has got to be greater than at a 11 

location in, with A, B or C, it’s just, logically has to be 12 

greater.  You don’t agree with that? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  No.   14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, so the ideal thing, so, at –- 15 

  CHAIR:  So, doesn’t that hurt your, doesn’t that hurt 16 

your position? 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- at this, at this level of, excuse 18 

me? 19 

  CHAIR:  Doesn’t that hurt your position?   20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I, I, with all due respect, I 21 

think the answer is not, not credible. 22 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don’t, I don’t think it makes sense 24 

consistent with the standard. 25 
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  CHAIR:  All right. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, if that were true, you could take 2 

an F level intersection and if, let’s assume hypothetically, 3 

this were an F intersection, and you would say that’s no, 4 

that’s no more problematic than locating the site next to an A, 5 

B or C intersection, if that, if, if your answer is, has any 6 

basis. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  But the way, the way we, it depends on 8 

how your site is going to operate.  Our site is going to 9 

operate in a very efficient manner with the one way system we 10 

talked about and, and having right ins and right outs only.  11 

That’s, that’s my point at this location.  I mean, I, I don’t 12 

know that we’re going to put too many jiffy, it’s, too many 13 

Valvoline Oils at an A level service intersection.  These, 14 

these belong along arterial, arterial roads, just like a 15 

plethora of uses along this corridor are.    16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  So, they belong at the 17 

worst intersections, basically, is what you’re saying? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Excuse me? 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  They belong at the worst 20 

intersections. 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  They belong at the heaviest traveled 22 

intersections. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.   24 

  MR. SCHMID:  I wouldn’t call them worst. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you don’t, but you don’t see that 1 

as being a problem? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, I see it as an advantage to the 3 

customers going to Valvoline Oil. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But not to the people in the area 5 

necessarily. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, the impact of this Valvoline Oil 7 

is very small.   8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, I wanted to, back to that.  9 

You, you pointed out that by making, maybe at the request of 10 

the County, do you know how the, the right turn only exit on 11 

Joppa came up and the enter only on Loch Raven?  Wasn’t that a 12 

request of the County?  Or was that, was that, was that your 13 

idea? 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  That was, I got a copy of the site plan 15 

that MRA had done and it showed the, the one way circulation 16 

off of Loch Raven.  At that time, it didn’t really show that 17 

they were limiting access to Joppa, it’s one of the things I 18 

told, told Josh and, and Dino, and I said you, you can’t allow 19 

left turns out of this site. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So, that was your, as far as 21 

you know, that was your suggestion? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  It was my suggestion, but it might have 23 

already been suggested by somebody else at that point in time.  24 

But my review of the site plan, is that, what I told them. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What that tells you is that there is 1 

a problem at this intersection but you’ve attempted to mitigate 2 

it with, with the right turn only on Joppa Road. 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  We, well, there would be problems with 4 

left turns trying to, out of our site make a left turn to go 5 

westbound on Joppa Road, just like –- 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And what about the people going north 7 

on Loch Raven, if they want to go, how do they, did you, can 8 

you explain how they would get there? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  They’d make a U-turn at the light. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  What, you, are you suggesting you can 11 

go north on Loch Raven and make a U-turn at that intersection? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  At Joppa? 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, I did it today. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Without risking your life? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s an exclusive phased light.  There’s 17 

no other traffic movement except the left turns.   18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Okay and you think that’s 19 

obvious to the normal rider, that they can do that? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  I think it’s very obvious when you have 21 

a green arrow that you’re protected. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  You don’t think some of the 23 

people are going to make the left turn on Joppa and then try to 24 

get in what they think is an entrance but is actually the exit?  25 



187 
 

You’re going to have people making your left in there? 1 

  MR. SCHMID:  I, well, they’d have to drive by the 2 

site that says enter. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Um hm. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  And try to go and make a left turn where 5 

they can’t.  I, I can’t imagine somebody trying to do that. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  Do you acknowledge that there, 7 

even with the right turn exit, that there is a, you have cars 8 

stacked at a red light, which could make it quite difficult to 9 

get out on Joppa, especially if you want to go straight or make 10 

a left turn onto Loch Raven? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Certain times of day to make a left turn 12 

would be difficult to do and I don’t think people are going to 13 

do it, that’s why I said it’s self-policing.  The right turn 14 

out is going to be a function of people that, that’s along this 15 

entire corridor, people makes rights in, at the thru lane.  16 

Somebody supposedly going eastbound on Joppa Road and somebody 17 

slows down to make a turn into the sandwich shop next to us. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But what you call self-policing –- 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, I didn’t finish yet. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, excuse me. 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  So, he’s traveling eastbound and he, he 22 

slows down to turn into McDonald’s or Sonic or, or the sandwich 23 

shop, he’s then creating a gap for somebody at my site to get 24 

out and make a right.  And that happens up and down along this 25 
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corridor, that’s how people get out.  It’s not unique. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And, and you call it self-policing.  2 

There are some drivers that are reckless and impatient and may 3 

not self-police very well. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, they could do that in any level of 5 

service intersection too. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But if, if the location were away 7 

from the intersection, then the flow of traffic would be more 8 

intermittent and not so stacked, wouldn’t it?  Isn’t it worse 9 

at this corner intersection than it would be where traffic is 10 

more periodic? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Along this corridor, it’s better to be 12 

where we’re at, where you physically can’t make a movement, 13 

than it was if we were at Sonic, where there is no left turn 14 

lane, it’s part of the double left turn lane to go onto Loch 15 

Raven Boulevard and you’re sitting out in the thru lane trying 16 

to make a left.  That’s a lot more situation.  Or you at, or 17 

you can come out and you can actually think you can weave 18 

across those lanes to get to that right, left turn lane.  Where 19 

we’re at, there’s no question you can’t do that. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, how do you know people are 21 

going to think they can do that over there?  Have you done a 22 

survey on that? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  I’ve sat out there for two, two nights 24 

so far watching, watching the flow of traffic and the cuing of 25 
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traffic and it’s pretty consistent every, every phase of the 1 

light.  So, there’s no way possible to get to the left turn 2 

lane at certain times of day. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you’ve seen a lot of near 4 

accidents by Sonic?  Have you observed –- 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  No. 6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No.  Now, let me ask, let me ask you 7 

this.  According to Mr. Kazazian, if I’m pronouncing it 8 

correctly, they’re looking for sixty customers a day, is that, 9 

did, am I correct? 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s, that’s an average. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  On the average. 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And they’re open 7:00 to, 7:00 a.m. 14 

to 7:00 p.m., am I right? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That’s twelve hours.  Now, if Mr. 17 

Kazazian is correct, we’re talking five vehicles an hour. 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, if you average it all out. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, why in the world would they need 22 

four bays? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Keep people from waiting and keep people 24 

from cuing.  It’s just like gas pumps at a gas station.  You 25 
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don’t always need six, sixteen pumps, but you always want to 1 

make sure some, one is available when somebody comes in to gas 2 

up.  And I would think that this is the same way here.  If they 3 

can fit four in there.  Now, he, he said that one of the bays 4 

may be converted for electric cars in the future, that’s their 5 

model.  But, you know, the more bays I have, the less internal 6 

cuing I have and the less my site, site is clogged. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It usually takes fifteen minutes, did 8 

he say fifteen minutes would be the usual period? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, he said, I, I, I go to Valvoline.  10 

I go to the one in, on 8th Avenue in Glen Burnie by my office 11 

and I’m in and out of there in ten minutes at the most. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, if that’s true and you only 13 

get, on the average, five cars an hour, it seems like two or 14 

three bays would be more than adequate, wouldn’t it? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, we don’t want to take a chance 16 

that on those days when we do eighty to ninety cars, we’re 17 

going to have a problem with cuing.  And the investment into, 18 

if you’re going to build the building, I guess the investments 19 

makes sense to build a third bay and a fourth bay instead of 20 

just building two.   21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  But even at ninety, you would, you 22 

may be seven cars an hour, maybe occasionally you would get ten 23 

but, that could be a, now, is it, isn’t the, isn’t it realistic 24 

that they’re probably looking for much more than sixty? 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  No. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No?  Okay.  Okay.  Thank you.  That’s 2 

all I have, Mr. Chairman.   3 

  CHAIR:  Mr. –- 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you very much.  Sir, do you 5 

have access to the Community’s Exhibits 13 and 14, the 6 

Protestant’s?   7 

  MR. SCHMID:  No. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  I’ll show you my copy and 9 

does that tell you how many cars go through that intersection 10 

in the a.m. peak hour in, in 2017?  I think that was the date 11 

of that, was it? 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Can Mr. La Fiandra clarify which hour 13 

he’s talking about? 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The a.m. peak hour.  15 

  CHAIR:  He’s talking about a.m. peak. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I mean, from 8:00 to 9:00, 7:00 17 

to 8:00? 18 

  CHAIR:  Well, I think the witness will have to 19 

identify that. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.   21 

  CHAIR:  I think you said the 7:15 to 8:15, I guess, 22 

right? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  I think you could add some numbers 24 

together. 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, -- 1 

  MS. JOLIVET:  That’s what he said for thirteen, he 2 

didn’t say fourteen. 3 

  CHAIR:  Oh, he didn’t say fourteen. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, no.  Yeah, I had –- 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Fourteen total. 6 

  CHAIR:  Seven-thirty to 8:30. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, in the a.m. peak hour, the peak 8 

time is, is identified as 7:00 to 8:00 and has thirty-eight 9 

eighty-seven cars going to the intersection. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s thru the intersection, all 11 

dir, all approaches? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  All approaches. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and did you say that you would 14 

expect twelve a.m. peak hour trips by a four bay service garage 15 

based on your analysis? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  I believe that was my answer, yes.  17 

Yeah, twelve in the morning. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And so, twelve as a fraction of the 19 

number that you just mentioned is like less than one percent, 20 

is that right?  It’s about a third of a percent? 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  (inaudible). 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Third of a percent? 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And how about for the p.m. peak 25 
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hour?  Does that tell you how many cars go through that 1 

intersection? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s listed forty-eight thirty. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, then –- 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  We have nineteen. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Nineteen would be about –- 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  Point four percent. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Point four percent? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay and is that a de minimis 10 

impact? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, it’s a very de minimis –- 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Was that my copy? 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s your copy. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 15 

  CHAIR:  So, isn’t the real question though, not the 16 

total number of, in the intersection, isn’t it really the 17 

eastbound Joppa Road? 18 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s the critical part that’s 19 

controlling –- 20 

  CHAIR:  That, that, that’s really the point you have 21 

to look at, right? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, um hm. 23 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, if we look at that then, I want 25 
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to make sure I give you the right one.  Can you determine what 1 

that is?  That’s the eastbound a.m. peak. 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Is six hundred and twenty-six. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And we had just said that the a.m. 4 

peak is, you established, you’re estimating twelve? 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Objection.  It’s actually relative 6 

impact. 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Right. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Compared to –- 9 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 10 

  MR. SCHMID:  But we’re all not, we’re, all that 11 

traffic is not coming from that direction obviously. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  So, explain that for me.  I 13 

don’t understand. 14 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, we’re going to have people coming 15 

from eastbound Joppa Road, westbound Joppa Road. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, that’s an apples and oranges 17 

comparison, we can’t do that.  But we can look at the twelve 18 

compared to the overall number that you said, like the thirty-19 

seven hundred. 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s, I mean, this is the de minimis, 21 

this, I mean, -- 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is de minimis de minimis. 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  There’s so many –- 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Objection.  Objection for the record and 25 
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ask for a continuing objection. 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  He was just cross examined for an 3 

hour on the impact of the intersection. 4 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  I overruled the objection. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  The percentage of impact is irrelevant. 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  It’s the percentage of impact compared 8 

to what it would be inherently associated. 9 

  CHAIR:  Gotcha. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s the, the delta we’re talking 11 

about. 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Not this amount of traffic compared to 14 

the total amount of traffic. 15 

  CHAIR:  Well, well, now, you know, really in fairness 16 

–- 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 18 

  CHAIR:  -- okay, Mr. Zimmerman spent –- 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 20 

  CHAIR:  -- a fair amount of time I think on this 21 

point actually.  If I understood him correctly, understood his 22 

cross.  Maybe I didn’t.  23 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s fine, I’ll, I’ll address it 24 

(inaudible). 25 
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  CHAIR:  Okay. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you know what the, if you, if you 2 

know, what is the average daily volume, daily volume through 3 

the intersection?  Do you, is that not on here? 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  It was on there.  Maybe the second page. 5 

Fifty-six thousand nine hundred and forty-eight. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And the average daily number of 7 

trips from this use is one hundred and sixty? 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  One sixty. 9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Right, okay.  And then there was a 10 

question from the Chair and then another question by Mr. 11 

Zimmerman, the, the U-turn at the light at Joppa Road on, from, 12 

approaching Loch Raven traveling north at, at Joppa Road, first 13 

of all, that’s, that’s a legal U-turn at that light, is that 14 

correct? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct. 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And, and you were saying, but I may 17 

not have understood, the phasing of the lights protects the 18 

turner, the, the person making the U-turn? 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  There’s a green arrow, that’s only, the 20 

left turn proceed on a green arrow only. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  And the green arrow means they have the 23 

right of way. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  Nobody else is conflicting. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Now, there was one other point that 2 

you made that I wanted to clarify.  This use would be, generate 3 

more or less adverse effects if it were mid-block compared to 4 

at the corner? 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  It would generate a much higher impact 6 

if it was mid-block. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And is that because of the, you 8 

called it earlier, full movement, in and out? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  There’s, you’re going to be allowing 10 

those conflicting movements and those con, conflicting 11 

movements would cause much more of an impact than the right in 12 

and the right out we’re proposing. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, here we have, everybody’s always 14 

making a right turn to get on or off of the sites? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  That’s correct.  It’s the simplest move 16 

that you can make at an intersection. 17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay.  Thank you.   18 

  CHAIR:  Mr. McCann? 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  No questions, thank you.   20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just a couple.  The estimate that you 21 

gave of twelve potential peak hour trips, is that, is that 22 

based on some national –- 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  It’s based on the Institute of 24 

Transportation Engineers Manual. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  But Valvoline’s actual use 1 

might be different from that indicated in the manual? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Oh, yeah.  I mean, there are averages of 3 

studies all over the country so, yeah, they could be slight, 4 

they could be different in one location versus another. 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And when was that manual, when were 6 

those numbers done? 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  Tenth edition just came out this year. 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And you did review the tenth edition? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, sir. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And the category was oil lubrication? 11 

  MR. SCHMID:  Quick lube center, quick oil lube 12 

center, is the, is the land use category.  It’s not a gas 13 

station or, there’s another land use code for automobile 14 

service facility that has something like across the street, 15 

much better, bigger services and more services. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Now, you’ve heard Mr. Kazazian 17 

indicate there are twenty-seven Val, Valvolines in the State of 18 

Maryland. 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Twenty-seven and three in process. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Did you attempt to get a 21 

survey of how many peak hour uses there are at those locations? 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, if I, if I did that, I’d have to, 23 

I’d have to sample like ten stores to be accurate.  They, the 24 

County wants me to use the IT manual and I use the IT manual 25 
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when, when there’s land use code in there that reflects my use. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, whatever the so called County 2 

wants, could you have even have asked Mr. Kazazian, well, 3 

what’s been your experience peak hour? 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, his experience is averaging sixty 5 

people a day, which makes a lot of sense because if he averages 6 

sixty ve, sixty customers a day, that’s a hundred and twenty 7 

trips, coming in is one trip, you go out as another trip.  And 8 

then you have employees, eight employees and some on shifts, 9 

some go to lunch and such, so you add another thirty or so 10 

trips and IS, ITS made it one sixty and we’re at about one 11 

fifty, one sixty, so. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Let me just ask you this, you, 13 

following up on your observation, you can get through a 14 

Valvoline in ten minutes, correct? 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, um hm. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, if that, if that’s true, then 17 

with maybe a, arguably a slight variation, you could have six 18 

per hour in one bay, six times ten is sixty minutes. 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, if everybody didn’t, if everybody 20 

was there at the same time. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  (inaudible). 22 

  MR. SCHMID:  Waiting to get in, you could do that. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, you could potentially –- 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  But that doesn’t happen. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- you know, you could potentially 1 

get six at each bay, twenty-four, you could get twenty-four in 2 

one hour, if that were true, and if it were fifteen minutes, 3 

you’re at sixteen per hour.  That seems like a lot bigger 4 

capacity then, then matches up with what, what your traffic 5 

estimates are. 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  I don’t know what your point is.  The 7 

capacity of a McDonald’s drive in is ten times what comes in 8 

and out of a McDonald’s.  I don’t understand your point. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, the point is, with this 10 

capacity, there could be much more use than is being estimated 11 

and, and wouldn’t it make sense then, even if the Board 12 

otherwise thinks this is an appropriate special exception, 13 

wouldn’t it be appropriate to, to moderate it and have two or 14 

three bays, could easily handle the, the estimated traffic, 15 

even without waiting.  I mean, the numbers I gave you are so 16 

nobody has to wait a minute.  Isn’t this, isn’t this, you know, 17 

excessive use of the site if, if those numbers are correct? 18 

  CHAIR:  Isn’t that sort of a business question, more 19 

than a question? 20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah.  I mean, we try, on any of these 21 

uses, we try to contain the impact to the site.  So, if I have 22 

a car wash at a Royal Farms, I want to make sure I have enough 23 

stacking area in site to do it, to take care of that.  Same 24 

thing here.  I want to make sure a customer, if I go to 25 
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Valvoline, I like going to Valvoline because I don’t wait.  I 1 

can pull up there and if I wait for one guy to get done then 2 

that’s the most I wait.  And the more drive thrus I have the 3 

less chance I have to wait which is, makes me a happy customer. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  Well, and I’m going to get off 5 

this in a minute.  The point of my question is this.  It, it’s 6 

possible, you know, the Board could say oh, there’s no, zero 7 

problems at this site.  The Board could say yeah, there’s 8 

significant problems or, from a traffic point of view.  Or it 9 

could be a gray area.  It could, I know you think there’s zero 10 

problems, I get that.  But if, let’s say, the Board concludes 11 

well, there’s, there is some problems here and there’s some 12 

legitimate concern.  So, maybe two or three bays is enough for 13 

this small, relatively small site, that four is too much, they 14 

don’t need four and –- 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Oh, I guess that’s your opinion. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That, that’s a, I’m just giving you a 17 

hypothetical.  I don’t know what the Board is going to 18 

conclude.  Maybe they’ll agree with you that it’s, whatever.  19 

All right.  That’s all I have, Mr. Chair.  20 

  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you. 21 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  I have a couple questions.   22 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 23 

  MR. SCHMID:  Sure. 24 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Will, will the, in your opinion, will 25 
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the U-turn exasperate the stacking because the right hand turn 1 

lane will have to wait for them? 2 

  MR. SCHMID:  Oh, the right hand coming off of –- 3 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah, yeah, coming off, you know, the 4 

eastbound –- 5 

  MR. SCHMID:  They’ll have to yield to them, yes.   6 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  The, do you think that will exasperate 7 

the stacking or, or do you think it’s just because there’s not 8 

enough cars here? 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  I mean, the, the numbers we’re talking 10 

about here, we’re probably, from that direction we may get 11 

three peak hour U-turns. 12 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  That’s it.  And then the other, just 13 

sort of similar question is, on the exit out from the, the 14 

north side of the, is that a two lane exit or is that a one 15 

lane exit? 16 

  MR. SCHMID:  One lane exit. 17 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  So, how would, how would like one of 18 

the tanker trucks or UPS truck or anybody like that make a 19 

delivery in this facility?   20 

  MR. SCHMID:  Well, it’s striped, so it’s striped down 21 

as a one lane –- 22 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah, but how would they make a, if 23 

somebody is sitting there, how, how, how are they going to make 24 

the turn in there?  I mean, is there enough room, basically, 25 
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for, for the tanker trucks and the, you know, UPS, somebody 1 

mentioned in one of the testimony earlier about deliveries, 2 

maybe it was you. 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 4 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  How’s that all going to happen because 5 

it looks like it can only happen on the north side of the 6 

facility? 7 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, the, the entrance on Loch Raven 8 

Boulevard is built to commercial standards, State Highway 9 

commercial standards. 10 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  I understand that, but I think the, the 11 

prior witness testified that the storage units of the tank, of 12 

the, of the oil tanks are all on the north side. 13 

  MR. SCHMID:  Um hm. 14 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  And that’s where all the pieces are.  15 

So, I’m assuming, like, let’s say a tanker truck would come in 16 

on the north side and he, and maybe the UPS because they’re 17 

thinking that’s the front of the facility, how’s that, how’s 18 

all that traffic –- 19 

  MR. SCHMID:  But they can’t come in the front. 20 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  No, then okay.  So, -- 21 

  MR. SCHMID:  Do not enter, one way. 22 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  So, then they’re going to have to go 23 

through, so they have to go in and then U-turn out the wrong 24 

way or go through the, the –- 25 
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  MR. SCHMID:  Well, you can go right out on Loch Raven 1 

for the employees, yeah.  You can come in the back –- 2 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Then can you describe to me –- 3 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- deliver and then come back out on 4 

Loch Raven Boulevard. 5 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Out against traffic that’s one way? 6 

  MR. SCHMID:  No, the –- 7 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Maybe I’m missing something, but if 8 

it’s all one way facility, how –- 9 

  MR. SCHMID:  -- the, the access on Loch, the access 10 

on Loch Raven Road is two way, inbound and outbound. 11 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  On Loch Raven it’s two way? 12 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yes, inbound and outbound.   13 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Okay.  Because that’s how the employees 14 

are getting, all right, got it. 15 

  MR. SCHMID:  Because that’s how the, that’s how the 16 

parking spaces get out. 17 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  All right, that’s the part I’m missing.  18 

All right.   19 

  MR. SCHMID:  Yeah, that’s how the parking spaces get 20 

out. 21 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  And so, the tanker trucks are coming in 22 

that way as well and the UPS trucks are all going to come in 23 

that way? 24 

  MR. SCHMID:  I would assume the civil engineer has 25 
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already looked at the turning radiuses when you lay out the 1 

site. 2 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Right, that’s what I’m getting to, 3 

right. 4 

  MR. SCHMID:  I, I did not.  I did not, no.  I 5 

typically would on a gas station site because, but I’m not sure 6 

how big the tankers are that deliver oil here, so. 7 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  All right.  Thanks. 8 

  MR. SCHMID:  Okay.   9 

  CHAIR:  Any other, further questions? 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Nothing. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  No. 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I mean, I just would like to make 14 

sure that all my exhibits are in before I close my case. 15 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  (inaudible).  Just so the record is 17 

clear, I’ll move twelve, thir, Petitioner’s twelve, thirteen 18 

and fourteen in. 19 

  CHAIR:  Yes.  So, how many witnesses do you think, 20 

Mr. McCann? 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, I may just have one and then 22 

maybe, assuming, I represent two clients –- 23 

  CHAIR:  I, I’m not trying to cut you short. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  But what I’d like to do is one 25 
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and –- 1 

  CHAIR:  Okay?  And, and you know what?  If we can’t 2 

finish today, we can’t finish today.   3 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  We have a hard stop at 4:30 anyway so, 4 

just so –- 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, no, we’re, we’re not putting on 6 

all these witnesses.  I, I, what I’d like to do is put on one 7 

and as long as that goes well –- 8 

  CHAIR:  But, I mean, -- 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  -- I may just ask the other witness to 10 

say do you agree with everything that was just said or maybe 11 

even make that proffer. 12 

  CHAIR:  That, that, that’s fine.  But I, please 13 

understand that I am, we, we have no, we, we will not cut you 14 

short, okay?  You take the time you need and if we have to come 15 

back another day, we will, we will come back another day, 16 

that’s what we’re all paid to do, so. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  These will be short witnesses. 18 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  If there’s more than one, it will be 20 

short. 21 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I have no witnesses.  I do have 23 

some documents, which it may facilitate if I get these 24 

documents in before Mr. McCann –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Before the witnesses? 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, before his witness. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It may be helpful. 4 

  CHAIR:  Is that okay with you?   5 

  MR. MCCANN:  It doesn’t matter to me.  6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  For most, at least most of my 7 

documents and I think I can do it quickly. 8 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Have you seen the documents? 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Some. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I was given a couple of documents, I 11 

don’t know about what he has. 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, this, are we up to thirteen? 14 

  MS. JOLIVET:  This is thirteen. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  So, last time we had a 16 

document, it may have been ten or eleven, anyway it was some 17 

history of the 1989 case, which Mr. La Fiandra pointed out was 18 

difficult to read.  So, we got a copy of a more legible 19 

version, okay? 20 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Which I did –- 22 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- provide to Mr. –- 24 

  CHAIR:  And this would be then People’s Exhibit -- 25 



208 
 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thirteen?  1 

  CHAIR:  Thirteen. 2 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Well, you’re not replacing it with the 3 

first, you’re making it a separate exhibit? 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I, I thought, well, whatever 5 

the Board prefers but this is, this is case number 89-510-SPHA.  6 

This actually deals with 1701 East Joppa Road, which is the, it 7 

shows the history of that site for what it’s worth.  The, that 8 

it’s long standing use.  I think it -- 9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay.  Yes, thank you.   10 

  MR. MCCANN:  (inaudible) while Mr. Zimmerman is doing 11 

this?  Okay. 12 

  CHAIR:  Sure, yeah.   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You don’t want to see what I’ve got?  14 

Okay. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Well, I’ll look at it and, when it’s in. 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  So, and I think this one 17 

I gave to Mr., the next one, number fourteen, -- 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, pardon me, is that going to be 19 

number thirteen? 20 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  The revised?  Okay. 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, it’s simpler that way.  23 

Fourteen, I, rather than waiting till the memo, I, I have the 24 

dictionary and Miriam Webster’s dictionary, front and back. 25 
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  CHAIR:  Okay. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, Mr. La Fiandra will have advance 2 

notice. 3 

  CHAIR:  So, that’s People’s fourteen, all right. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 5 

  CHAIR:  Just give it to him. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Is that the exhibit that you showed 7 

Mr. Kazazian? 8 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes.  9 

  CHAIR:  No, no. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Is that the same one? 11 

  CHAIR:  This is different. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, no, it’s diff, no, I, that was 13 

in, I was discussing inherent, that’s already, the definition 14 

of inherent is already in. 15 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And which number was that?   16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Twelve?   17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Twelve. 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Twelve was Webster’s on inherent. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Oh, oh, yes, that’s right.  Oh, oh, 20 

I see. 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And fourteen, fourteen is Webster’s 22 

on front and back, which I think I gave you. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Got it.  You did.  I think it, let 24 

me just make sure that that’s in here. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  That’s, that’s admitted. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  Then fifteen, although 5 

maybe the Board has many, many photos but I, we took a number 6 

of other photos of the intersection from different perspectives  7 

I think I gave this to Mr. La Fiandra as well. 8 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I guess I didn’t mark them A, B, C, D 10 

but, but it’s a series of photos.  I wasn’t going to ask 11 

questions about them. 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay.   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If, if questions are asked, we can 14 

mark them A, B, C, but and, and I think we attempted to get 15 

each –- 16 

  CHAIR:  I think that’s, I think (inaudible). 17 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Do you have extras for me (inaudible)? 18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Did I give, how many did I give? 19 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Not for the dictionary you didn’t.   20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I didn’t give you one for the 21 

dictionary?  22 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Or, or thirteen. 23 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think, I think (inaudible). 25 
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  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay. 1 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Here you go, here you go.   2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do we have enough? 3 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, yeah, we’re good. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Are we missing any for Ms. Randall 5 

Jolivet?   6 

  MS. JOLIVET:  This is fifteen.   7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Do, do you have –- 8 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I don’t have, this is –- 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Which one is, the dictionary? 10 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Fourteen or thirteen, the dictionary or 11 

this.  Thank you. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And, and, and the other one, -- 13 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Is thirteen. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thirteen was –- 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Which is the, this –- 16 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  That’s not here.  Hey, Pete, I got a 17 

quick question for you.  I’m looking at this.  It looks like 18 

you’re giving me something from 6/3/89, but I’m looking at the 19 

revision history and I, I can’t tell whether that’s 0 or 8, 20 

they don’t look like they’re matching up.  Look at the re, I’m 21 

assuming that’s tracking the revisions by the engineers, not by 22 

the development. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, the –- 24 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  And I can’t see it that well. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- the dates, the revision dates are 1 

1989. 2 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  They are ’89?   3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s hard to read. 4 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  I’ll never profess to be 20/20 vision 5 

anymore.   6 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I, I, I believe, looking at plan 7 

preparation, if my, if my vision is good enough, it looks like 8 

’89 and I think it matches up with the Petition.  I admit it 9 

would be good, ah, and then at the bottom there’s a signature 10 

6/23/89. 11 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Well, that, that’s the part I was 12 

trying to reconcile, whether (inaudible) –- 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, oh, that was the other page.   14 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  -- whether that’s the right design 15 

document for that, and they –- 16 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I, I believe, I believe it is and it 17 

came with, it came from the microfilm with this.  If we go back 18 

and find that it’s incorrect will, or if Mr. La Fiandra can, 19 

can find that we’ll get it.  The main point was to show that in 20 

1989 that was approved.  It wasn’t so much to get the details 21 

of the site plan.  But, I mean, the site plan looks consistent 22 

with the opinion.  And then I, I think Madam, Chair panelist, 23 

are we missing one extra exhibit?   24 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thirteen. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Is that, is that the 1989 document? 1 

  MS. JOLIVET:  The zoning history, yes.  Thank you. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  This is fourteen? 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah.  And sixteen, which I think Mr. 4 

McCann wants to make use of, which I haven’t yet shown to Mr. 5 

La Fiandra. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  We asked the GIS staff as we often do 8 

to, to get maps and they provided a map of the County 9 

commercial revitalization districts County wide, along with the 10 

naming of them and, and acreage and I have smaller copies.  I’m 11 

going to show it to Mr. La Fiandra. 12 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, what’s the source of this?   13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The source of this is the, the GIS 14 

and the County planning sources in comm, and information 15 

technology.  They have Planning Department sources.   16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, this was prepared on March 8th? 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is not, is this an official 19 

document of Baltimore County? 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s prepared by the GIS staff based 21 

on the Planning Department sources that they have.   22 

  CHAIR:  GIS staff is part of Baltimore County? 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Baltimore County. 24 

  CHAIR:  Yeah. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Geographic Information Services.  I 1 

mean, we can bring in the witness, Ryan Sale (phonetic), he’s 2 

been qualified in other cases.   3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  What does the, this, what does this 4 

–- 5 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Which, he was cal, he was able to 6 

calculate the number of acres in each commercial revitalization 7 

district. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Do you have, do you have a copy for 9 

me? 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, yes. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I won’t have any objection to this.   12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So, the, and I’m sure Mr. La Fiandra 13 

can, can double check on the County website. 14 

  CHAIR:  So, the large one is the exhibit, right? 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The large one is the exhibit but we 16 

facilitate by providing the Board with eight and a half by 17 

eleven versions of the same exhibit.  We can give the Board two 18 

of the miniatures.   19 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I guess at the moment we’ll just 21 

stick it on.  If Mr. McCann may want to use it, but, we’ll put 22 

it on the easel.   23 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay, thank you. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did you have a copy for me?   25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes.   1 

  CHAIR:  Is this thirteen? 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think we’re up to sixteen. 3 

  CHAIR:  Sixteen, I’m sorry. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And sim, we did, we asked GIS staff, 5 

Ryan Sale, who has been, did testify in one of the solar cases 6 

and was accepted, we asked him to locate the, the BL zoning 7 

districts, including those with overlays and I’m going to show 8 

the miniature copy to Mr., or give Mr. La Fiandra a copy.   9 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you.  So, these are the zoning 10 

overlays, not the revitalization district? 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  These are, these are the BL zones, 12 

including the BL without a AS or CCC and so one.  But also the 13 

BL’s that have overlay districts. 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, let me just ask, you say BL 15 

zoning area is one thousand eight hundred and eighty-eight 16 

acres.  Does that include these other acres? 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, those are separate. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Those are separate, okay. 19 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Those are separate.  And we simply 20 

asked GIS to come up with this information for what it’s worth 21 

for the, you know, obviously we think it has some relevance. 22 

  CHAIR:  And this is seventeen, right? 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Seventeen.  To, to give some idea of 24 

the County wide scope of the BL zone, noting also we didn’t do 25 
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this, but the business major zones allows the uses in the BL 1 

zone as well, but. 2 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  As does the BR. 3 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Can I have the extra one? 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  As, Mr. La Fiandra points out, does 5 

the BR zone.  So, there is some interrelationship, but we just 6 

did the BL and, and again, we have the larger version, which is 7 

easier to read, so I’ll just put the sticker on the larger 8 

version which, yeah.  And again, our.   9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Do you have two more? 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I may have one more. 11 

  MS. JOLIVET:  One more. 12 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I may, well, Mr. McCann may have some 13 

overlap on this but what we did do, and, and incidentally, the 14 

reason for this is, under Schultz v. Pritz, they’re requesting 15 

are, are there adverse effects to, and are they significantly 16 

over and above what might be elsewhere in the zone?  So, we 17 

thought it provides some perspective to see just where the BL 18 

zones are.   19 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And the other thing, we, we did what 21 

we consider to be some legislative history relating to the 22 

ongoing establishments and revisions of the commer, Loch Raven 23 

commercial revitalization district.  And these are, this 24 

exhibit has several newspaper articles, which we think is, you 25 
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know, part of the history.  And I know in some other cases, I 1 

know the, we had a case involving the constitutionality of the 2 

County’s hookah lounge midnight curfew and we did introduce 3 

this sort of document as part of the legislative history. 4 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I don’t see any legislative history 6 

here.  I would object to this. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 8 

  CHAIR:  Well, what is it, a collection of newspaper 9 

articles? 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yeah. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yeah, giving, quoting Councilman 12 

Marks and others -- 13 

  CHAIR:  Sort of the anecdotal history. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- relating to the background of the 15 

commercial revitalization districts.  16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, -- 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It’s an administrative hearing and I, 18 

I think it has some value. 19 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And these are, these are newspaper 21 

articles written by people who are not subject to cross 22 

examination.  This is obviously being offered for the truth of 23 

the matter contained here and it, and this is not legislative 24 

history. 25 
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  CHAIR:  No. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  If they had committee reports or 2 

tallies of votes or –- 3 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- different planning documents that 5 

they, reports of different types that they wanted to introduce, 6 

I would have no objection.  But this is not, there’s, there’s 7 

no exception in the rules for this type of document. 8 

  CHAIR:  So, so these are articles.  One of them is 9 

from the Baltimore Sun. 10 

  CHAIR:  Yeah.  Well, the Board, may, may I just 11 

observe that classically, according to my understanding, 12 

there’s such a thing as internal legislative history and 13 

external legislative history.  Internal legislative history 14 

would be committee reports, such as we have in congressional 15 

committees or the official County fiscal notes, that would be 16 

internal legislative history.  But Courts will sometimes take a 17 

look at the so called external legislative history for what 18 

it’s worth and I, this being an administrative hearing, I, I do 19 

submit that it’s of some value and it does dovetail with the 20 

various Council resolutions which we, which we did submit. 21 

  CHAIR:  All right.  Well, we’ll, we’ll admit it, I 22 

mean, you don’t, I mean, this, this is pretty marginal stuff. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right. 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is oral history.  This is not 25 



219 
 

legislat –- 1 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, this is an oral his, this is anecdotal 2 

history –- 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  -- this is not legislative history. 4 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIR:  And it’s, it goes, the first article is six 6 

years old and, -- 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I renew my objection.  This should 8 

not be let in, Your Honor. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think, I think they dovetail with 10 

some of the Council resolutions so I, I think there’s, it’s a 11 

little better than marginal but the Board will decide what –- 12 

  CHAIR:  Whether it’s, it may be a little less than 13 

marginal actually but. 14 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  I think it’s consis, I 15 

think, I mean, I think we could make the same points –- 16 

  CHAIR:  It’s, it’s, it’s –- 17 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- without putting this in.  I admit, 18 

but. 19 

  CHAIR:  I, I think that’s probably true.  But we’ll 20 

admit it because let’s have the record be complete for all 21 

parties, okay? 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  And the other thing, this 23 

is partly to give Mr. La Fiandra fair notice, since one of the 24 

issues that we’ve had in the case is just what is the front and 25 
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is there a front yard setback issue, if the Board finds that 1 

the front is Loch Raven, we have the County zoning regulations 2 

for, for BL front yard, which is Section 232.1.  I think Mr. La 3 

Fiandra would have to admit that and then it refers to Section 4 

303.2.  So, we have, we have those for People’s Counsel 5 

eighteen.  And we will be arguing eventually in the memo that 6 

Loch Raven is the front yard and then consistent with the 1999 7 

case, twenty-nine feet is the cal, the minimum calculation.  8 

So, the variance is actually necessary. 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 10 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And I’m giving Mr. La Fiandra kind of 11 

–- 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 13 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- a heads up so, so he can –- 14 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I appreciate the heads up. 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- tell us why –- 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  And for the record, I don’t think 17 

this needs to be admitted but obviously I understand that’s the 18 

practice of the Board so. 19 

  CHAIR:  Well, it’s, right, so.   20 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Does the Board –- 21 

  MS. JOLIVET:  I need an extra.  Thank you.   22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay and I think that completes my 23 

exhibits and hopefully we can perhaps conclude today. 24 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 25 
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  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay.  I need to run out, I’ll be right 1 

back, for just a moment.   2 

  CHAIR:  Should we take a five minute break here? 3 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You don’t have to.  I was just going to 4 

run out, I was going to be right back. 5 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 6 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You don’t have to, I’ll be right back. 7 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I would love five minutes. 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Maybe you need five, I need five. 9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I, I need -- 10 

  CHAIR:  We’re going to take five min –- 11 

(RECORDING PAUSED - 03:10:18 PM) 12 

(ON RECORD – 03:19:05 PM) 13 

  CHAIR:  Everyone can be seated.  We’re back on the 14 

record, -- 15 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  No, not yet.  I screwed up. 16 

  CHAIR:  No, not yet. 17 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  There you go. 18 

  CHAIR:  We’re back on the record and we’ve got all 19 

the exhibits in and Mr. McCann, you can call your first 20 

witness. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you very much.   22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m going to move this if that’s okay. 24 

  VOICE:  (inaudible). 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, this is the attendant 1 

sheet. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  This is the sign in sheet for the 4 

Petitioners.  Oh, and then there’s People’s Counsel’s 5 

(inaudible). 6 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Also, there’s a gentleman in the 8 

audience who just asked me to make sure that you were aware 9 

that he was here.  He’s unrepresented by counsel.  It’s Mr. 10 

Gastro (phonetic), right back there.  He, he asked me to just 11 

make sure that he has an opportunity to say something. 12 

  CHAIR:  Okay, sure.  Fine.   13 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  You all set?  Raise your hand.  Do you 14 

swear and affirm under the penalties of perjury the testimony 15 

you’re about to give is true and correct to the best of your 16 

knowledge and belief? 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do. 18 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Please state your name, your address 19 

for the record and spell your last name and your business. 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  My name is Peter Moulder, last name is 21 

M-O-U-L-D-E-R.  I live at 1552 Dellsway Road, Towson, Maryland 22 

21286.  Was there something else, what was, what was the last 23 

part? 24 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Your business, yeah. 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  I am currently retired, so.  1 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 2 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  You can sit. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  All right. 4 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Just adjust the microphone there. 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay. 6 

  CHAIR:  And as you’ve heard us say to everyone else, 7 

try and keep your voice up. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Keep my voice up.  Thank you.  All 9 

right.   10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, Mr. Moulder, good afternoon, 11 

finally.  Tell us, if you would, where you live? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I, as I said, I live at 1552 13 

Dellsway Road in Loch Raven Village. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and explain generally where Loch 15 

Raven Village is in relationship to this site? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Generally to the south and west -- 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- of the site.  Loch Raven Village, 19 

I’d say general boundaries would be about Joppa Road to the 20 

north, Loch Raven Boulevard to the east, Taylor Avenue/Goucher 21 

Boulevard to the south and LaSalle Road to the west. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m sorry, so you’re now, you just 23 

described Loch Raven Village itself, the development, the 24 

development? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I was just asking you where your 4 

house was. 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Oh, I’m sorry. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  But, I don’t think your house is that 7 

big. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sorry.  9 

  MR. MCCANN:  That’s okay. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s been a long day.   11 

  MR. MCCANN:  It’s okay, it has.  So, you are 12 

affiliated with the organization known as Associates of Loch 13 

Raven Village? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, I am.  I’m the Vice President and 15 

Board member of the Associates of Loch Raven Village. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and how long have you been Vice 17 

President and a Board member of that organization? 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  I think I’ve been three years. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  I’m, I have some Rule 20 

8 papers here, Mr. Evans. 21 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’d like to take care of first. 23 

  CHAIR:  All right. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Before I ask the witness any more 25 
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questions and I’ve given a copy to Mr. La Fiandra. 1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yes. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  And I have an original here. 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, I don’t know if you want to mark it 5 

collectively as a single exhibit, there’s three pages, of 6 

course.  So, maybe that would be easier for this, if that’s 7 

okay. 8 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  A single exhibit which would be 10 

Protestant’s Exhibit 15, I believe. 11 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Yes. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, I guess it would be 15-A, B and C.  13 

And I don’t have an extra copy for the Board (inaudible) 14 

necessary. 15 

  CHAIR:  No, it really isn’t necessary. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and, and the documents speak for 17 

themselves.  I’ll ask the question some more, the witness some 18 

more questions.  But maybe I’ll do that first. 19 

  CHAIR:  Are, are the Rule 8 documents good with you? 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Your Honor, I wanted to point out 21 

that this Rule 8 paper, the resolution appears to have expired 22 

on March 15th by its own terms.  This is not something that I’m 23 

making up.  It’s right here on page two of the papers.  So, I 24 

know Mr. Moulder, I know he’s testified in these cases before.  25 
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But I would note that, for the record, and I’ll note an 1 

objection to his participation. 2 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  Well, -- 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  I think that may be, in fact, and I can 4 

ask the witness this, was it because of the, we were scheduled, 5 

if you recall, prior to that, we were here a couple weeks ago 6 

and this is now an additional day, so. 7 

  CHAIR:  Right, right. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Maybe they weren’t anticipating the, the 9 

delay in the hearing. 10 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I would note that there was a 12 

second day of the hearing that was advertised initially.  This 13 

was not a, an, an add on day.  When the dates first came out 14 

back in January that these, these dates were, both of these 15 

dates were selected.  I understand the ruling is, what your 16 

ruling will be, I don’t even need to really wait for it –- 17 

  CHAIR:  Right, right.  We want to hear from Mr. 18 

Moulder. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s fine.   20 

  CHAIR:  From the community association. 21 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 22 

  CHAIR:  So, we will overrule –- 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And for the record –- 24 

  CHAIR:  -- your, we will overrule your objection.  25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The hearing started on March 5th, so 1 

it would seem to me the Rule 8 would be –- 2 

  CHAIR:  Would be timely, yes.  I think that’s 3 

correct. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, thank you.   5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  That’s fine, thank you. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, Mr. Moulder, I know I’m jumping 7 

around a lot, but just tell us a little bit about Loch Raven 8 

Village, the, the, the neighborhood, the number of homes there, 9 

the type of homes there, generally speaking. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sure, there are fourteen hundred and 11 

seventy-two homes -- 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- in Loch Raven Village.  The first 14 

homes were built in, starting in the late forties when the land 15 

on the east side of Loch Raven Boulevard was acquired.  And 16 

then subsequent to that, land was acquired on the west side of 17 

Loch Raven, the old, I think it was called the Eudowood 18 

Sanitarium, home for consumptives.  Those buildings were 19 

acquired over closer to what is, where Loch Raven Middle School 20 

is today.  We’re approaching, I guess, our seventy-fifth 21 

anniversary as a neighborhood.  It’s typical Baltimore 22 

townhomes, or row houses if you will, Georgian style 23 

architecture.  The first people who purchased their lot worked 24 

at Bendix up on Joppa Road.  The houses sold initially, inside 25 
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groups, inside of the groups, for about $6,000 and end of 1 

groups for $8,000, okay?  When they first opened up selling in 2 

the last forties and early fifties. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  How, how big are the lots, 4 

generally speaking? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  The lots, inside group is generally I 6 

think about twenty by ninety and out, the end of groups I think 7 

are twenty, they are two feet wider, they are twenty-two feet 8 

wide and about the same length.  It, it, there are some that 9 

vary.  We’ll find someone, some of the streets where there’s a 10 

curve in the street or bend in the street where they, you know, 11 

some of them will have a bigger backyard or something like 12 

that, but that’s generally correct. 13 

  CHAIR:  These are two story or? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Two story.   15 

  CHAIR:  Two stories, yeah. 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Row homes, yes.  With a, with a full 17 

basement. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  And these may be the easiest way to 19 

handle this.  I have a map and maybe I can just have you circle 20 

where the neighborhood is because I’m sure we’re all generally 21 

familiar where Loch Raven Village is.  This will be sixteen. 22 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 23 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Did the other copies have things 24 

circled or is it just -- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  No, that’s me.  1 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, okay. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  He’s going to circle them for us. 3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  It’s hard to find a spot.  Maybe the 5 

upper, upper right hand corner may be best. 6 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  (inaudible). 8 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  What is this? 9 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  It’s a My Neighborhood map. 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I, I know.  The number? 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Sixteen. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sixteen. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you, Ms. Jolivet. 15 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Sure. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Mr. Moulder, take a look at 17 

Exhibit 16 if you would and do you recognize this map as a map 18 

of your neighborhood and the surrounding neighborhoods? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Real quick, and I don’t want to 21 

belabor this, but I want to actually take a pen and roughly 22 

circle Loch Raven Village.  It’s, it’s, Loch Raven Village is, 23 

is to the south of, actually on the bottom portion of the 24 

exhibit.  But I just wanted to, if you could encompass sort of 25 
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the neighborhood.  Okay.  Is that, does Loch Raven Village 1 

include this neighborhood here or is that separate? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Knettishall is actually its own 3 

community. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Did you separate that out or? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  I can.   6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  It is separate?  I’ll ask you to 7 

identify these circles in a second.  Okay.  So, okay.  Does 8 

Loch Raven Village also extend down here as well, where the 9 

word is written?  I don’t mean to rush you.  It may seem like 10 

I’m rushing you, I don’t want to do that. 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  It, it does. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sorry. That’s my mistake. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Now I’ve really messed things up.  15 

Let’s do this.  Real quick, just highlight in yellow, if you 16 

would, the neighborhood of Loch Raven Village and I’ll give you 17 

a yellow marker and the other ones we’ll leave there, so go 18 

ahead and circle that. 19 

  CHAIR:  And these are the, the geographic boundaries 20 

for the community association? 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Is that correct, Mr. Moulder? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay, great.  Thank you.  24 

Dino, you want to take a quick look at that? 25 
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  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Sure, thank you.   1 

  MR. MCCANN:  We can mark it if you want but 2 

(inaudible).   3 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay, thank you. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  And what I’ll ask, also 5 

ask you to do are, are you familiar with the other 6 

neighborhoods around, that is Loch Raven Heights and Ridgely, 7 

and Ridgely Manor? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Could you circle those in black ink, if 10 

you would, to distinguish them from the yellow of Loch Raven 11 

Village?  Circle the houses, not the word Ridgely. 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Oh, okay.   13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’m not being clear.  (inaudible).  14 

What about Loch Raven Heights?  Okay, all right, great.  Dino, 15 

you want to take a quick look at that? 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yep.  Got it. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 18 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yep, thank you. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  All right.  So, I would go ahead and 20 

move Exhibit 16 into evidence.  And Mr. Moulder, how long have 21 

you lived in your home in Loch Raven Village, if I didn’t ask 22 

that already? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’ll be there thirty-one years in 24 

September. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Do you have a family that grew up 1 

there? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do.  I have a son and a daughter who 3 

both now own homes in Loch Raven Village.  Our son is on 4 

Edgewood Road and my daughter is on Putty Hill Avenue. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and grandkids as well, I 6 

understand. 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do have one, yes. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  On, on, that one is on Edgewood. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  The, could you briefly describe 11 

sort of the demographics of the neighborhood?  That is, young 12 

folks, old folks, mix? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  There’s a, there’s a pretty good mix.  14 

The neighborhood is somewhat in transition.  It, we still have 15 

some, believe it or not, original owners in the neighborhood.  16 

But we do have a lot of young families who are moving into the 17 

neighborhood.  It’s a, it’s a neighborhood that’s affordable 18 

for young families with good solid houses, great access to the 19 

Towson area, great access to transportation and all kinds of 20 

facilities, schools, etcetera, etcetera.  So, it’s, it’s very 21 

convenient for people to live in.  That’s why I’m still there 22 

after thirty plus years. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  What did you do for a living, by 24 

the way? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  I worked in sales and marketing for 1 

twenty-five years with Proctor & Gamble, and then finished up 2 

the last ten years of my career with the J.M. Smucker Company, 3 

Smucker’s.   4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Jellies? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Among other things. 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  Sold jam, jelly, coffee and cleaning 8 

products for a living, so. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are you familiar with the, the 10 

proposed Valvoline at this site at the corner of Joppa and, and 11 

Loch Raven? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you’ve attended the hearings in 14 

this case? 15 

  MR. MOULDER:  I have. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  And you’ve attended other meetings about 17 

the development over the course of, of time? 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  That’s correct.  We were first informed 19 

about the project, I guess, I think it was back in September –- 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- perhaps by Councilman Marks, who 22 

brought it to our attention.  We had several subsequent 23 

meetings about the project after that, both within the 24 

Associates of Loch Raven Village Board and with some of the 25 
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other nearby community associations and with the Towson 1 

Communities Alliance. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  TCA? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, correct. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and are you familiar with the 5 

commercial revitalization district that this site forms part 6 

of? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  I am, yeah. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and have you been involved over 9 

your tenure and maybe before that in the development of the 10 

commercial revitalization district and some of the other 11 

developments that have gone on within it? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  I have, yes. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Could you give us some of that history? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  There had been a number of what we 15 

consider pretty positive developments along the corridor.  For 16 

example, Loch Raven Commons project at LaSalle and Joppa Road.  17 

They’re –- 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Where is that, where is that in 19 

relationship to this site? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  That would be east, maybe a half mile.   21 

  MR. MCCANN:  East or west? 22 

  CHAIR:  East. 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  I’m sorry, west. 24 

  CHAIR:  West.  Yeah, west. 25 
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  MS. JOLIVET:  West. 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  West.  West, maybe a half mile. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  What kind of development is that? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  It is a mixed use development. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  There’s a Wawa, a new Wawa there, there 6 

will be some new restaurants, there is an Aspen Dental, an API, 7 

ATI Physical Therapy. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  And there will be two hundred and 10 

thirty apartments back behind that development that are 11 

currently under construction. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  And that development fronts on, on Joppa 13 

Road, correct? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Just to the west? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, yeah. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Other than Loch Raven Commons, 18 

anything else that has gone on with the commercial district 19 

over the last several years? 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes.  Recently, the, the owner of the 21 

Bel Loc Diner, Mr. Docsanis (phonetic), decided to get out of 22 

that business and sell that location and Starbuck’s bought the 23 

location and there is a new Starbuck’s there at Joppa and Loch 24 

Raven.   25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  And where is that? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Hm? 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Where is that in relation, what corner 3 

is that on? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  That is on the north east corner. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, diagonally across –- 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Catty corner from, if you will, -- 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- from the proposed location. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and is that a, is that, is that 10 

Starbuck’s a beneficial, benefits the community in, in your 11 

opinion?  That is, as far as the commercial revitalization 12 

district is concerned? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  We looked at that as a positive 14 

development, yes.  The Bel Loc Diner, for better, for worse, 15 

for all the memories that people had of going in there after 16 

proms or whatever it was, you know, and getting breakfast, the, 17 

the building was not in good condition and had suffered as a 18 

result, business had suffered.  Two, I think it wasn’t really 19 

viable in the evenings anymore so, it’s just trends, things 20 

changing. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  So, the Starbuck’s has been, you know, 23 

by all accounts, wildly successful in that location. 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Anything else along the Loch, 25 
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along the Joppa Road corridor? 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  On the east side of Loch Raven 2 

Boulevard, the, Harold’s Fruit Stand, Fruit and Garden Stand, 3 

they are closed.  That property was sold and there’s now a 4 

Gavigan’s Furniture Store there, brand new store.  In my 5 

opinion, you know, pretty nice building, everything.  Yukazoo 6 

(phonetic) Books relocated out of the shopping center on 7 

Dulaney Valley Road across from the Towson Center Mall to the 8 

corner, to the south east corner of Loch Raven and Joppa, in 9 

one of the buildings over there.  They –- 10 

   MR. MCCANN:  And book, it’s a bookstore? 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  It is a bookstore. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  Primarily used books.  Baynesville Bike 14 

Shop, the new owner has reopened and kind of reinvigorated that 15 

business and that’s in that same south east corner building. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 17 

  MR. MOULDER:  The Lazy Boy Furniture Store, which is 18 

closer to Pleasant Plains Road closed.  That building is now a 19 

Mercy Medical, Medical Surgical Center, outpatient surgical 20 

center. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  And where is that, in what direction? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  That is west of the proposed location, 23 

maybe a tenth of a mile. 24 

  CHAIR:  Is that on the north side of Joppa? 25 
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  MR. MOULDER:  That is on the south side. 1 

  CHAIR:  South side of Joppa? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah.  I’d say it’s across from the 3 

Dunkin’ Donuts. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  Trying to do the best I can. 7 

  CHAIR:  Yeah, no, no, that’s –- 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Is, and these are all things in the last 9 

several years that have come in? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  They are, yeah. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and has your association and other 12 

associations been involved in that process? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  We have been involved in quite a few, 14 

yes. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  And in what way? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Particularly in the Loch Raven Commons 17 

project.  The developers of that project came to the 18 

association early on in the process, talked to us about design 19 

features, types of uses that the community would be interested 20 

in seeing at that site and we were able to work with them and 21 

they matched up a lot of the design features of the site to 22 

kind of match up with the design features in the neighborhood.  23 

The Wawa is a red brick building, which kind of blends in.  The 24 

only thing that, that didn’t happen perhaps, it was that the 25 
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folks that own Loan Brothers, the party tent rental place 1 

there, he’s fixed in that building and he didn’t want to move 2 

so. 3 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right next door? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, that’s a little bit different. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Right. 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  But it –- 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  But things are happening? 8 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yeah, they worked quite closely with us 9 

and we felt like it was a real, real step forward.  The Bendix 10 

building had been empty for, I don’t know, ten or fifteen years 11 

and was a real eyesore.  It was a place that we had to 12 

constantly call about, you know, just getting them to cut the 13 

grass and, you know, get the weeds down at the place. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are there properties along the 15 

Joppa Road corridor to the east or west of the subject site 16 

that are sort of on their way out, if that’s a good way of 17 

putting it?  That aren’t doing well that you think are, are 18 

going to be changing over the –- 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, M&M Auto, which is, I believe 20 

next to the McDonald’s on the south side, just up the, very, 21 

very close to this proposed development, they have closed.  22 

They moved to Glen Burnie.  That lot is vacant right now.  You 23 

don’t see a lot of traffic at some of the food service 24 

locations located around the south side there.  The Sonic, the 25 
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McDonald’s, the, there’s a Hooters across the street and a 1 

Subway on the north side.  How they’re doing is questionable.  2 

We also have three motels in the district, which we’re kind of 3 

hoping they, we’re kind of hoping they do poorly actually 4 

because –- 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- they’re a detriment to the community 7 

right now. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Were you involved, or was the, 9 

was the association involved in any way in the, the 1st Mariner 10 

Bank that was previously located at this site? 11 

  MR. MOULDER:  We were.  That was well before my time 12 

but the communities, Loch Raven Community Associations at the 13 

time supported that pretty vigorously.  I think Donna Spicer 14 

was involved in that, as a representative of the community.  15 

They testified in support of that project. 16 

  MR. MCCANN:  And, and, okay.  And I know you’re here 17 

on behalf of, of your association.  Given your familiarity with 18 

what’s been proposed and having sat through the hearing in this 19 

case, what concerns can you express to the Board today on 20 

behalf of the association about the project? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, I, I feel like I’ve done 22 

considerable research on the, on the project and what’s been, 23 

what’s gone before.  24 

  If you look at the 1999 decision that approved a 25 
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bank, which was actually designed by Mr. Sharon’s firm, I 1 

believe, the, the Zoning Commissioner who approved the 2 

variances in that case, Mr. Kotroco, he said that inasmuch as 3 

this particular corner is located at a prominent intersection 4 

and is the gateway to the Loch Raven communities, the 5 

Petitioners have attempted to design a design landscape package 6 

that will further enhance the site and be a benefit to the 7 

surrounding locale. 8 

  And we would still, we would agree with the 9 

Commissioner’s assessment that he made then and we would kin of 10 

advocate that that’s the same today.  That it is a very 11 

prominent intersection.  And it’s different from the other 12 

intersections maybe along Joppa Road headed east and west, and 13 

that it is the gateway to our communities and to the greater 14 

Towson community. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, what’s wrong with the 16 

Valvoline then at that site?  What are your concerns about the 17 

Valvoline in particular? 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, our, our concerns are that we’re 19 

going to return to an auto service use, something that was 20 

replaced by Class B office building twenty years ago, which by 21 

many people’s accounts, it is a pretty attractive structure, 22 

pretty valuable structure.  The property itself is listed for 23 

over $1.5 million if I’m not mistaken.  We think it presents a 24 

better look for our community.  If people are coming to our 25 
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community from the beltway, whether they’re, you know, friends, 1 

relatives, people who are, are looking to look at homes in our 2 

neighborhood, the first thing they see is a four bay auto 3 

service garage, we don’t think is particularly positively 4 

impactful. 5 

  There are also some concerns around the preponderance 6 

of auto service use locations within the district.  This would 7 

represent the tenth auto service location within a quarter mile 8 

in either direction of the intersection.  All of them serve 9 

basically the same function.  Some do more mechanical work than 10 

others but you can get your oil changed at any of them and with 11 

it being within a commercial revitalization district, where one 12 

of the goals of that district is to encourage diversity of use, 13 

walkability, those types of things, we feel like there’s not 14 

much benefit to the community from going backwards, when that’s 15 

exactly what the Zoning Commissioner said in 1999, was this was 16 

a tremendous benefit and represented a step in the right 17 

direction.  And that was a decision that was rendered at about 18 

the same time that the commercial revitalization districts were 19 

being put in place in Baltimore County. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Do you believe some of the newer 21 

developments you just mentioned in the last several years are 22 

also a step in the right direction? 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  We do.  We do.  There’s been, again, 24 

work with the community to provide input and there’s more of a 25 
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process in place to allow for some planning.  You know, our, 1 

our, our greatest concern is that in that commercial 2 

revitalization district, there’s been a lack of planning in the 3 

past and the development has been haphazard and not positive 4 

for the community. 5 

  CHAIR:  Has, has it been, has that been a 6 

revitalization district for twenty years? 7 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe it has, yeah. 8 

  CHAIR:  Okay.    9 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The resolutions are in the –- 10 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- exhibits that, I think 1998. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 13 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  I, that, that’s fine.  You don’t have 14 

to find it. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  In the last couple years, they’ve been 16 

subject to design review for the first time and new things have 17 

come, you know, sort of evolved.   18 

  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  But that’s all in evidence. 20 

  CHAIR:  Okay, good.  Thank you. 21 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, go ahead, I’m sorry. 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  This was a Zoning Commissioner who, who 23 

said that in approving the variances at that time, said it was 24 

a tremendous benefit the proposed development will offer to the 25 
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Loch Raven area.  So, if it was a tremendous benefit to move 1 

from an auto service use twenty years ago, to a Class B office 2 

building, we feel kind of like there, it’s illogical to think 3 

that it wouldn’t have an adverse impact, if you will, to move 4 

back to an auto service use today. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  So. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  You mentioned the, the other auto 8 

services uses within a quarter mile of the site.  Did you 9 

conduct any investigation into those various uses? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  I did. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Let me show you, this would be 12 

seventeen, Dino. 13 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Yeah.  Thank you.   14 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Here’s an extra for you. 16 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you.  Number seventeen? 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Seventeen, yes.  So, take a look, if you 18 

would, Mr. Moulder, at Exhibit 17 and tell us what that is. 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  This is a map of the area.  Did a 20 

search on Google Maps of oil changes near me with the target 21 

centered at the intersection of the proposed development and 22 

this is what came up within a quarter mile in either direction 23 

from the intersection of Loch Raven and Joppa Road.  On the 24 

west, on East Joppa Road at Danway, you have Hollenshade’s Auto 25 
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Services. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  They’ve been there at that location 3 

since 1976, which is where they’re, they were previously 4 

located on Goucher Boulevard. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  They’ve been, it’s a family business, 7 

it’s been there for eighty years. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  What type of work do they do? 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  They do all kinds of mechanical work on 10 

automobiles.  They don’t do any auto body work. 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  But they, do they do, provide this, the 12 

type of services that Valvoline provides? 13 

  MR. MOULDER:  They do. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  And how do you know that? 15 

  MR. MOULDER:  Because I just, I had my oil changed 16 

there last week. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and maybe, let me back up.  So, -- 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  Not to mention about $1,600 worth of 19 

auto work that they did. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Belts and transmission and that kind of 22 

thing. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Let me, let me ask this before we get 24 

into some of the other uses.  You pulled this off of Google 25 



246 
 

Maps. 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Um hm. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  How else did you acquire information 3 

about these, how did you confirm that they’re actually there 4 

and how else, if at all, did you acquire information about what 5 

it is that they do? 6 

  MR. MOULDER:  I, I drove the corridor, took 7 

photographs. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  And also looked at the websites where 10 

these, where they have them, to see what services were offered 11 

at the different locations. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  And it sounds like you have some 13 

familiarity with some of them, at least in terms of bringing 14 

your car there, this one place.  How about any of the others?  15 

Have you ever brought your car to some of the other places? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  I have not, no. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  All right.  So, go ahead, you 18 

were describing, if you would, a couple of them.  I’m not sure 19 

it’s necessary to go through all of them but just, yeah. 20 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay.  Well, Munro Tire Auto Service & 21 

Tire Centers, you can actually get your oil changed there with 22 

Valvoline for $22.99 right now. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  With Valvoline motor oil, sorry.  25 
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Garrison Automotive Group is actually the, it’s actually the BP 1 

Station at the corner of Pleasant Plains and Joppa Road. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  (inaudible) is on Loch Raven Boulevard 4 

about a block south of the proposed location.  Savco is dir, 5 

located directly across the street on the south east corner of 6 

Loch Raven and Joppa.  The other ones are located further east 7 

on Joppa Road. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  Almost all of them, when I drove around 10 

to take the pictures, either in the signage or in the services 11 

listed on their website, listed oil change and all the ser, 12 

same services that will be available, you know, what we heard 13 

previously at the Valvoline Quick Lube. 14 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, that, I want to make sure I 15 

was clear about that question, I may have asked it already.  16 

But each of the auto service establishments identified in that 17 

exhibit, are you able to confirm that, that they provide the 18 

same services that Valvoline provides? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes, based, -- 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Based on –- 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- based on the signage available at 24 

the locations and the services listed on their websites. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  And your familiarity with them, at least 3 

in, in one case, right? 4 

  MR. MOULDER:  Um hm. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  I’ve got photographs that 6 

you’ve been referring.  This will be eighteen. 7 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:   Not the best quality unfortunately. 9 

  CHAIR:  These are the photographs of the locations 10 

marked on the map, right? 11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes.  Is that correct, Mr. Moulder? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and I think that, without any 14 

exceptions, the photographs reflect the name, is that correct, 15 

Mr. Moulder? 16 

  MR. MOULDER:  Pretty much, yes. 17 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you took these photographs? 18 

  MR. MOULDER:  I did. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  When did you take them?  Just recently 20 

or? 21 

  MR. MOULDER:  I took them prior to the first hearing, 22 

so I’m going to say the beginning of March. 23 

  MR. MCCANN:  Of this year? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and I don’t think it’s necessary, 1 

Mr. Evans, for me to go through all the photographs.  I think 2 

they –- 3 

  CHAIR:  Okay, that’s fine. 4 

  MR. MCCANN:  -- they correlate, just to save some 5 

time –- 6 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  -- to the, the names that are in Exhibit 8 

17, so.  With that, I’d move Exhibits 17 and 18 into evidence. 9 

  CHAIR:  They’re admitted. 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.   11 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you.  Fifteen and sixteen, you 12 

never moved those in, that’s what I was saying. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, okay, thank you. 14 

  MS. JOLIVET:  You want to move those in as well? 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yes, please. 16 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Okay.  17 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  No problem.  No objection. 18 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.  And lastly, this would be 19 

nineteen. 20 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Thank you. 21 

  MS. JOLIVET:  Thank you. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Take a look at Exhibit 19, if you would, 23 

Mr. Moulder, and you recognize that photograph? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Aerial.  Is this, this site depicted in 1 

that aerial, for the record? 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  It is, it’s in the upper right hand 3 

corner.   4 

  MR. MCCANN:  Indicated by the red dot? 5 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 6 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, the sort of houses to the 7 

south or below that are houses that belong, are a part of what 8 

neighborhood? 9 

  MR. MOULDER:  They would be the Ridgely Manor -- 10 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  11 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- portion of the Village. 12 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, Loch Raven is south of that, right?  13 

Your, your association is south of that? 14 

  MR. MOULDER:  Correct. 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I think you were here for the 16 

testimony of, of Mr. Sharon about the proximity of the subject 17 

site to the, the residential neighborhoods to the, to the south 18 

east.  Do you recall that testimony? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  And what do you recall that distance to 21 

be? 22 

  MR. MOULDER:  I do believe that it was from the 23 

corner, which I guess would be the south west corner of the 24 

site, to the nearest DR zone, would be twenty-nine feet. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.   1 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe that was –- 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  I’m sorry? 3 

  MR. MOULDER:  I believe that was the previous 4 

testimony. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, okay.  And I think you heard 6 

testimony from a couple folks in this case about the direction 7 

in which the, the service doors will be, will be facing for the 8 

proposed Valvoline.  Did you look at any of the service doors 9 

for the other uses in the nine or ten that you looked at in the 10 

neighborhood, that is, the service doors where they stood in 11 

relationship to any neighboring residential properties? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Yes. 13 

  MR. MCCANN:  And what, what, if anything, did you 14 

find out about that? 15 

  MR. MOULDER:  On the south side of Loch Raven 16 

Boulevard, there are no open service bay, there are no service 17 

bay doors that face south, which is where the predominantly 18 

residential areas are. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Getting back to your concerns and 20 

the concerns of the association, Mr. Moulder, I think you 21 

mentioned a couple in relation to the commercial revitalization 22 

district.  I just wanted to make sure that I, that you had 23 

expressed all of the concerns that you and the community have. 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, of course, we’re concerned about 25 
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the, the congestion from the traffic, the noise. 1 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 2 

  MR. MOULDER:  One of the functions that they’ll serve 3 

there at the Valvoline is, you know, tire rotations and as you 4 

can see on the map there, or in that photograph, you’ve got 5 

people’s homes that are a hundred feet away, hundred, hundred 6 

to a hundred and fifty feet away and when you’re doing a tire 7 

rotation, taking twenty lug nuts off of tires and then putting 8 

twenty lug nuts back on with an impact air wrench. 9 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  It’s pretty loud.  If you’ve been in a 11 

service garage, I think they operate somewhere around a hundred 12 

decibels, which roughly the, you know, noise level, you know, 13 

at Ravens stadium.  Kind of concerned for those folks there 14 

that, you know, when, you know, it’s, it’s more than a mere 15 

inconvenience when you have that going from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 16 

p.m. and seven days a week, 9:00 to 5:00 on Sundays.  You know, 17 

I have a two year old grandchild who sometimes I’m tasked with 18 

trying to put down for a nap.  I can only imagine how difficult 19 

that would be with an impact air wrench going on, you know, a 20 

hundred feet away or cars stacked up waiting to get into a 21 

service garage. 22 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You, you men, you did mention 23 

traffic.  What, what are your concerns about traffic? 24 

  MR. MOULDER:  I don’t know where to start.  That, the 25 
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business there on the south side of Joppa Road, there’s, 1 

there’s a constant issue with folks attempting to make their 2 

way across the two thru lanes of Joppa Road to get into the 3 

left turn lanes to turn north on Loch Raven Boulevard to get to 4 

the beltway or wherever.  That exit, although it’s close to the 5 

intersection, people come out of the carryout next door. 6 

  I was on my way to a diff, a different place the 7 

other night, for example, to pick up dinner and someone come, 8 

came across, got stuck in the two thru lanes because the light 9 

turned red and couldn’t get into the left turn lanes because 10 

the traffic was backed up going to the intersection and had to 11 

wait through several, you know, a couple of light cycles just 12 

so that person could get out into the left turn lane and go 13 

north on Loch Raven Boulevard.  That happens out of the Sonic, 14 

even though they have signs, signage up that says, you know, no 15 

left turn onto Joppa Road.  People constantly try to make left 16 

turns coming out of there onto Joppa Road and at a couple of 17 

the other businesses there. 18 

  It’s, it’s a really congested area.  You know, my 19 

experience being there for thirty years, there are frequent 20 

accidents as a result.  The afternoon traffic flow predom, is 21 

predominantly eastbound there and anyone trying to get out of 22 

that exit there is going to face a mighty tall task trying to 23 

get out into that lane to go through east on Joppa Road.  There 24 

are only two options, go east on Joppa Road or you go south on 25 
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Loch Raven, Loch Raven Boulevard.   1 

  If you go south on Loch Raven Boulevard and that’s 2 

not, and if you want to go west, you may actually go down to 3 

Yakona Road, which you can see in the, in the photograph is 4 

where the houses, and go through the neighborhood to Pleasant 5 

Plains Road to get back up to Joppa and then take a left to go 6 

westbound.  That’s a concern. 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  But that’s going to be a concern no 8 

matter what’s there, right?  Why, why, if at all, are you more, 9 

are you concerned about a Valvoline going at this corner in 10 

terms of traffic?  What makes a Valvoline worse than anything 11 

else if it does? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  Well, there’s no, there, there, there 13 

are no, there’s, there are no other options other than that 14 

right turn.  That the traffic flow has been reversed.  Yeah, at 15 

least when the bank was, was there, you could enter from Joppa 16 

Road, you could exit onto Joppa Road, you could enter and exit 17 

off of Loch Raven Boulevard.  You had a few more options there, 18 

so. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Any other concerns?  You 20 

mentioned traffic, noise and you, and the commercial 21 

revitalization district.  Anything that you haven’t touched 22 

upon?  And take your time. 23 

  MR. MOULDER:  Just, just a prepon, preponderance of 24 

auto service locations within that –- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 1 

  MR. MOULDER:  -- part of the commercial 2 

revitalization district.  We, we kind of feel like we’re, it’s 3 

an auto service district, there’s just too many.  And, and it 4 

doesn’t fit in with, you know, like, like I said, with the 5 

goals of the commercial revit, revitalization district, which 6 

(inaudible) diversity of use and to support local small 7 

businesses.   8 

  MR. MCCANN:  And you mentioned walkability.  Do you 9 

believe this site will, is, is walkable? 10 

  MR. MOULDER:  No.  11 

  MR. MCCANN:  Why not? 12 

  MR. MOULDER:  No.  There, there’s, there’s not much 13 

walkable there today but with what, the ingress and egress out 14 

of that site, I wouldn’t want to go across there.  There’s just 15 

too much traffic and too much congestion.   16 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I would move, I think it’s the 17 

photograph, is that Exhibit 19, Mr. Evans?   18 

  CHAIR:  That’ll be admitted. 19 

  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.  Lastly, I’m going to ask Mr. 20 

Moulder to do this, only because he’s the one that did the 21 

artwork.  I have a My Neighborhood map of the district and he 22 

highlighted in, in pink.  I, unfortunately, I, I don’t, I 23 

didn’t make copies –- 24 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Can I just take a quick look? 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Sure. 1 

  CHAIR:  Is that the revitalization district? 2 

  MR. MCCANN:  It is, yeah.  With the zoning overlay.  3 

For some reason I didn’t make copies (inaudible). 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  If you could just send a copy. 5 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  I don’t have any objection to it. 7 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  That’ll be admitted then. 8 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and if I, could I hold on to it and 9 

give it back to you? 10 

  CHAIR:  Sure, oh, yeah.   11 

  MR. MCCANN:  So, this would be twenty.  Okay and I 12 

would just identify it as a My Neighborhood map or something.  13 

Great.  Okay. 14 

  MS. JOLIVET:  (inaudible). 15 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, I will make copies for Dino 16 

and the Board as well and give that back to you.  Put that in a 17 

safe spot.  Anything else, Mr. Moulder, that you haven’t said 18 

that you wanted to convey to the Board while you have a chance? 19 

  MR. MOULDER:  Not that comes to mind. 20 

  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  Thank you.  No other 21 

questions.   22 

  MR. MOULDER:  Okay. 23 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It might make sense if I go next? 24 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, we have to have, in turns out we 25 
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need to leave at 4:15, so. 1 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I do have some questions, I mean, -- 2 

  CHAIR:  Right.  I was wondering if maybe we should 3 

hear from Mr. Castro? 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Fiastro. 5 

  CHAIR:  Gastro? 6 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Oh, pardon me. 7 

  VOICE:  Whatever you want to do.  Act, actually, I 8 

prefer to wait. 9 

  CHAIR:  You prefer to wait?  Okay, all right.  Well, 10 

I was just doing that for –- 11 

  VOICE:  No, no, I’ll come back.  Thank you. 12 

  CHAIR:  -- your, your convenience. 13 

  VOICE:  Thank you, though. 14 

  CHAIR:  But, -- 15 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Unfortunately, I do have some 16 

questions. 17 

  CHAIR:  Yeah.   18 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’ll do the best I can. 19 

  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, we’ll have to schedule another 20 

day.   21 

  MS. JOLIVET:  (inaudible). 22 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I’ll be glad to begin. 23 

  CHAIR:  Sure. 24 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  All right.  A few questions about –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  But we’re going to stop in seven minutes, six 1 

minutes, okay? 2 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, all right.  Well, -- 3 

  CHAIR:  I mean, does it make sense to just 4 

(inaudible)? 5 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, perhaps, perhaps we could have a 6 

few, since we only have a few minutes left, if there are 7 

closing issues, not closing issues, but housekeeping issues 8 

that we need to address before we adjourn. 9 

  CHAIR:  Okay. 10 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Maybe this is the time to do it.  I, 11 

I –- 12 

  MR. MCCOMAS:  Yeah, because I think she had a couple 13 

questions there.   14 

  CHAIR:  Okay, why don’t we do that?  So, why don’t we 15 

excuse –- 16 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, Mr. Moulder is still on the 17 

stand. 18 

  CHAIR:  He’s still on the stand. 19 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 20 

  CHAIR:  But –- 21 

  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think Mr. McCann might have another 22 

witness, I don’t want to speak for him.  I don’t know what he’s 23 

feeling but –- 24 

  MR. MCCANN:  A short witness. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- there, there’s some other 1 

neighbors here so I’m just saying, I don’t, I don’t think it 2 

would have been possible to end today. 3 

  CHAIR:  Yes, right.  No, I get that, I get that. 4 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  So, can I get a sense, if I might, 5 

do, do you think we could finish in like less than a full day?  6 

I mean, -- 7 

  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I have, I have one witness and 8 

maybe two, right? 9 

  CHAIR:  Hold on one second.  We’re going to, we’re 10 

going to go off the record here –- 11 

  MR. LA FIANDRA:  Okay. 12 

  CHAIR:  -- so that you, you and all of us –- 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

(OFF THE RECORD – 04:05:34 PM) 25 









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































CHRISTINE R. LEARY 

LEGAL TRANSCRIPTIONIST 

3129 Hiss Avenue 

Baltimore, Maryland  21234 

(443) 622-4898 

Crleary1@comcast.net 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

INVOICE 

 
June 26, 2020 

 

TO:     Dino C. La Fiandra, Esquire 

100 W. Pennsylvania Avenue, Suite 305 

Towson, Maryland  21204 

 

 

IN THE      Case No.:  19-070-SPHX 

                 

MATTER OF 

       Hearing Dates:  3/5, 4/2, 6/27/19 

M AND S LIMITED PARTNERSHIP        

        

 

 

Fee for preparation of transcript = $2,340.00 

 

 

 

 

Payment should be made payable to “Christine R. Leary” and mailed to the above address. 

Or use Venmo (@Christine111564) or CashApp (443-622-4898) 

mailto:Crleary1@comcast.net

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































